Annual mandatory training is provided to all colleagues, with
additional targeted training tailored to certain individuals. We carry
out regular risk assessments, identifying where we need to
respond to evolving financial crime threats, as well as monitor and
test our financial crime risk management programme.

We continue to invest in new technology, including through the
deployment of a capability to monitor correspondent banking
activity, the enhancerments to our fraud monitoring capability and
our trade screening controls, and the application of machine
learning to improve the accuracy and timeliness of our detection
capabilities. We are confident our adoption of these new
technologies will continue to enhance our ability to respond
quickly to unusual activity and be more granular in our risk
assessments. This will help us to protect our customers,
shareholders, staff, the communities in which we operate and the
integrity of the financial system on which we all rely, while
providing actionable information to government authorities
through our reporting.

Our anti-bribery and corruption policy

Our global AB&C policy requires that all activity must be:
conducted without intent to bribe or corrupt; reasonable and
transparent; considered to not be lavish nor disproportionate to
the professional relationship; appropriately documented with
business rationale; and authorised at an appropriate level of
seniority. There were no concluded, nor live active, legal cases
regarding bribery or corruption brought against HSBC or its
employees in 2022, Our global AB&C policy requires that we
identify and mitigate the risk of our customers and third parties
committing bribery or corruption. We utilise anti-money
laundering controls, including customer due diligence and
transaction monitoring, to identify and mitigate the risk that our
customers are involved in bribery or corruption. We perform a
bribery risk assessment on all third parties, and impose risk-based
controls on the third parties that expose us to bribery or corruption
risk.

Skilled Person & Independent Consultant

In August 2022, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System terminated its 2012 cease-and-desist order, with
immediate effect. This order was the final remaining regulatory
enforcement action that HSBC had entered into in 2012. In June
2021, the UK Financial Conduct Authority had already determined
that no further Skilled Person work was required under section
166 of the Financial Services and Markets Act. The Group Risk
Committee retains oversight of matters relating to financial crime,
including any remaining remedial activity not yet completed as
part of previous recommendations.

In December 2022, the 3-year DPA our Swiss private bank entered
into with the DOJ was dismissed. This dismissal confirms that our
Swiss private bank complied in all material terms with the DPA
obligations by establishing or enhancing the relevant governance,
controls, training and internal assurance reviews and allows the
private banking business in Switzerland to move forward while
maintaining the robust control environment put in place to combat
tax evasion in the future.

Model risk

Overview

Model risk is the risk of inappropriate or incorrect business
decisions arising from the use of models that have been
inadequately designed, implemented or used, or from models that
do not perform in line with expectations and predictions.

Model risk arises in both financial and non-financial contexts
whenever business decision making includes reliance on models.

Key developments in 2022

We managed the risks related to the Russia-Ukraine war and
broader macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainties, as well as
the continued risks resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic and
other key risks described in this section.

In addition, we enhanced our risk management in the following
areas:

* Inresponse to regulatory capital charges, we redeveloped,
validated and submitted to the PRA and ECB our models for the
internal ratings-based ('IRB’) approach for credit risk, internal
model method {('IMM’) for counterparty credit risk and internal
model approach ('IMA’) for market risk. These new models
have been built to enhanced standards using improved data as
a result of investment in processes and systems. We have
continued to improve our risk governance decision making,
particularly regarding the governance of treasury risk to ensure
senior executives have appropriate oversight and visibility of
macroeconomic trends around inflation and interest rates.

* We redeveloped and validated models impacted by changes to
alternative rate setting mechanisms due to the |bor transition.

* We embedded the changes made to our control framework for
our financial reporting processes to address the control
weaknesses that emerged as a result of significant increases in
adjustments and overlays that were applied to compensate for
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on models.

* Our businesses and functions continue ta be more involved in
the development and management of models, and hiring
colleagues who have strong model risk skills. They also put an
enhanced focus on key model risk drivers such as data quality
and model methodology.

* We enhanced the reporting that supports the model risk
appetite measures, to support our businesses and functions in
managing model risk more efficiently,

¢ We continued to support businesses in the programme of work
related to climate risk and models using advanced analytics
and machine learning, which have become critical areas of
focus that will grow in importance in 2023 and beyond. We
also added further qualified specialist skills to the model risk
teams to manage the increased model risk in these areas.

* We continued the transformation of the Mode! Risk
Management team, with further enhancements to the
independent model validation processes, including new
systems and working practices. Key senior hires were made
during the year to lead the business areas and regions to
strengthen oversight and expertise within the function.

Governance and structure

The group's Model Risk Committee is chaired by our Chief Risk
Officer and provides oversight of model risk. The committee
includes senior leaders and risk owners across the lines of
business and Risk and focuses on model-related concerns and key
model risk metrics.

Key risk management processes

We use a variety of modelling approaches, including regression,
simulation, sampling, machine learning and judgmental
scorecards for a range of business applications. These activities
include customer selection, product pricing, financial crime
transaction monitoring, creditworthiness evaluation and financial
reporting. HSBC Bank plc responsibility for managing model risk is
delegated from the group's RMM to the group's Model Risk
Committee, which is chaired by the group’s Chief Risk Officer. This
committee regularly reviews our model risk management policies
and procedures, and requires the first line of defence to
demonstrate comprehensive and effective controls based on a
library of model risk controls provided by Model Risk
Management.

Model Risk Management also reports on model risk to senior
management on a regular basis through the use of risk
management information, risk appetite metrics and top and
emerging risks.

We regularly review the effectiveness of these processes,
including the model oversight committee structure, to help ensure
appropriate understanding and ownership of model risk is
embedded in the businesses and functions.
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Insurance manufacturing operations risk
Overview

The key risks for our insurance manufacturing operations are
market risks, in particular interest rate and equity, credit risks and
insurance underwriting risks, These have a direct impact on the
financial results and capital positions of the insurance operations.
Liquidity risk, whilst significant in other parts of the bank, is
relatively minor for our insurance operations.

HSBC's insurance business

We sell insurance products through a range of channels including
our branches, insurance salesforces, direct channels and third-
party distributors. The majority of sales are through an integrated
bancassurance model that provides insurance products principally
for customers with whom we have a banking relationship,
although the proportion of sales though digital 1s mcreasing.

The insurance products we manufacture, the majority of sales are
of savings, universal life and protection contracts.

We choose to manufacture these insurance products in HSBC
subsidiaries based on an assessment of operational scale and risk
appetite. Manufacturing insurance allows us to retain the nisks and
rewards associated with writing insurance contracts by keeping
part of the underwriting profit and investment income within the
Group.

Where we do not have the risk appetite or operational scale to be
an effective insurance manufacturer, we engage with a small
number of leading external insurance companies in order 1o
provide insurance products to our customers. These arrangements
are generally structured with our exclusive strategic partners and
earn the group a combination of commissions, fees and a share of
profits. We distribute insurance products in all of our geographical
regions.

Insurance products are sold through all global businesses, but
predominantly by WPB and CMB through our branches and direct
channels.

Insurance manufacturing operations risk
management

Key developments in 2022

The insurance manufacturing subsidianes follow the Group's risk
management framework. In addition, there are specific palicies
and practices relating to the risk management of insurance
contracts. There has been continued market volatility observed
over 2022 across interest rates, equity markets and foreign
exchange rates. This has been predominantly driven by
geopolitical factors and wider inflationary concerns.

One area of key risk management focus over 2022 was the
implementation of the new accounting standard, IFRS17 Insurance
Contracts. Given the fundamental nature of the impact of the
accounting standard on insurance accounting, this presents
additional financial reporting and model risks for the Bank.

Governance

Insurance manufacturing risks are managed to a defined nsk
appetite, which is aligned to the bank's risk appetile and risk
management framework, including the three lines of defence
model. For details on the governance framework, see page 26. The
Group Insurance Risk Management Meeling oversees the control
framework globally and is accountable to the WPB Risk
Management Meeting on risk matters relating to the insurance
business.

The monitoring of the risks within the insurance operations is
carried out by Insurance Risk teams. The Bank's risk stewardship
functions support the Insurance Risk teams in their respective
areas of expertise.

Stress and scenario testing

Stress testing forms a key part of the risk management framework
for the insurance business. We participate in local and Group-wide
requlatory stress tests, including, as may be required from time to
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time, the Bank of England stress test of the banking system,
HSBC's Group Internal Stresses, and individual country insurance
regulatory stress tests. The results of these stress tests and the
adequacy of management action plans to mitigate these risks are
considered in the HSBC Bank plc ICAAP and the entities’
regulatory Own Risk and Solvency Assessments ('ORSAs').

Management and mitigation of key risk types
Market risk

All our insurance manufacturing subsidiaries have market risk
mandates and limits that specify the investment instruments in
which they are permitted to invest and the maximum quantum of
market risk that they may retain. They manage market risk by
using, among others, some or all of the techniques listed below,
depending on the nature of the contracts written:

s We are able to adjust honus rates to manage the liabilities to
policyholders for products with discretionary participating
features ('DPF'). The effect is that a significant portion of the
market risk is borne by the policyholder.

s \We use asset and liability matching where asset portfolios are
structured to support projected hability cash flows. The Group
manages its assets using an approach that considers asset
quality, diversification, cash flow matching, liquidity, volatility
and target investment return. We use models to assess the
effect of a range of future scenarios on the values of financial
assets and associated habilities, and ALCOs employ the
outcomes in determining how best to structure asset holdings
to support habilities.

s We use derivatives to protect against adverse market
movements.

«  We design new products to mitigate market risk, such as
changing the investment return sharing portion between
policyholders and the shareholder.

Cradit risl

Our insurance manufacturing subsidiaries also have credit risk
mandates and limits within which they are permitted to operate,
which consider the credit risk exposure, quality and performance
of their investment portfolios. Our assessment of the
creditworthiness of issuers and counterparties is based primarily
upon internationally recognised credit ratings and other publicly
available information.

Stress testing is performed on investment credit exposures using
credit spread sensitivities and default probabilities.

We use a number of tools to manage and monitor credit risk.
These include a credit report containing a watch-list of
investments with current credit concerns, primarily investments
that may be at risk of future impairment or where high
concentrations to counterparties are present in the investment
portfolio. Sensitivities to credit spread risk are assessed and
monitored regularly.

Capital and liquidity risl

Capital risk for our insurance manufacturing subsidiaries is
assessed in the group’s ICAAP based on their financial capacity to
support the risks to which they are exposed. Capital adequacy is
assessed on both the group’s economic capital basis, and the
relevant local insurance regulatory basis.

Risk appetite buffers are set to ensure that the operations are able
to remain solvent, allowing for business-as-usual volatility and
extreme but plausible stress events. In certain cases, enfities use
reinsurance to manage capital risk. Liquidity risk is relatively minor
for the insurance business. It 1s managed by cash flow matching
and maintaining sufficient cash resources, investing in high credit-
quality investments with deep and liquid markets, monitoring
investment concentrations and restricting them where
appropnate, and establishing committed contingency borrowing
facilities.

Insurance manufacturing subsidiaries complete quarterly liquidity
risk reports and an annual review of the liquidity risks to which
they are exposed.



Insurance underwriting risk

Our insurance manufacturing subsidiaries primarily use the
following frameworks and processes to manage and mitigate U
insurance underwriting risks:

* a formal approval process for launching new products or
making changes to products;

* a product pricing and profitability framework which requires “
initial and ongoing assessment of the adequacy of premiums

Insurance manufacturing operations risk in 2022
Measurement

charged on new insurance contracts to meet the risks
associated with them;

a framework for customer underwriting;

reinsurance which cedes risks to third party reinsurers to keep
risks within risk appetite thresholds to third party reinsurer
thereby limiting our exposure; and

oversight of expense and reserving risks by entity Financial
Reporting Committees.

The following table shows the composition of assets and liabilities by contract type.

Balance sheet of insurance manufacturing subsidiaries by type of contract

Shareholder
Other  assets and
With DPF  Unit- linked contracts’ liabilities Total
£m £m £m £fm £m
Financial assets 17,029 2,888 191 2,593 22,701
financial assets designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value through | ] |
profit or loss 9,171 2,880 80 1,033 13,164
- derivatives 232 — - 1 243
- financial investments — at amortised cost 298 - — 20 318
- financial investments - at fair value through other comprehensive income 6,332 - 107 1,452 7.891
- other financial assets” - 996 8 4 __ry _| 1,085
Reinsurance assets B B - 40 112 - 152
PVIF - - - 1.076 1,076
Other assets and investiment properties B 725 1 1 68 795
Total at 31 Dec 2022 17,754 2,929 304 3,737 24,724
Liabilities under investment contracts designated at fair value - 948 - — 948
Liabilities under insurance contracts 17,624 2,062 301 - 19,987
Defarred tax’ 129 5 — 106 240
Othet liabilities B . = - - 1,796 1,796
Total liabilities at 31 Dec 2022 17,753 3,015 301 1,902 22,97
Total equity at 31 Dec 2022 - - — 1753 1783
Total liabilities and equity at 31 Dec 2022 17,753 3,015 301 3,655 24,724
Financial assets o 19,384 2,924 254 2,704 25,266
— financial assets designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value through | ! I |
profit or loss | 9,876 2,859 89 1,236 14,060
- derivatives 47 — - 1 48
— financial investments — at amortised cost | 815 — 42 857
- financial investments — at fair value through other comprehansive income | 7,480 — 104 I 1,327 8.921
- other financial assets” | 1.156 65 | 61 | 98 1,380
Reinsurance assets — 53 104 - 157
PVIF . - — - 811 811
Other assets and investment properlies 748 1 - 59 808
Total assets a1 31 Dec 2021 20,132 2,978 358 3574 27,042
Liabilities under investment contracts designated at fair value - 1,031 - - 1,031
Liabilities under insurance contracts 19,998 1,938 328 22,264
Deferred tax* 133 6 46 185
Othar abitos | g 2008 200
Total liabilities at 31 Dec 2021 20,131 2975 328 2,049 25,483
Total equity at 31 Dec 2021 ~ - - 1,569 1,559
Total liabilities and equity a1 31 Dec 2021 20,131 2.975 328 3,608 27,042

‘Other contracts’ includes term assurance and credit life insurance.

Present value of in-force long-term insurance business.

AW -

‘Deferred tax” includes the deferred tax liabilities arising on recagnition of PVIF.

Comprise mainly loans and advances to banks, cash and intercompany balances with other non-insurance legal entities.
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Key risk types

Market risk

Joserition and exposure

Market risk is the risk of changes in market factors affecting the
bank's capital or profit. Market factors include interest rates,
equity and growth assets and foreign exchange rates. Lapse nisk
exposure on products with premium financing has increased over
the year as rising interest rates have led Lo an increase in the cost
of financing for customers.

Our exposure varies depending on the type of contract issued. Our
most significant life insurance products are mvestment contracts
with discretionary participating features ('DPF') issued in France.
These products typically include some form of capital guarantee or
quaranteed return on the sums invested by the policyholders, to
which discretionary bonuses are added if allowed by the overall
performance of the funds. These funds are pnimanly nvested in
fixed interest assets with a proportion allocated to other asset
classes, 1o provide customers with the potential for enhanced
returns.

DPF products expose the bank to the risk of variation in asset
returns, which will impact our participation in the investment
performance. In addition, in some scenarios the asset returns can
hecome insufficient to cover the palicyholders” financial
guarantees, in which case the shortfall has to be met by the bank.
Amounts are held against the cost of such guarantees. The cost of
such guarantees is accounted for as a deduction from the present
value of in-force 'PVIF asset, unless the cost of such guarantees is
already explicitly allowed for within the insurance contracts
liabilities. The table below shows the total reserve held for the cost
of guarantees, the range of investment returns on assets
supporting these products and the implied investment return that
would enable the business to meet the guarantees. The cost of
guarantees decreased to £100m (2021: £299m) primarily due to
increases in interest rates and unfavourable equity performances
in France. For unit-linked contracts, market risk is substantially
borne by the policyholder, but some market nsk exposure typically
remains as fees earned are related to the market value of the
linked assets.

Fimancial return guarantees

2022 2021

Long-term Long term

Ivvestment investment

returns returns on reluis raturng on

implied by relevant Cost of wmplied by relevant Cost of

guarantes portiolios guarantees quarantes portiolios guarantess

Ya Yo £m kL Y% £m

Capital - 1.6-2.0 18 - 08-20 127
Nominal annual return 2.6 2.0 49 2.6 22 a2
Neaminal annual return 4.5 2.0 33 4.5 22 80
At 31 Dec 100 299

Sensitivities For the same reason, the impact of the stress is not necessarily

The following table illustrates the effects of selected interest rate
and equity price seenarios on our profit for the year and the total
equity of our insurance manufacturing subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, the effects of the sensitivity tests on profil
after tax and equity incorporate the impact of the stress on the
PVIF. Due in part to the impact of the cost of guarantees and
hedging strategies which may be in place, the relationship
between the profit and total equity and the risk factors is non-
linear. Therefore, the results disclosed should not be extrapolated
to measure sensitivities to different levels of stress.

symmetrical on the upside and downside.

The sensitivities are stated before allowance for management
actions which may mitigate the effect of changes in the market
environment. The sensitivities presented allow for adverse
changes in policyholder behaviour that may anse in response to
changes in market rates. The differences between the impacts on
profit after tax and equity are driven by the changes in value of the
bonds measured at FVOCI, which are only accounted for in equity.

Sensitivity of the group's insurance manufactunng subsidiaries to marl

+100 basis point parallel shift in yield curves
100 basis point parallel shift in yield curves
10% increase in equity prices
10% decrease in equity prices

Credit risk

Descuption and expaswuyre

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty
fails to meet their obligation under a contract. It arises in two main
areas for our insurance manufacturers:

« risk associated with credit spread volatility and default by debt
security counterparties after investing premiums to generate a
return for policyholders and shareholders; and

e risk of default by reinsurance counterparties and non-
reimbursement for claims made after ceding insurance risk.
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21 risk factors

2022 2021

Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit after tax total equity profit after tax total equity
£m £m f'in fm

34 12 119 96

(48) (22) [229) (203)

65 65 a6 46

(66) (66) 49) (49)

The amounts outstanding at the balance sheet date in respect of
these items are shown in the table on page 91. The credit quality
of the reinsurers’ share of liabilities under insurance contracts is
assessed as 'satisfactory’ or higher as defined on page 37, with
100% of the exposure being neither past due nor impaired. Credit
risk on assets supporting unit-linked habilities is predominantly
horne by the policyholder; therefore our exposure is primarily
related to liabilities under non-linked insurance and investment
contracts and shareholders’ funds.

The credit quality of these financial assets is included in the table
on page b7.



Liguidity risk

Description and expasure

Liquidity risk is the risk that an insurance operation, though
solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources
available to meet its obligations when they fall due, or can secure
them only at excessive cost. Liquidity risk may be able to shared
with policyholders for products with DPF.

The following table shows the expected undiscounted cash flows
for insurance contract liabilities at 31 December 2022.

The profile of the expected maturity of insurance contracts at
31 December 2022 remained comparable with 2021.

The remaining contractual maturity of investment contract
liabilities is included within ‘Financial liabilities designated at fair
value' in Note 27.

Expected maturity of insurance contract liabilities
I Y

Exi 1 cash flows (undi ited)
~ Within 1 year 1-5 years 515years  Over 15 years ~ Total

. Em _fl:'!_ - I £m _— £m £m

Unit-linked 147 368 818 1,433 2,766
With DPF and Other contracts . 1,132 4,645 8,555 11,886 26,218
At 31 Dec 2022 1,279 5,013 9,373 13,319 28,984
Unit-linked 230 565 927 926 2,648
With DPF and Other contracts 1,341 5,102 7.318 6,416 20,176
At 31 Dec 2021 1,571 5,667 8,245 7,341 22,824

Insurance underwriting risk
Descrniption and expaosure

Insurance underwriting risk is the risk of loss through adverse
experience, in either timing or amount, of insurance underwriting
parameters (non-economic assumptions). These parameters
include mortality, morbidity, longevity, lapse and expense rates.

The principal risk we face is that, over time, the cost of
the contract, including claims and benefits, may exceed the total
amount of premiums and investment income received.

The tahle on page 91 analyses our insurance manufacturing
exposures by type of contract.

The insurance risk profile and related exposures remain largely
consistent with those observed at 31 December 2021.

Sensitivities

The table below shows the sensitivity of profit and total equity to
reasonably possible changes in non-economic assumptions across
all our insurance manufacturing subsidiaries.

Mortality and morbidity risk is typically associated with

life insurance contracts. The effect on profit of an increase in
mortality or morbidity depends on the type of business being
written.

Sensitivity to lapse rates depends on the type of contracts being
written. An increase in lapse rates typically has a negative effect
on profit due to the loss of future income on the lapsed policies.
However, some contract lapses have a positive effect on profit due
to the existence of policy surrender charges. We are most
sensitive to a change in lapse rates in France.

Expense rate risk is the exposure to a change in the allocated cost
of administering insurance contracts. To the extent that increased
expenses cannot be passed on to policyholders, an increase in
expense rates will have a negative effect on our profits. This risk is
generally greatest for smaller entities.

Sensitivity analysis

2022 2021
£m fm

Effect on profit after tax and total equity at 31 a )
Dec

10% increase in mortality and/or morbidity rates N 1_24)_ - (20)
10% decrease in mortality and/or morbidity rates 25 19
10% increase in lapse rates (33) (18}
10% decrease in lapse rates 35 20
10% increase In expense rates (28) [40)
10% decrease in expense rates 28 40
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Corporate Governance Report

The statement of corporate governance practices set out on pages
94 to 102, together with the information incorporated by
reference, constitutes the Corporate Governance Report of the
bank. The following disclosures, read together with those in the
Strategic Report, including the section 172 statement on pages T2
and 14 and reporting on employee engagement on pages 10 to 13
describe how the Board has discharged its responsibilities relating
1o section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 {the 'Act’), as well as
the requirements under the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting)
Regulations 2018 (the ‘Reporting Regulations’).

Engagement with employees, suppliers, customers and other key
stakeholders:

Stalisholder Page Saction
Customers Page 12 How we do business
Page 12 section 172 statement

Page 12 How we do business

Pages 12 and 13

Employees
section 172 statement

Carporate Governance

Pages 107 to 107 statement

Communities Pages 11 How we do business

Regulators and governments  Page 13 How we do business
Page 12 section 172 statement

Suppliers liage 13 How we do business
Page 12 _section 172 statement

The bank, together with the wider Group, is committed to high
standards of corporate governance. The Group has a
comprehensive range of principles, policies and procedures
influenced by the UK Corporate Governance Code with
requirements in respect of Board independence, composition and
effectiveness to ensure that the Group 1s well managed, with
appropriate oversight and control. During the year, the bank
adhered to these corporate governance principles, policies and
procedures, as applicable,

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised 10 Directors
including the Chair, non-executive Directors, and two executive
Directors, being the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer. All Directors are subject to election or re-election at each
Annual General Meeting's ('AGM') of the bank. The Directors
serving at 31 December 2022 are set out below.

Directors

Stephen O'Connor (61)
Chair of the Board

Chair of the Nomination, Remuneration & Governance
Committee

Appointed to the Board: May 2018. Chair of the Board since
August 2018.

Stephen is a non-executive Director and Vice Chair of HBCL,
Chairman of Quantile Group Limited and its subsidiary Quantile
lechnologies Limited, and a Director of the London Stock
Exchange ple. He is also a non-executive Director of the Financial
Markets Standards Board. He has more than 25 years’ investment
banking experience in London and New York.

Former appointments include: Senior Independent Director,
Chairman of the Risk Committee and member of both the Audit
and Nomination Committees of the London Stock Exchange
Group; Chairman of the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association: and Managing Director and a member of the Fixed
Income Management Committee at Morgan Stanley.
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Colin Bell (55}
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Chair of the Executive Committee

Appointed to the Board and as Chief Executive Officer:
February 2021.

Colin Bell joined HSBC in July 2016 and most recently held the
role of Group Chief Compliance Officer until February 2021. He is a
member of the Supervisory Board, and Remuneration, Nomination
and Mediation Committees of HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH.

Before joining HSBC, Colin worked at UBS, where he was Global
Head of Compliance and Operational Risk Control. He has more
than 10 years of experience in managing risk and financial crime,
following 16 years in the British Army

During his time in the Army, he held a vanety of command and
staff appointments, including operational tours of Iraq and
Northern lreland, time in the Ministry of Defence, a NATO
appointment and completion of the Advanced Command and Staff
Course.

David Watts (56)
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Member of the Executive Committee

Appointed to the Board and as Chief Financial Officer:
December 2021,

David is a Member of the Supervisory Board of HSBC Trinkaus &
Burkhardt GmbH. He joined the HSBC Group in 1994 and was
previously a Director and Chief Financial Officer of HSBC UK Bank
ple.

Former HSBC Group roles include: Chief Financial Officer and
Head of Finance for HSBC Bank ple; Chief Financial Officer for
Global Commercial Banking; Chief Financial Officer for the Middle
Last and North Africa, Chief Financial Officer for Group HSBC
Technology and Operations; Chief Financial Officer for Global
Banking; Head of Financial Control for Global Banking & Markets
HSBC Securities (USA) Inc; Head of Group Cost and Investment
Reporting & Analysis; and Manager Treasury Services, France.

Patrick Clackson (58)

Independent non-executive Director
Member of the Audit Comnuittee

Appointed to the Board: September 2022,

Former appointments include: Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Operations Officer and Chief Executive Officer at Barclays Capital
{now Barclays CIB). He also held several non-executive positions
whilst with Barclays, BarCap as Head of Business Transformation
and Structural Reform, as well as EMEA Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Operations Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Risk.
Between 1986-1996 he was employed in the audit and financial
services advisory teams of PwC, Londan.

Norma Dove-Edwin (57)
Independent non-executive Director

Member of the Transformation, Operational Resilience and
Technology Committee

Appointed to the Board: October 2021.

Norma is as Chief Information Officer of ESO at National Grid Plc.
She is also a non-executive Director of Pod Point Group Holdings
ple.

Former appointments include: Group Chief Data and Information
Officer at Places for People and a number of positions at British
American Tobacco Ple including as Head of Global Data Services.



Yukiko Omura (67)

Independent non-executive Director
Member of the Audit Committee
Appointed to the Board: May 2018.

Yukiko is the senior independent non-executive Director of The
Private Infrastructure Development Group Limited ('PIDG'). She
also serves as a non-executive Director of Assured Guaranty Ltd,
and a member of the Supervisory Board of Nishimoto HD Co. Ltd.
She has more than 35 years’ international professional experience
in both the public and private financial sectors, performing senior
roles for JP Morgan, Lehman Brothers, UBS and Dresdner Bank.

Yukiko is the Consumer Duty Champion for the Board and helps
support the Chair and Chief Executive Officer by encouraging
regular dialogue al the Board level on how the Bank is embedding
Consumer Duty and focusing on customer outcomes.

Former appointments include: Chair of GuarantCo Limited, a
subsidiary of PIDG; Under-Secretary General and COO/Nice
President of the International Fund for Agricultural Development;
and Executive Vice President and CEO of the Multilateral
Investment Guarantee Agency of the World Bank Group.

Juliet Ellis (56)
Independent non-executive Director

Chair of the Transformation, Operational Resilience and Technology
Committee, member of the Risk Committee and the Nomination,
Remuneration & Governance Committee

Appointed to the Board: January 2021.

Former appointments include: Dual role as European Head of
Operations and Global Head of Shared Services and Banking
Operations and other senior management positions at Morgan
Stanley. Prior to 2007 she performed senior roles within Goldman
Sachs International.

Dr Eric Strutz (58)
Independent non-executive Director

Chair of the Risk Committee and member of the Nomination,
Remuneration & Governance Committee and Transformation,
Operational Resilience and Technology Committee

Appointed to the Board: October 2016.

Eric is a member of the Supervisory Board and Risk Committee
and Chair of the Audit Committee of HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt
GmbH. He is also a director of the HBCE and Chair of the HECE
Risk Committee and member of the HBCE Audit Committee. Other
appointments include Chair of the Audit Committee of Global Blue
Group Holding AG, and a member of the Advisory Board and
Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee of Luxembourg
Investment Company 261 Sarl.

Former appointments include: Vice Chairman and Lead
Independent Director of Partners Group Holding AG, where he also
Chaired the Risk and Audit Committee; Chief Financial Officer of
Commerzbank Group; Partner and Director of the Boston
Consulting Group; and non-executive Director of Mediobanca
Banca di Credito Finanziario SpA.

John Trueman

Deputy Chairman and non-executive Director

Member of the Audit Committee, the Risk Committee and the
Nomination, Remuneration & Governance Committee

Appointed to the Board: September 2004. Deputy Chairman
since December 2013.

Former appointments include: Chairman and member of the Risk
Committee of HSBC Global Asset Management Limited and
Deputy Chairman of 5.G. Warburg & Co Ltd.

Andrew Wright (62)

Chair of the Audit Committee and member of the Risk Committee
and Nomination, Remuneration & Governance Committee

Appointed to the Board: May 2018.

Andrew is a member of the Supervisory Board and Audit
Committee and Chair of the Risk Committee of HSBC Trinkaus &
Burkhardt GmbH.

Former appointments include: Treasurer to the Prince of Wales
and the Duchess of Cornwall, a role he held from May 2012 until
June 2019; Global Chief Financial Officer for the Investment Bank
at UBS AG; Chief Financial Officer, Europe and the Middle East at
Lehman Brothers; and Chief Financial Officer for the Private Client
and Asset Management Division at Deutsche Bank.

Board Changes during 2022 and following the
year-end

Mary Marsh retired as a Director at the conclusion of the bank's
AGM held on 17 May 2022.

Norma Dove-Edwin was appointed as a member of the
Transformation, Operational Resilience and Technology
Committee with effect from 1 June 2022.

Juliet Ellis was appointed as a member of the Nomination,
Remuneration & Governance Committee with effect from 1 August
2022.

Patrick Clackson was appointed as a non-executive Director and
member of the Audit Committee with effect from 1 September
2022.

John Trueman retired from the Board as a Director with effect
from 31 December 2022,

Lewis O'Donald will join the Board as an independent non-
executive Director and member of the Risk Committee with effect
from 23 February 2023.

Company Secretary

The responsibilities of the Company Secretary include ensuring
good governance practices at Board level and effective
information flows within the Board and its committees and
between senior management and the non-executive Directors.

Alison Campbell was Company Secretary of the bank until
31 December 2022 and Philip Miller was appointed as Company
Secretary from 1 January 2023.

Board of Directors

Key responsibilities

The Board, led by the Chair, is responsible amongst other matters
for:

(i) promoting the long-term success of the bank and delivering
sustainable value to shareholders and other stakeholders;

(i) entrepreneurial leadership of the bank within a framework of
prudent and effective controls which enables risks to be assessed
and managed;

(ili) setting the bank's strategy and risk appetite statement,
including monitoring the bank's risk profile;

(iv) establishing and monitoring the effectiveness of procedures for
maintenance of a sound system of control and risk management,
and compliance with statutory and regulatory obligations; and

(v) approving the capital and operating plans and material
transactions on the recommendation of management.

The role of the non-executive Directors is to support the
development of proposals on strategy, hold management to
account and ensure the executive Directors are discharging their
responsibilities properly by promoting a culture that encourages
constructive challenge. Non-executive Directors also review the
performance of management in meeting agreed goals and
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objectives. The Chair regularly meets with the non-executive
Directors without executive Directors in attendance after Board
meetings, and otherwise, as necessary.

Operation of the Board

During 2022, the Board was required 1o meet at least four times;
seven additional meetings were scheduled to help facilitate,
amongst other things, the execution of the bank’s transformation
strategy, the bank's SEC Registration. The Board agenda is agreed
with the Chair, working closely with the Company Secretary, in
advance of scheduled meetings. The agenda s informed by
forward-looking planning and additional emerging matters that
require Board oversight or approval.

The Chief Risk Officer, General Counsel, and Company Secretary
are reqular attendees at Board meetings, and other senior
axecutives attend to contribute their subject matter expertise and
insight, as required.

Board activities during 2022

During 2022, the areas of focus for the Board included in the
implementation of approved strateqy and execution of the bank's
transformation programme across the region, supporting senior
management and overseeing performance, nisk and capital. The
Board considered performance against financial and other
strategic objectives, key business challenges, emerging risks,
business development and relationships with the bank’s key
stakeholders.

"Deep dives' on key aspects of the bank's business were also
conducted to consider the performance and strategy of largeted
businesses and countries. Throughout the year, the Board received
regular updates from management including the implementation
of regulatory programmes, technology, operations and resilience,
as well as people, culture and talent.

In addition, several information and development sessions were
facilitated during the year on specific areas of interest including
with respect to Recovery and Resolution Planning, technology,
and ESG-related matters.

During the year the Board also approved finanaial, capital, liquidity
and funding plans put forward by management and monitored the
implementation of plans. Further information on the principal
decisions made by the Board during 2022 is located in the section
172 statement on pages 12 to 14.

Directors” emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the bank for 2022,
disclosed in accordance with the Act, are shown in Note b
‘Employee compensation and benefits’.

Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts and are
engaged through letters of appointment. There are no obligations
in the non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment that could
give rise to payments other than fees due or payments for loss of
office.

Board committees

Ihe Board delegates oversight of certain audit, risk, remuneration,
nomination and governance matters to its committees. With the
exception of the Executive Committee which is chaired by the
Chief Executive Officer, each Board committee is chaired by a non-
executive Board member and has a remit to cover specific topics
in accordance with their respective terms of reference approved
by the Board. Only non-executive Directors are members of Board
committees, The Chair of each non-executive Board Committee
reports to the Board on the activities of the Committee since the
previous Board meeting.

Board and Committee effectiveness and
performance

The Board understands the importance of, and benefits that derive
from regular reviews of the effectiveness of the Board and its
committees. An effectiveness review was facilitated by the bank's
Company Secretary in 2022 which included a series of interviews
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with the Directors. Feedback was provided on a number of areas,
including the Board's composition and skills, stakeholder
engagement, the cadence and logistics of Board meetings,
management reporting, Director induction and training, Director
and management engagement and debate, and Board priorities for
2022-23. Outcomes and recommendations were reported to the
Board and an action plan was produced, Work has progressed
during 2022 to address these recommendations.

An annual review of the terms of reference for the Board and its
committees was facilitated by the Corporate Governance and
Secretanat function. This concluded that the Board and its
committees had complied with their respective terms of reference
during 2022. Executive Directors are also subject 1o performance
evaluation which helps to determine the leve! of variable pay they
receive each year. At the date of this report, the following are the
principal Committees of the Board:

Audit Committee
Key Responsibilities

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and has non-
executive responsibility for oversight of financial reporting related
matters, internal controls over financial reporting and
implementation of the group policies and procedures for capturing
and responding to whistleblower concerns.

The committee’s key responsibilities include:

(i) monitoring and assessing the integrity of the financial
statements, formal announcements and supplementary regulatory
information in relation to the bank's financial performance;

() reviewing, as applicable, compliance with accounting
standards, listing rules, and other requirements in relation to
financial reporting;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the relationship with the external
auditor; and

liv) overseeing the work of Internal Audit and moenitoring and
assessing the effectiveness, performance, resourcing,
independence and standing of the function.

The committee has responsibility for the oversight of the bank's
whistleblowing arrangements, and receives regular updates on
matters relating 1o the whistleblowing arrangements that are in
place.

Committee activities during 2022

In addition to significant accounting judgements, key matters
considered by the committee dunng the year were regulatory
reporting and control enhancements, disposal groups, IFRS 17
implementation, the development of chimate-related disclosure,
the bank's financial resources and capital, transformation of the
Finance function, the independence, fees and performance of the
external auditor, PwC UK, and updates on key issues identified by
Internal Audit related to the bank and its subsidiaries.

During the year, the committee dedicated time in overseeing
management’s preparation for the Bank's registration with the
LS. Securities and Exchange Commission ('SEC’) and wider
programme preparation to achieve compliance with the u.s.
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ('SOX’).

The committee also received updates from the Chairs of the audit
committees of key subsidiaries of the Bank, updates from the
external auditor on the progress and findings of their audit, and bi-
annual updates on the tax position of the bank and its subsidiaries.

Operation of the Committee

The committee held seven scheduled meetings during the year
and held separate meetings with each of the Chief Finance Officer,
the Chief Risk Officer, the Head of Internal Audit and
representatives of the external auditor without management
present. An additional meeting was convened in May 2022 to
review the bank's draft SEC registration statement and relevant
documentation prior to the Board’s approval.

The committee meets reqularly with the bank’s senior financial
and Internal Audit management and the external auditors to
consider, among other matters, the bank's financial reporting, the



nature and scope of audit reviews, the effectiveness of the
systems of internal control relating to financial reporting and the
monitoring of the Finance function transformation programme.

The Chief Financial Officer, Financial Controller, Chief Risk Officer,
Head of Internal Audit, and Company Secretary are standing
attendees and regularly attend committee meetings to contribute
their subject matter expertise and insight. Other members of
senior management routinely attended meetings of the
committee. The external auditor attended all meetings.

During 2022, the committee continued to actively engage with the
bank's key subsidiaries and key subsidiary audit committees, with

regular reporting throughout the year.

The key subsidiary audit committee chairs attended and
participated in the April Audit Committee meeting to consider
important HSBC-wide and regional specific matters.

The Chair of the committee regularly meets with the Chair of the
Group Audit Committee ('GAC') to help maintain connectivity with
the Group and develop deeper understanding on judgements
around key matters. Further, from time to time the Chair is invited
to attend meetings of the GAC on relevant topics.

The Chair of the GAC also attended a committee meeting in
November 2022, The committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors. The current members are Andrew Wright
{Chair), Yukiko Omura, and Patrick Clackson.

Significant accounting judgements and related matters considered by the Audit Committee ('AC’) for the year ended 31 December 2022
included:
Key area Action taken

Interim and annual reporting

Disposals -

Expected credit loss i'_EC_L'T

Valuation of financial instruments

Goaing concem

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Appropriateness of provisioning for legal proceedings
and regulatory matters
Hegulato_rv reporting R

IBOR transition

Controls

Tax

Environmental, Social and Governance ('ESG')
Rﬁporling

IFRS 17 |mp}ementatlon

Restructuring provisions

The AC considerad key matters in relation to interim and annual reporting, including changes to
segmental reporting and US filings 20-F and 6-K following the bank's registration at the SEC.

The AC considered the financial and accounting impam; of the plan_ned disposals of the retail

banking business in France, the Greece branch operations and the bank in Hussia. In particular,
the AC considered judgements related to the timing of recognition of assets as held-for-sale, the
re-measurement of those assets and losses arising, which has a smmf cant impact in the year
ended 31 December 2022,

The AC considered key }udgements in relation to ECL, in particu[ar multiple economic scenarios
and post-model adjustments due to economic uncertainty and the Russia-Ukraine war.

The AC considered key valuation metrics and judgements involved in the determination of the fair
value of financial instruments. The AC also considered management’s analysis of exit losses upon
the novation of certain derivative portfolios and the determination that there was insufficient
avidence to support the introduction of fair value adjustments in respect of thesa.

The AC considered a wide range of information relaﬁng to present and pntanti-z_ni ccndﬁions.
uu.iudmg projections for proﬂtabltlt\r, cash fluws, liguidity and capital,

The AC reviewed management 5 penodlc assessmant of wnpa}rment of investments in subsidiaries
and paid particular attention to the sensitivities to cash flow projections and long-term growth rate
and discount rate assumptions. Management assessed that there had been a partial reversal of
impairment of the bank's investment in HBCE in the year ended 31 December 2022, with dus
regard to the planned sale of the retail banking business in France.

The AC received reports from management on the recognition and measurement of provisions and
contingent liabilities for legal proceedings and regulatory matters, including investigations by
regulators and competition and law-enforcement authorities.

The AC reviewed management's afforts to strengthm and simplrfy the end_—t_o end o_pe_ratmg and“
control model, :ncluding |ndlpendam external ra\nsws of key aspects of regulatory reportmg

“The AC considered the 1mp|!catlons of benchmark interest rate reform, Including the l'BCUgnItIQn
and measurement of financial instruments and related disclosures.

The AC considered the financial control environment on an ongoing basis through the year,
reviawing and challenging remediation actions undertaken and enhancemants made. This
included confirmation of mitigating controls where programmes of work had not fully completed
by the year end, Areas of particular focus in 2022 have been Model Risk Governance, controls
over use of external market data, accounting and tax implications of Merger and Acquisition
{'MEA") transactions, general ledger substantiation and Financial Statement Disclosures.

The AC reviewed managemeant’s jt_.ldgement; on the recognition and measurement of deferred tax
assets and liabilities, in particular those arising from the planned sale of retail banking activities in
France, and the accounting and disclosure of retrospective VAT assessmeants issued by HMRC.

The AC considered regulatory developments in ESG Reporting, in particular at 31 December 2022
for bank subsidiarias in the European Union.

The AC reviewed accounting policy Juagements in relation 1o the re retmspecuve implememahon of
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts on 1 January 2023, and preparation of transitional disclosure.

The AC considered key }udgements in relation to restructuring ;:rowslnns. mainly relating to
transformation in Continental Europe and Germany.

Risk Committee
Key Responsibilities

The Risk Cammittee is accountable to the Board and has overall
non-executive responsibility for oversight of risk-related matters

and the risks impacting the bank.
The committee's key responsibilities include:

(i) advising the Board on risk appetite and risk tolerance related

matters;

(ili} overseeing and advising the Board on all risk-related matters,
including financial and non-financial risks and reviewing the
effectiveness of the bank's conduct framework;

(iv) reviewing, challenging and satisfying itself that the bank's
stress testing framework, governance and internal controls are
robust; and

{v) reviewing the effectiveness of the bank's risk management
framework and internal control systems {other than internal
financial controls overseen by the Audit Committee).

(i} reviewing and recommending key regulatory submissions to

the Board;
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Committee activities during 2022

Key matters considered by the committee during the year included
the bank’s approach 1o the financial and non-financial risks in the
context of capital and liquidity, retail, wholesale credit and market
risks including, financial crime and fraud, geopolitical, operational,
people and climate-related risks.

The committee also reviewed and challenged management on key
regulatory processes, including the bank’s internal capital
adequacy assessment process ('ICAAP') and the internal liquidity
adeqguacy assessment process ('ILAAP'), recovery and resolution
plans, the outcome of stress tests {including annual cyclical
scenario, cyber and solvency) undertaken during the year, and the
bank’s capital liquidity and funding plans.

Deep dives on key aspects of the bank’s business were conducted
to consider specific climate risk related matters including the
hank's thermal coal phase-out policy.

The committee worked closely with the [ransformation,
Operational Resilience and Technology Committee during the year
{o ensure appropriate alignment in the review and discussion on
operational resilience and technology risk-related matters.

Operation of the Committee

The committee held eight scheduled meetings during the year. The
Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal
Audit are standing attendees and regularly attend committee
meetings to contribute their subject matter expertise and insight.
The Chair and members of the committee also hold private
meetings with the Chief Risk Officer, following quarterly scheduled
meetings.

The committee reviews and challenges current and forward:
looking risk issues, and the regional senior business leaders are
regularly invited to participate al committee meelings, working
together with functional and regional leaders across all three lines
of defence.

The Chair and members of the committee meet regularly with the
bank's senior financial, risk, internal audit and compliance
management and the external auditors to consider and discuss,
among other matters, specific risk matters and priarities, risk
reports and internal audit reports and the effectiveness of
compliance activities. The Chair meets regularly with the
committee secretary to ensure the committee meets ils
governance responsibilities.

During 2022 the committee continued to actively engage with the
bank's key subsidiaries and key subsidiary risk committees, with
regular reporting from the respective Chairs throughout the year.
The Chair of the committee attended several Group-led meetings
to help promote connectivity, escalation and cascade of important
topics. The committee comprises a majority of independent
non-executive Directors.

The current members are Eric Strutz (Chair), Juliet Ellis and
Andrew Wright.

Transformation, Operational Resilience and
Technology Committee

Key Responsibilities

The Transformation, Operational Resilience and Technology
Committee was established to assist the Board and Risk
Committee with their respective responsibilities in relation to the
bank's transformation strategy, operational resilience, as well as
the governance and oversight of technology. During the year, on
recommendation of the Board, the Group Nomination & Corporate
Governance Committee approved the continuation of the
committee to continue necessary engagement allowing a more
detailed oversight of the matters within its remit.

The committee's key responsibilities include:

(i} reviewing progress of the transformation strategy and the steps
management have taken to manage risk, and to manitor progress
against set objectives;
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(ii) reviewing the effectiveness of governance frameworks to set
and oversee the internal control environment in relation to
technology;

{iii) reviewing regional technology strategy, ensuring it is aligned
with the adopted business strategies of the bank; and

{iv) overseeing and challenging management on execution of
operational resilience objectives and deliverables.

Committee activities during 2022

Key matters considered by the committee during the year included
review and oversight of Information Technology ('IT') and Cloud
strategies and governance, the bank's operating systems,
operational resilience and technology infrastructure, including
operational resilience of critical IT and other business services,
information and eyber security risks, and major IT change
programmes. The committee also reviewed and challenged
management on the progress and associated risks with respect of
the transformation strategy, including transformation governance,
key change programmes and initiatives underway, including those
related to outsourced technology services and meeting regulatory
requirements and expectations,

Operation of the Committee
The committee held seven scheduled meetings during 2022,

The Board Chair, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Information
Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Head of Internal Audit, and Head ot
Strategy and Planning, Chief of Staff (Europe CEQ), are standing
attendees and reqularly attend Committes meetings to contribute
their subject matter expertise and insight.

The current members are Juliet Ellis (Chair), Norma Dove-Edwin,
and Enc Strutz.

Nomination, Remuneration & Governance
Committee

Key Responsibilities

The Nomination, Remuneration & Governance Committee has
responsibility for:

(i) leading the process for Board appointments and for identifying
and nominating, for the approval of the Board, candidates for
appointment to the Board and its committees;

(i) the endorsement of the appointment of individuals to certain
Board and management positions of the bank's subsidiaries,
including proposed fees payable to non-executive Directors on
subsidiary boards;

{iili) reviewing the implementation and appropriateness of the
Group’s director remuneration policy and the remuneration of the
bank's senior executives, including the identification of the
Material Risk Taker population for the purposes of the CRD;

{iv) reviewing and developing the corporate governance
framewaork on behalf of the Board and ensuring it is consistent
with best corporate governance standards and practices while
remaining appropriate to the size, complexity and strategy of the
hank; and

{v) overseeing compliance with the HSBC Group Subsidiary
Accountability Framework ('SAF').

Further information in relation to HSBC's approach to
remuneration for group employees is available in the Director’s
remuneration report on pages 276-278 of HSBC’s Annual Report
and Accounts 2022 available on https:/iwww.hsbe.com/investors/
results-and-announcements/annual-report.

Committee activities during 2022

As a UK regulated subsidiary of HSBC Holdings ple, the bank has
both internal and external responsibilities for succession planning.
During the year the committee undertook a review of its
succession plan and the Board and Board Committee’s
composition in keeping with best practice and applicable policies,
including SAF.



As part of its review, the committee identified opportunities to
further strengthen the skills and experience required for the Board.
The committee commenced a search process to identify a new
non-executive Director for appointment to the Board with a
successful recommendation to the Board for approval secured in
the appointment of Patrick Clackson. Further information in
relation to Board and committee changes throughout the year can
be found on page 95.

Additionally, the committee reviewed and approved an updated
Board Continuity Plan ('"BCP’) which is in place to cover any
unexpected or temporary absence of non-executive Directors who
hold SMF responsibilities in relation to the Bank.

In overseeing compliance with SAF, the committee reviewed of
the Board composition and succession planning for all of the
bank'’s material subsidiaries.

Other activities during the year included, the review of key
remuneration matters for the bank and its subsidiaries in the
context of HSBC's remuneration framework, including variable
and fixed pay allocations, aligned with the bank’s risk appetite,
and in keeping with the bank’s strategy, culture and values, and
long-term interests of the bank.

The committee reviewed the annual pay review outcomes across
the region and received regular updates on relevant subsidiary and
regulatory matters,

Operation of the Committee

The committee held seven scheduled meetings during 2022, with
additional meetings arranged to consider specific matters.

The Head of HR and Head of Performance & Reward attend
committee meetings on a regular basis to contribute their subject
matter expertise and insight. Other senior executives attend
periodically for specific items considered by the committee.

The committee comprises four non-executive Directors. The
current members are: Stephen O'Connor (Chair), Juliet Ellis, Eric
Strutz, and Andrew Wright.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is a committee of the Board and has
overall executive responsibility, under formal delegation, for the
management and day-to-day running of the bank. The Committee
1s accountable to the Board for overseeing the execution of the
bank's strategy.

The purpose of the Committee is to support the Chief Executive
Officer of the bank in the performance of their duties and exercise
of their powers, authorities and discretions in relation to the
management of the bank and its subsidiaries. The committee
meets on a regular basis and is chaired by the Chief Executive
Officer.

During 2022, in addition to its day-to-day oversight of the bank's
operations, the committee reviewed business plans in light of
geopolitical and macroeconomic developments in keeping with
the Bank’'s approved Risk Framewaork and Risk Appetite prior to
formal recommendation to the Board for approval. The committee
remained focused on the Bank's strategic transformation and
corporate restructuring across Europe, including the country exit
of Russia, sale of branch operations in Greece and retail banking
operations in France and the regulatory requirement to establish
an IPU following the UK's departure from the European Union. The
committee is responsible for oversight of the performance across
the bank’s lines of business, review of the bank's financial
performance, cost management, and preparing the bank's forward
looking Financial Resource Plan. The committee received updates
on regulatory remediation programmes and regulatory
engagement themes across the region.

Dividends

Information about dividends paid during the year is provided on
page 20 of the Strategic Report and in Note 8 to the financial
statements.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for the establishment and operation of
effective procedures for the maintenance of a sound system of
internal control and risk management, adequate accounting, and
compliance with statutory and regulatory obligations. The Board
determine the aggregate level and types of risks the bank is willing
to take in achieving its strategic objectives.

To meet this requirement and to discharge its obligations under
the FCA Handbook and the PRA Handbook, procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposal, for maintaining proper accounting records, and for
ensuring the reliability and usefulness of financial information used
within the business or for publication.

These procedures provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement, errors, losses or fraud. They are designed to provide
effective internal control within the group and accord with the
Financial Reporting Council's guidance for Directors issued in
2014 {and subsequent relevant publications), internal control and
related financial and business reporting. The procedures have
been in place throughout the year and up to 20 February 2023, the
date of approval of this Annual Report and Accounts 2022,

The key risk management and internal control procedures include
the following:

* Global principles: The HSBC Group's Global Principles set an
overarching standard for all other policies and procedures and
are fundamental to the Group's risk management structure.
They inform and connect our purpose, values, strategy and risk
management principles, guiding us to do the right thing and
treat our customers and our colleagues fairly at all times.

* Risk management framework ('RMF'): The RMF supports
our Global Principles. It outlines the key principles and practices
that we employ in managing matenal risks. It applies to all
categories of risk and supports a consistent approach in
identifying, assessing, managing and reporting the risks we
accept and incur in our activities.

* Delegation of authority within limits set by the Board:
Subject to certain matters reserved for the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer has been delegated authority limits and
powers within which to manage the day-to-day affairs of the
bank, including the right to sub-delegate those limits and
powers. Each relevant executive has authority within which to
manage the day-to-day affairs of the business or function for
which he or she is accountable. Those individuals are required
to maintain a clear and appropriate apportionment of
significant responsibilities and to oversee the establishment
and maintenance of systems of control that are appropriate to
their business or function. Authorities to enter into credit and
market risk exposures are delegated with limits to line
management of group companies. However, credit proposals
with specified higher-risk characteristics require the
concurrence of the appropriate global function. Credit and
market risks are measured and reported at subsidiary company
level and aggregated for risk concentration analysis on a group-
wide basis.
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» Risk identification and monitoring: Systems and
procedures are in place to identify, assess, control and manitor
the material risk types facing the group as set out in the RMF,
The group’s risk measurement and reporting systems are
designed to help ensure that material risks are captured with all
the attributes necessary to support well-founded decisions, that
those attributes are accurately assessed and that information is
delivered in a timely manner for those risks to be suecessfully
managed and mitigated.

« Changes in market conditions/practices: Processes are in .
place to identify new risks arising from changes in market
conditions/practices or customer behaviours, which could
expose the group to heightened risk of loss or reputational
damage. The group employs a top and emerging risks
framework, which contains an aggregate of all current and
forward-looking risks and enables it to take action that either
prevents them materialising or limits their impact

« Responsibility for risk management: All employees are
responsible for identifying and managing risk within the scope
of their role as part of the three lines of defence model. This s
an activity-based model to delineate management
accountabilities and responsibilities for risk management and .
the control environment. The second line of defence sets the
policy and guidelines for managing specific areas, provides
advice and guidance in relation to the risk, and challenges the
first line of defence (the risk owners) on effective risk
management.

« The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee oversight for
the implementation of the group’s policies and procedures for .
capluring and responding to whistleblower concerns, ensuring
confidentiality, protection and fair treatment of whistleblowers,
and receiving reports arising from the operation of those
policies as well as ensuring arrangements are in place for
independent investigation.

* Strategic plans: Strategic plans are prepared for global
husinesses, global functions and geographical regions within
the framework of the HSBC Group's overall strategy. The bank
also prepares and adopts a Financial Resource Plan, which is
informed by detailed analysis of risk appetite, describing the
types and quantum of risk that the bank is prepared to take in .
executing its strategy and sets out the key business initiatives
and the likely financial effects of those initiatives.

¢ The effactiveness of the group's system of risk management
and internal control is reviewed reqularly by the Board, the Risk
Committee and the Audit Committee.

* During 2022, the group continued to focus on operational
resilience and invest in the non-financial risk infrastruciure.
There was a particular focus on material and emerging risks
with progress made enhancing the end-to-end risk and contiol
assessment process, The Risk Committee, supported by the
TRT, and the Audit Committee received confirmation that
executive management continued to take efforts to effect the
necessary actions to remedy any failings or weaknesses
identified through the operation of the group's framework of
controls,

internal control over financial reporting

The key risk management and internal control procedures over
financial reporting include the following:

= Entity level controls {'ELC'): The primary mechanism through
which comfort over risk management and internal control
systems is achieved, is through assessments of the
affectiveness of controls to manage risk, and the reporting of
risk and control issues on a regular basis through the various
risk management and risk governance forums. ELCs are a
defined suite of internal controls that have a pervasive influence
over the entity as a whole,
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They include controls related to the control environment, such
as the bank's values and ethics, the promotion of effective risk
management and the overarching governance exercised by the
Board and its non-executive committees. The design and
operational effectiveness of ELCs are assessed annually as part
of the assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls over
financial reporting. If issues are significant to the group, they
are notified to the Risk Committee, and also to the Audit
Committee if concerning financial reporting matters.

Process level transactional controls: Key process level
controls that mitigate risk of financial rmisstatement are
identified, recorded and monitored in accordance with the risk
frameworlk. This includes the identification and assessment of
relevant control issues against which action plans are tracked
through to remediation. Further details on the group’s approach
to risk management can be found on page 26. The Audit
Committee has continued to receive regular updates on HSBC's
ongoing activities for improving the effective oversight of end-
ta-end business processes and management continues to
identify opportunities for enhancing key controls, such as
through the use ol automation technologies.

External Reporting Forum: The External Reporting Forum
reviews financial reporting disclosures to be made by the bank
for aceuracy and completeness. The integrity of disclosures is
underpinned by structures and processes within the group's
Finance and Risk functions thal support ngorous analytical
review of financial reporting and the maintenance of proper
accounting records.

Disclosure Committee: Chaired by the Chief Financial Officer,
the committee supports the discharge of the bank’s obligations
under relevant legislation and regulation including the

Furopean Union’s Market Abuse Regulation ('"EU MAR'), as
amended by the Market Abuse {Amendment) (EU Exit)
Regulations 2019, the New York Stock Exchange's Listed
Company Manual, U.S. Securities law and the rules and
regulations of the SEC, and also any other listing and disclosure
rules of the markets and exchanges on which the bank’s
financial instruments are listed, including any other
requirements that shall apply from time to time,

Financial reporting: The group’s financial reporting process is
controlled using documented accounting policies and reporting
formats, supported by detailed instructions and guidance on
reporting requirements, issued to all reporting entities within
the group in advance of each reporting period end. The
submission of financial information from each reporting entity
is supported by a certification by the responsible financial
officer and analytical review procedures at subsidiary and
group levels.

Subsidiary certifications: Certifications are provided to the
Audit Committee and the Risk Committee (full and half yearly)
and to the Nomination, Remuneration and Governance
Committee (annually) from the audit, risk and remuneration
committees of key material subsidiary companies confirming
amongst other things that:

—  Audit - the financial statements of the subsidiary have been
prepared in accordance with group policies, present fairly
the state of affairs of the subsidiary and are prepared on a
going concern hasis;

Risk - the risk committee of the subsidiary has carried out
its oversight activities consistent with and in alignment to
the BMF; and

—  Remuneration — the remuneration comimittee of the
subsidiary has discharged its obligations in overseeing the
implementation and operation of HSBC's Group
Remuneration Policy.



Employees

Health and safety

We are committed to providing a safe and healthy working
enviranment for everyone. We have adopted global policies,
mandatory procedures, and incident and information reporting
systems across the organisation that reflect our core values and
are aligned to international standards. Our global health and safety
performance is subject to ongoing monitoring and assurance.

QOur Chief Operating Officers have overall responsibility for
engendering a positive health and safety culture and ensuring that
global policies, procedures and systems are put into practice
locally. They also have responsibility for ensuring all local legal
requirements are met.

We delivered a range of programmes in 2022 to help us
understand and manage our health and safety risks:

We continued to provide enhancements to our workplaces to
minimise the risks of Covid-19, including enhancing cleaning,
improved ventilation and social distancing measures

We updated our advice and risk assessment methodology on
working from home, providing more awareness and best
practices on good ergonomics and wellbeing to be adopted as
we transitioned to new ways of working upon return to the
office

We delivered health and safety training and awareness to
employees and contractors ensuring roles and responsibilities
were clear and understood, especially in higher risk
environments

We completed the annual safety inspection on all of our
buildings, to ensure we were meeting our standards and
continuously improving our safety performance

We continued to focus on enhancing the safety culture in our
supply chain through our SAFER Together programme,
covering the five key elements of best practice safety culture,
including speaking up about safety, and recognising excellence

Qur Safety Climate Survey continued to show high results and
recognised that we encourage suggestions on how to improve
health and safety and have good processes in place to
communicate health and safety messages

Our Eat Well Live Well programme continued to be rolled out,
notably in France and Germany, educating and informing our
colleagues on how to make healthy food and drink choices. We
enhanced the programme to provide digital educational and
information resources, including a suite of videos and recipe
ideas and to provide healthy vending options.

Protection of our colleagues and operations is of critical
importance and we have effective controls in place to protect
our people from natural disasters {i.e. storms and earthquakes).
In 2022, there were 38 named storms that passed over 1,667 of

our buildings, resulting in 0 injuries or material business impact.

Employee health and safety

2022 2021 2020

Number of workplace fatalities - —
Number of major injuries to employees’ - 2 3
All injury rate per 100,000 employees 49 35 130

i

Fractures, dislocation, concussion, hospitalisation, unconsciousness.

Diversity and Inclusion

Our purpose, ‘Opening up a world of opportunity’, explains why
we exist as an organisation and is the foundation of our diversity
and inclusion strategy. Promoting diversity and fostering inclusion
contributes to our ‘energise for growth' priority. By valuing
difference, we can make use of the unique expertise, capabilities,
breadth and perspectives of our colleagues to the benefit of our
customers. To achieve progress, we are focused on specific
region-wide priorities for which we hold senior executives

accountable. We are pleased to report on key progress made in
2022:

Achievements

* \We have set up a HSBC Bank plc Diversity and Inclusion
Council, chaired by the HSBC Bank plc CEO and consisting of
the European Executive Committee to reinforce our
commitments, engage more closely with our Employee
Resources Groups and track progress and accountability.

s Throughout 2022, we arranged multiple events and
conferences to support our colleagues across our European
countries, including ethnicity conferences attended by over 600
colleagues, 6 disability awareness events and six ethnicity
exchanges in French and English,

* We have continued supporting colleagues through our ERGs;
we now have 47 ERGs in 20 markets across six diversity
strands.

* \We have created D&l objectives for European people
managers,

* Focus on developing our middle management female
colleagues through our flagship programmes 'uGrow' and
'Accelerated Female Leaders'.

* \We have a black heritage action plan in place to support our
ethnicity goals, including a Black Heritage Sponsorship
Programme being run in Global Banking and Markets.

* 3000+ hours spent on Inclusion Learning across the region

* 47 9% of employees in the UK, Channels Islands and Isle of
Man and South Africa have declared their ethnicity in our 'HR
Direct' system

Gender diversity statistics

Our overall female representation is improving and we are
committed to building a strong pipeline of female talent to
improve gender balance in senior leadership across Europe. By the
end of 2022, we had reached 24.6% and are committed to doing
more going forward.

Female representation by management level:
All grades —51.9%

GCB 6-8 Clerical grades - 66.1%

GCB 4-5 Management - 43.7%

GCB 0-3 Senior management — 24.6%

Employment of people with a disability

We strongly believe in providing equal opportunities for all
employees. The employment of people with a disability is included
in this commitment. The recruitment, training, development and
promotion of people with a disability are based on the aptitudes
and abilities of the individual. Should employees become disabled
during their employments with us, efforts are made to continue
their employment. Where necessary, we will provide appropriate
training, facilities and reasonable equipment. For example, we
recently established a telephone platform for instant sign
translation for our deaf colleagues in France where the sign
language translators exchange sign language by video.

A number of countries have dedicated teams to ensure that
barriers to work are removed for colleagues. Our Employee
Resource Groups ('ERG'), supported by HR and business
leadership are doing an important job of breaking down barriers.
They offer a space for discussion between those with a disability
and their allies for exchanges of inclusive best practices.

Continuous work is done to ensure individual support is provided
to make home office adjustments.

Learning and talent development

We aim to build a dynamic environment where our colleagues can
develop skills and undertake experiences that help them fulfil their
potential. Our approach helps us to meet our strategic priorities
and support our colleagues’ career goals.
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We expect all colleagues, regardless of their contract type, to
complete global mandatory training each year. This training plays
a critical role in shaping our culture, ensuring a focus on the issues
that are fundamental to our work — such as sustainability, financial
cnime risk, and our intolerance of bullying and harassment. New
joiners attend our Global Discovery programme designed to build
their knowledge of the organisation and engage them with our
purpose, values and strategy.

HSBC University remains our home for skills development with
access 1o face to face training and an extensive catalogue of
digital content from partners such as Linkedln Learning, Harvard
Business Review podcast and Microsoft Learn. Powered by
Degreed, our HSBC University platform provides tailored content
aligned to employees chosen skills and development areas. Our
Leadership development partners include Imperial College and
London Business Schools who we work with on topics of strategic
importance. For example, we launched the HSBC University
Sustainability Academy in October 2022 providing a wealth of
knowledge articles and structured learning pathways to grow
awareness of climate and wider sacial sustainability matters that
HSBC and its employees can play a role in resolving.

My HSBC Career Portal is also available to all our employees
which offers career development information and resources 1o
help colleagues manage the various stages of their career, from
joining through to career progression. However, we also recognise
that most development happens while our colleagues work,
through regular coaching, feedback, and performance
management and we will extend the use of the HSBC Talent
Marketplace platform in Europe m 2023 (the platform is already
live in the UK). This will connect our employees to ‘on the job’
development opportunities across the HSBC Group, by means of
matching individuals existing skills and career aspirations to live
projects within the Group. HSBC Europe will also be able to call
upon talent that exists across the Group, to supplement its own
personnel, in the development of local initiatives and projects.

Employee relations

We consult with and, where appropriate, negotiate with employee
representative bodies where we have them. We also aim to
maintain well-developed communications and consultation
programmes with all employee representative bodies and there
have been no material disruptions to our operations from labour
disputes during the past five years.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors are not aware that there is any relevant audit
information (as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which the
bank’s auditors are unaware and processes are in place to ensure
that the bank's auditors are aware of any relevant audit
information.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ('PwC’) are the external auditors to
the bank. PwC has expressed its willingness to continue in office
and the Board recommends that PwC be re-appointed as the
bank's auditors. A resolution proposing the re-appointment of
PwC as the bank's auditors, and giving authority to the Audit
Committee to determine its remuneration, will be submitted to the
forthcoming AGM.

Branches

HSBC Bank plc provides a wide range of banking and financial
services through 20 markets. HSBC Bank plc is simplifying its
operating model to one integrated business supporting a
wholesale banking hub for the EU in Paris and a wholesale
banking hub for western markets in London. Further information
on the bank’s branches are located in "HSBC in Europe’ on page 6.
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Disclosures required pursuant to the Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 as updated by
Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations
2018 can be found on the following pages:

Engagement with employees (5ch.7 Para 11 and 11A
2008/2018 Regs), 5172 Statement)

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a
business relationship with the bank (Sch.7 Para 11B
2008 Regs)

Policy concerning the employment of disabled persons
(Sch.7 Para 10 2008 Regs)

Financial Instruments (Sch.7 Para 6 2008 Regs)

Pages 12 and 13

Pages 12 and 13

Page 101
Pages 36 to 75

Note 14, Pages
158 10 164

Hedge accounting policy (Sch.7 Para 6 2008 Regs)

Articles of Association, Conflicts of interest
and indemnification of Directors

The bank's Articles of Association gives the Board authority to
approve Directors’ conflicts and potential conflicts of interest. The
Board has adopted policies and procedures for the approval of
Directors’ conflicts or potential conflicts of interest. On
appointment, new Directors are advised of the process for dealing
with conflicts and a review of those conflicts that have been
authorised, and the terms of those authorisations, is routinely
undertaken by the Board.

The Articles of Association of the bank contain a qualifying third-
party indemnity provision, which entitles Directors and other
officers to be indemnified out of the assets of the bank against
claims from third parties in respect of certain liabilities. HSBC
Group has granted, by way of deed poll, indemnities to the
Directors, including former Directors who retired during the year,
against certain habilities arising in connection with their position
as a Director of any Group company, including the bank and its
subsidiaries. Directors are indemnified to the maximum extent
permitted by law.

The indemnities that constitute a 'qualifying third-party indemnity
provision’, as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006,
remained in force for the whole of the financial year (or, in the
case of Directors appointed during 2022, from the date of their
appointment). The deed poll is available Tor inspection at the
registered office of HSBC Holdings plc.

Additionally, Directors have the benefit of Directors” and Officers’
liability insurance. Qualifying pension scheme indemnities have
also been granted to the Trustees of the Group's pension schemes,
which were in force for the whole of the financial year and remain
in force as at the date of this report.

Research and Development

In the ordinary course, the lines of business develop new products
and services.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

In its assessment of events after the balance sheet date, the group
has considered and concluded that there are no events requiring
adjustment or disclosures in the financial statements.



Statement on going concern

The Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis. In making their going concern
assessment, the Directors have considered a wide ra nge of detailed information relating to present and potential conditions, including
profitability, cash flows, capital requirements and capital resources.

Further information relevant to the assessment is provided in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors, in particular:
* adescription of the group’s strategic direction;

* asummary of the group's financial performance and a review of performance by business:

* the group’s approach to capital management and its capital position: and

* the top and emerging risks facing the group, as appraised by the Directors, along with details of the group's approach to mitigating
those risks and its approach to risk management in general,

In addition, the objectives, policies and processes for managing credit, iquidity and market risk are set out in the ‘Report of the Directors:
Risk’.

The Report of the Directors comprising pages 26 to 102 was approved by the Board on 20 February 2023 and is signed on its behalf:

By order of the Board

David Watts

Director

HSBC Bank plc

20 February 2023

Registered number 00014259
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Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparnng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
reqgulation.

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared
the group and the company financial statements in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards. In preparing the
group and company financial statements, the directors have also elected to comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IFFSs as issued by |ASB).

The group and company have also prepared financial statements in accordance with international financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing the financial statements,
the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards, international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
to Regulation {EC) No 1606/2002 as it apphes in the European Union and IFRSs issued by IASB have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

o prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and company will
continue in business,

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group’s and
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are responsible for the mainienance and integrity of the company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations
tach of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in Corporate Governance Report confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

» the group and company financial staterments, which have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards, international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union and IFRSs issued by IASB, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the group and company,
and of the loss of the group; and

e the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the group and
company, together with & description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

On behalf of the Board
David Watts

Director

HSBC Bank plc

20 February 2023

Registered number 00014259
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of HSBC Bank plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, HSBC Bank plc's group financial statements and company financial statements (the 'financial statements');

* give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group’s loss and
the group's and company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Accounts 2022 (the 'Annual Report'), which comprise:
* the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

* the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended:

* the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

* the HSBC Bank plc balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

¢ the HSBC Bank plc statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ the HSBC Bank plc statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

* the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Certain notes to the financial statements have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial
statements. These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are identified as '(Audited)’. The relevant disclosures are
included in the Risk review section on pages 26 to 93.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Separate opinion in relation to international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union

As explained in note 1.1(a) to the financial statements, the group and company, in addition to applying UK-adopted international
accounting standards, have also applied international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as
it applies in the European Union.

In our opinion, the group and company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international financial
reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB

As explained in note 1.1(a) to the financial statements, the group and company, in addition to applying UK-adopted international
accounting standards, have also applied international financial reporting standards ('IFRSs') as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ('IASB’).

In our opinion, the group and company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as issued by the
IASB.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) ('ISAs (UK)'), International Standards on Auditing
issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board ('ISAs’) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) and
ISAs are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Iindependence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and the International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by either the FRC's Ethical Standard or Article 5(1)
of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 were not provided.

Other than those disclosed in note 8, we have provided no non-audit services to the company or its controlled undertakings in the period
under audit.
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Our audit approach
Overview
Audit scope

We performed audits of the complete financial information of two components, namely the UK non-ring-fenced bank and HSBC
Continental Europe ['HBCE'). For five further components, specific audit procedures were performed over selected significant account
balances and financial statement note disclosures.

Key audil matters

e Expected credit losses ('ECL’) impairment of loans and advances {(group and company)

* Held for sale accounting (group)

* Recognition of deferred tax assets (group); and

o |mpairment of investment in subsidiaries (company)

Materiality

e Overall group materiality: £230 million (2021: £218 million) based on 1% of Tier 1 capital.

o Overall company materiality: £133 million {2021: £140 million) based on 1% of Tier T capital.

« Performance materiality: £172 million (2021: £164 million) (group) and £89 million (2027: £105 million) {company).
The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined matenality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements. In
particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that
involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors' professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed nisks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

This 1s not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Held for sale accounting (group) is a new key audit matter this year. Valuation of financial instruments {group and company|, which was
a key audit matter last year, is no longer included because the risk is reduced due to a reduction in the size of the level 3 asset backed
securities portfolio, resulting in a lower risk of matenal misstatement. Otherwise, the key audit matters below are consistent with last
year.

Expected credit losses — Impairment of loans and advances (group and company)

Nature of the key audit matter

Determining expected credit losses ('ECL') involves management judgement and is subject to a high degree of astimation uncertainty.

Management makes various assumptions when estimating ECL. The significant assumptions that we focused on in our audit included those with greater
levels of management judgement and for which variations had the most significant impact on ECL. These included assumptions made in determining
forward looking economic scenarios and their probability weightings (specifically the central and downside scenarios given these have the most material
impact on ECL) and estimating expected cash flows and collateral valuations 1o assess the ECL of credit impaired wholesale exposures.

The level of estimation uncertainty and judgement has remained high during 2022 as a result of the uncertain macroeconomic and geopolitical
environment, high levels of inflation and a rising global interest rate environment. This leads to uncertainty around judgements made in determining the
soverity and probability weighting of macroeconomic variable forecasts across the differant economic scenarios used in ECL maodaels, and in the estimation
of expected cash flows and collateral valuations on credit impaired stage 3 exposures.

Management makes other assumptions which are less judgemental or for which variations have a less significant impact on ECL. These assumptions
include:

+ The methodalogies used in quantitative scorecards [or determining customer risk ratings {'CRRs’);

» Model methodologies themselves; and

« Quantitative and qualitative criteria used to assess significant increases in cradit nisk.

Matters discussed with the Audit Committee

We held discussions with the Audit Committee covering governance and controls over ECL. We discussed a number of areas including:

*  The severity of macroeconomic scenarios, and their relaled probability weightings;

e The valuation of credit impaired exposures, with focus on assumptions made in the recoverability of significant wholesale exposures; and
*  The disclosures made in refation to ECL.
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How our audit addrassed the Key Audit Matter

We assessed the design and effectiveness of governance and controls over the estimation of ECL. We observed management's review and challenge in
governance forums for (1) the determination of macroecenomic scenarios and their probability weightings and (2) the assessment of ECL for Wholesale
exposures, including the assessment of ECL calculated on the largest credit-impaired stage 3 exposures.

We also tested controls over;

* The input of critical data into source systems and the flow and transformation of critical data from source systems to impairment modeals and
management judgemental adjustments;

* Credit reviews that determine CRRs for wholesale customers;,

* Independent model validation and monitoring;

* The ealculation and approval of management judgemental adjustments to modelled outcomaes;

*  The identification of credit-impairment triggers; and

* The caloulation and approval of significant individual impairments relating to the largest wholesale credit-impaired exposures.

We involved our economic experts in assessing the significant assumptions made in determining the severity and probability weighting of macroeconomic
forecasts. These assessments considered the sensitivity of ECL to variations in the severity and probability waeighting of macroeconomic forecasts. We
involved our modelling experts in assessing the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and methodologies used for models and independantly re-
performed the calculations for a sample of those models. We further considered whether the judgements made in selecting the significant assumptions
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias,

In addition, we performed substantive testing over;

* the compliance of ECL methodologias and assumptions with the requirements of IFRS 9

* the appropriateness and application of the quantitative and qualitative criteria used 1o assess significant increases in credit risk;

= asample of critical data used in the year end ECL calculation;

* asample of CRRs applied to wholesale exposures; and

* asample of calculations made in estimating expected cash flows for certain credit-impaired wholesale exposures.

We evaluated and tested the Credit Risk disclosures made in the financial statements.

Relevant references in the Annual Report and Accounts 2022

* Measurement uncertainty and sensitivity analysis of ECL estimates, page 47.

* Audit Committee Report, page 97.

*  Cradit risk, page 36,

» Note 1.2{i) Impairment of amortised cost and FVOCI financial assets, page 129,

Recognition of deferred tax assets (group)

Nature of the koy audit matter

Recognition of deferred tax assets ('DTAs') relies on an assessment of the availability and timing of future deferred tax liabilities and taxable profits against
which to recognise accumulated tax losses.

Management judgement is required when assessing whether a defarred tax asset should be recognised, particularly when an entity has a history of recent
losses and convincing evidence of future taxable profits is required. Judgements include assumptions regarding the forecast cash flows, determination of
risk adjustments to such cash flows and the timing of the reversal of temporary differences.

Management performed an assessment of the recoverability of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 and an additional deferred tax asset of £288
million has been recorded in HBCE.

Matters discussed with the Audit Committes

We discussed with the audit committee the key judgements made by management in assessing the recoverability of DTAs. We alsa discussed the
appropriateness of the disclosures made in the annual report,

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of controls over deferred tax asset recognition.

With the support of our tax specialists we assessed the viability of management’s plans to recover deferred tax assets.

We tested key inputs into the deferred tax recognition model, including forecast cash flows to approved plans and their consistency with other judgements.
We challenged management on their methodology and underlying assumptions in arriving at their judgements, including in relation to availability of
convincing other evidence of future taxable profits and determination of risk adjustments applied to those forecast taxable profits, In assessing these
judgements we considered the historic taxable profits and losses and the evidence provided to support the judgement that the criteria for recognition had
been reached,

We challenged the achievability of management's forecast taxable profits, considering the achievement of historic forecasts and assessing the sensitivity of
forecasts to reasonable variations in significant assumptions. We also evaluated assumptions made over the future reversal of deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

We evaluated and tested the disclosures made in the financial statements

Relevant references in the Annual Report and Accounts 2022

* Audit Committea Report, page 97.
*  Note 1.2{l) Tax, page 133
* Note 7: Tax, page 143
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Held for sale accounting (group)

Nature of the key audit matter

The group has agreements to sell a number of businesses as part of executing its strategy. This has resulted in £21.2 billion of assets and £24.7 hillion of
liabilities being classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2022, in relation to businesses in France, Russia and Greece. In addition to the assets and
liabilities classified as held for sale, a pre-tax loss of £1.7 billion has also been recognised in 2022 in relation to the sale of the business in France.

for the assets and liabilities to ba classified as held for sale, the sale neads to be considered highly probable and expected to complete within 12 months of
the date of classification. We focused our audit on the areas wilh greater levels of management judgement relating to the highly probable assessment
including the expected timing of completion, the approprialeness of disclosures relating to the highly probable assessment and the loss recognised in
relation to the sale of business in France.

Matters discussed with the Audit Commitien

Wa discussed with the Audit Committee the judgements made by management in determining if the highly probable threshold were met as al
31 December 2022. Wae also discussed the appropriateness of the disclosure made in the Annual Report which explained how management had concluded
that transactions met the highly probable threshold as at 31 December 2022.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We tested governance and controls in place over the management process 10 determine if the highly probable threshold had been met on assets and
liahilities classified as held for sale.

We assessed the key judgments made by management to determine whether the highly probable threshold was met as at 31 December 2022, including
their assessment of remaining actions to complete the transaction, any requlatory requirements that need to be met, and the likalihood and expected
liming of the transactions being approved by relevant regulators and shareholders.

We also tested the completeness and accuracy of the assets and liabilities that were classified as held for sale and the loss on sale recognised in relation 1o
the French business. We evaluated and tested the disclosures made in the Annual Report in relation to assets and liabilities classified as held for sale,

Relevant references in the Annual Report and Accounts 2022

« Audit Committee Report, page 97.
s MNote 1.2{o}: Critical accounting estimales and judgements, page 134.
o Note 34: Assets held for sale and liabilities of disposal groups held for sale, page 186

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries (company)

Nature of the key audit matter

Management reviewed investments in subsidiaries for indicators of impairment or reversal of impairment previously recordad as at 31 December 2022,
Where indicators were identified management estimated the recoverable amount using a value in use ('VIU') model. Management's assessment resulted in
a partial reversal of an impairment charge of £2 billion in relation to the investment in HECE. This resulted in investment in subsidiaries of £10.6 billion at
31 December 2022,

The methodology used to estimate the recoverable amount is dependent on various assumptions, both short term and long term in nature. These
assumptions, which are subject to estimation uncertainty, are derived from a combination of management’s judgement, experts engaged by management
and market data. The significant assumptions that we focused our audit on were those with greater levels of management judgement and for which
variations had the most significant impact on the recoverable amount. Specifically, these included forecast cash flows for 2023 o 2027, regulatory capital
requirements, long term growth rates and discount rates,

Matters discussad with the Audit Committes

W discussed the partial reversal of the impairment charge for HBCE, the appropriateness of methodologies used and significant assumptions with the
audit committee, giving consideration to the macroeconomic outlook and HSBC's strategy. We considered reasonable possible alternatives for significant
assumptions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Mattor

We tested controls in place over significant assumptions and the model used to determine the recaverable amounts, We assessed the appropriateness of
the methodology used, and tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculations, to estimata the recoverable amounts. In respect of the significant
assumptions, our testing included the following:

« Challenging the achievability of management’s business plan and the prospects for HSBC's businesses, as well as considering the achievement of
historic forecasts;

« QObtaining and evaluating evidence relating to significant assumptions, from a combination of listoric experience and external market and other
financial information;

»  Agsessing whether the cash flows included in the model wore in accordance with the relevant accounting standard;
«  Assessing the sensitivity of the VIU to reasonable variations in significant assumptions, hoth individually and in aggregate; and

« Detarmining a reasonable range for the discount rate used within the model, with the assistance of pur valuation experts, and comparing it to the
discount rate used by management,

We evaluated and tested the disclosures made in the financial statements in relation lo investment in subsidiaries.

Reluvant refersnces In the Annual Report and Accounts 2022

e Audit Committee Report, page 57.
« Nate 1.2(a} Consolidation and related policies, page 126,
* Note 18: Investment in subsidiaries, page 166.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in
which they operate.

The risks that HSBC faces are diverse, with the interdependencies between them being numerous and complex. In performing our risk
assessment we engaged with a number of stakeholders to ensure we appropriately understood and considered these risks and their
interrelationships. This included stakeholders within HSBC and our own experts within PwC. This engagement covered external factors
across the geopolitical, macroeconomic and regulatory and accounting landscape, the impact of climate change risk as well as the
internal environment at HSBC, driven by strategy and transformation.

We evaluated and challenged management's assessment of the impact of climate change risk including their conclusion that there is no
material impact on the financial statements. In making this evaluation we considered management's use of stress testing and scenario
analysis to arrive at the conclusion that there is no material impact on the financial statements. We considered management's
assessment on the areas in the financial statements most likely to be impacted by climate risk, including: the impact on ECL on loans and
advances to customers, for both physical and transition risk; the forecast cash flows from management's five year business plan and
long term growth rates used in estimating recoverable amounts as part of impairment assessments of investments in subsidiaries; the
impact of climate related terms on the solely payments of principal and interest test for classification and measurement of loans and
advances to customers; and climate risks relating to contingent liabilities as HSBC faces increased reputational, legal and regulatory risk
as it progresses towards its climate ambition.

Using our risk assessment, we tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough wark to be able to give an opinion on
the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate.

HSBC Bank plc is structured into five divisions being Markets & Securities Services, Global Banking, GBM Other, Commercial Banking
and Wealth and Personal Banking, which are supported by a Corporate Centre. The divisions operate across a number of operations,
subsidiary entities and branches (‘components’) throughout Europe. Within the group's main consolidation and financial reporting
system, the consolidated financial statements are an aggregation of the components. Each component submits their financial
information to the group in the form of a consolidation pack.

In establishing the overall approach to the group and company audit, we scoped using the balances included in the consolidation pack.
We determined the type of work that needed to be performed over the components by us, as the group engagement team, or auditors
within PwC UK and from other PwC network firms operating under our instruction (‘component auditors’).

As a result of our scoping, for the group we determined that audits of the complete financial information of the UK non-ring-fenced bank
('UK NRFB') and HBCE were necessary, owing to their financial significance. We instructed component auditors, PwC UK and PwC
France to perform the audits of these components. Our interactions with component auditors included regular communication
throughout the audit, including the issuance of instructions, a review of working papers relating to the key audit matters and formal
clearance meetings. The group audit engagement partner was also the partner on the audit of the UK NRFB significant component.

We then considered the significance of other components in relation to primary statement account balances and note disclosures. In
doing this we also considered the presence of any significant audit risks and other qualitative factors (including history of misstatements
through fraud or error). For five components, specific audit procedures were performed over selected significant account balances. For
the remainder, the risk of material misstatement was mitigated through group audit procedures including testing of entity level contrals
and group and company level analytical review procedures,

Certain group-level account balances were audited by the group engagement team.
Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements - group Financial statements - company

Ovarall materiality £230 million (2021: £218 million). £133 million (2021: £140 million).

How we determined it 1% of Tier 1 capital 1% of Tier 1 capital

Rationale for benchmark applied  Tier 1 capital is used as a benchmark as it is considered to  Tier 1 capital is used as a benchmark as it is considered 1o
be a key driver of HSBC Bank plc's decision making be a key driver of HSBC Bank plc's decision making
process and has been a primary focus for regulators. process and has been a primary focus for regulators.

Tier 1 capital was also used as the benchmark in the prior year. The basis for determining materiality was re-evaluated and we considered
other benchmarks, such as profit before tax. Tier 1 capital is a common benchmark for wholly owned banking subsidiaries, because of
the focus on financial stability. Tier 1 capital was determined to continue to be an appropriate benchmark given the importance of this
metric to the HSBC Bank plc decision making process and to principal users of the financial statements, including the ultimate holding
company HSBC Holdings plc.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group materiality. The range
of materiality allocated across components was £8 million to £230 million. Certain components were audited to a local statutory audit
materiality that was also less than our overall group materiality.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of our audit and the
nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for example in determining sample sizes.
Our performance materiality was 75% (2021: 75%) of overall materiality, amounting to £172 million (2021: £164 million) for the group
financial statements and £99 million (2021: £105 million)for the company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk assessment and
aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our normal range was appropriate.
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We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £11 million (group
audit) (2021: £11 million) and £6 million (company audit) (2021: £7 million) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our
view, warranted reporting for gualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group’s and the company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:

e Perfarming a risk assessment to identify factors that could impact the going concern basis of accounting, including both internal risks
{i.e., strategy execution) and external risks (i.e., macroeconomic conditions).

« Understanding and evaluating the group and company's financial forecasts and stress testing of liquidity and regulatory capital,
including the severity of the stress scenarios that were used.

s Understanding and evaluating credit agency ratings and actions.
« Reading and evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures made in the financial statements in relation to going concern.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statemants, we have concluded that the directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements 1s appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinton on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statemants or aur knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required
to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
ather information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conelude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Report of the Directors, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to reporl certain opinions and matters
as described below.

Strategic Report and Report of the Directors

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of tha audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Report of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Report of the Directors.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether Lhe financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ repart that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) and 1SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to Financial Conduct Authority's ('FCA') regulations, the Prudential Regulation Authority's ('PRA’) regulations, UK tax legislation
and equivalent local laws and regulations applicable to other countries in which the company operates, and we considered the extent to
which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.
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We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006.
We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of
override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or
reduce costs, creation of fictitious transactions to hide losses or to improve financial performance, and management bias in accounting
estimates. The group engagement team shared this risk assessment with the component auditors so that they could include appropriate
audit procedures in response to such risks in their work. Audit procedures performed by the group engagement team and/or component
auditors included:

* Review of correspondence with and reports to the regulators, including the PRA and FCA;

* Review of reporting to the Audit Committee and Risk Committee in respect of compliance and legal matters;

* Review of a sample of legal correspondence with legal advisors;

* Enquiries of management and review of internal audit reports in so far as they related to the financial statements:
* Obtaining legal confirmations from legal advisors relating to material litigation and compliance matters;

* Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in particular in relation to
the determination of fair value for certain financial instruments, the determination of expected credit losses, impairment assessments
of investments in subsidiaries and recognition of deferred tax assets;

* Obtaining confirmations from third parties to confirm the existence of a sample of transactions and balances; and

* Identifying and testing journal entries meeting specific fraud criteria, including those posted with certain descriptions, posted and
approved by the same individual, backdated journals or posted by infrequent and unexpected users.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above, We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also,
the risk of not detecting & material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing
techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We
will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to
enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements in accordance with 1SAs (UK) is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities, This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matarial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s and company's internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group's and
company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the group
and company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group and company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit apinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we idenitify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
« we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the directors on 31 March 20156 to audit the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is
eight vears, covering the years ended 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2022.

Other matter

As required by the Financial Conduct Autharity Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule 4.1.14R, these financial statements form part
of the ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the National Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduet Authority in accordance
with the ESEF Regulatory Technical Standard ('ESEF RTS’). This auditors’ report provides no assurance over whether the annual financial
report has been prepared using the single electronic format specified in the ESEF RTS.

Lawrence Wilkinson

{Senior Statutery Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

20 February 2023
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Financial statements

Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 December .
2022 2021 2020
Niotes” B £m fm fm
Net interest income ) 1,904 1,754 1,898
interest incoma’ | 6,535 3.149 4,086
interest oxpense’ | (4,631) (1,395) 12,188)
Net fee income : 1,261 . 1413 1,400
fee income | 2,606 2,706 2,674
foe expanse (1,345) {1 ,2_93” (1,274)
Net incame from financial instruments held for trading or managed on a fair value basis d 2,875 1,733 1.758
Net (expense)! incame from assats and liabililies of Insurance businesses, including related derivatives, measured at
{air value through profit or loss i (1,369) 1,214 254
Changes in fair value of lang-lerm debt and related denvatives a 102 {Qi 17
Changes in fair value of other financial instruments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss i 143 483 285
Gains less losses from financial investments (60) 60 .95
Net insurance premium incarme 4 1,787 1,906 1,658
(Losses)/gains recognised on Assets held for sele’ (1.947) 67 —
Other nperating income 356 527 417
Total operating income — - B 5,052 49,159 7.683
Met insurance claims, benefits paid and movement m liabilities 1o pohcyholdars 4 (406) 3,039) {1.783)
Net operating income before change in expecte d credit | and other credit impairment charges® 4,646 6,120 5,900
Change in expected credit losses and other credit impairment charges (222) 174 (808)
Net operating income N ) ) 4,424 6,294 5,092
Total operating expenses ) {5,353) {5,462) 16.705)
employes __L;énﬁpensatian and banefits # {1,762) iE,UZJ]! :2,340”
general and administrative expenses (3,463) [ 3,265}; {3,002)
dupreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets | (103} (110 (372}
amartisation and impairment of intangible assets 2 (25) (64, {901y
Dperating (loss)/profit — - (929) 832 11,613}
Share of (losshprofit in assaciates and joint ventures L4 (30) 191 (1)
(Loss)/profit before tax ) (959} 1.023 11.674)
Tax credit 7 561 23 136
{Loss)/profit for the year (398) 1,046 (1,478}
{Loss)profit ati_ributuble 10 the parent company (408) 1,041 11,488)
Profit attributable to non-cantrolling interests 10 5 10

*  For Notes on the financial statements, see page 124.

1 [Interest income includes £5,512m (2021 £1,986m; 2020: £2,773m] of interest recognised on financial assets measured at amortised cost; £422m
(2021: £659m; 2020: £656m) of negative interest recognised on financial liabilities and £601m (2021; £504m; 2020: £657m) of interest recognised
an financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Include within this is £58m (2021: £61m; 2020: £57m) interest
recagnised on impatred financial assets.

2 [nterest revenue calculated using the effective interest method comprises nterest recognised on financial assets measured at either amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive ncome.

3 Interest expense includes £3,740m (2021 £616m; 2020: £1,289) ol interest on linancial liabilities, excluding nterest on financial hiabilities held for
trading or designated or otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value.

4 2022 balances include losses on disposal of businesses classified as held-tor-sale as part of a broader restructuring of our European business.

Net operating income before change in expected credit losses and other credit impairment charges is also referred to as revenue’,

&

114 HSBC Bank plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December

2020

2022 2021
B £m fm ~ fm
{Lass)/profit for the year (398) 1,046 (1,478)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income o o ——
Items that will be reclassified subseq ly to profit or loss when specific conditions are met: - N
Debt instruments at fair valus through other comprehensive income (454) (237) 213
- fairvalue (losses)/gains (698) (247) 366
fair value lossesf{gains) transterred to the income statement on disposal 59 (G3) 190)
- expected credit losses/(recoveries) recognised in the income statement 6 (5} 8
incomae taxes 178 78| (71}
Cash flow hedges (943)  (165) 118
- fair value (losses)igains _ (1,418) (40) 86 |
fair value losses/(gains) reclassified to the income statement 127 (202) 72
- income taxes 348 77 (40|
Exchange differences 701 (B0O3) 467
Items that will not be reclassified sub Iy to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit asset/liability 38 44 (8)
before income taxes B ‘ 56 61 | (18)
- income taxes . : (18) a7 10
Equity instruments designated at fair value through ather comprehensive income - 2 2
fair value gains - 2 2
— Income laxes l -1 =] _ _—__‘
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value upon initial recognition ansing from changes in own credit risk 329 B 2 67
fair value gains 462 3 23
- income taxes (133) (1 (26)
Other comprel ive (exp Jiincome for the year, net of tax (329) (957) 859
Total prek ive (exp )i for the year {727) 89 {619)
Attributable to: o B . - )
- shareholders of the parent company (739) 93| 1653)
- nan-controlling interests | 12 | tdli 34 |
Total prek ive (exp Mi for the year (727) 89 (619)
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Consolidated balance sheet

at 31 December

2021
Notes* £m fm
Assels .
Cash and balances at central banks 131,433 108,482
Items it the course of collection from other banks 2,285 346
Trading assets e 79,878 43,706
Financial assets designated and otherwise mandatarily measured at fair value through profit or loss 1 15,881 18,649
Dorwvatives " 225,238 141,221
Loans and adyancms to banks _1_7-199 10,754
Loans and advances 10 customers 72,614 9,177
Revirse repurchase agreements non-trading 53,949 54,448
Financial investments 1& 32,604 41,300
Assets held for sale' i 21,214 9
Prapayments, accrued income anil other assets 2 61,379 43,118
Current tax nssets 595 1,136
Interests in associates and joint venlures 17 728 743
Goodwill and intangible assets ) 1,167 3894
Deferred tax assets 1,279 599
Total assets 717,353 596,611
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 20,836 32,188
Customer accounts 215,948 205,241
Rapurchase aigteamants - non-trading 32,901 27,259
lems in the course of transmission to other banks 2,226 489
Trading liabilities 41,265 46,433
Financial liabilities designated at fair value o 27,287 33,608
Darivatives 14 218,867 139_3{__5%
Debt securities in issue ) 7,268 9,428
Liakulities of disposal groups held for sale’ a4 24,711 -
Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities 2 66,945 43,4586
Current tax liabilities 130 97
Liahilities under insurance cantracts ¢ 19,987 22,264
Provisions 2 424 562
Deferred tax liabilities F 14 15
Subordinated tia_bll.ilies 24 14,528 12,488
Total liabilities 693,337 572,896
Equity
Total shareholders” equity 23,875 23,584
- called up share capital 24 797 797
share premium account 420 =
other equity instruments 29 3,930 3,722
other reserves (6,368) 15.670)
- retained eamings 25,096 24,735
Non-controlling interests 141 131
Total equity 24,016 23,715
Total liabilities and equity 717,353 596,611

1 Ineludes businesses classified as held-for-sale as part of a broader restructuring of our European husiness. Refer to Note 34 'Assets held for sale

and liabilities of disposal groups held for sale' on page 186.
* For Notes an the financial statements, see page 124

The accompanying notes on pages 124 to 190, and the audited sections of the 'Report of the Directors’ on pages 26 to 102 form an

integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 February 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

David Watts

Drector
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December

2022 2021 2020
I o £m £m £m
{Loss)/profit before tax 959) 1.023 (1.614)
Adjustments for non-cash items -
Depreciation, a{rlor!ii;aﬂd; and rmps!'rmj_am‘ B . 174 1273
Net lia_s;;ﬂg_ain] from investing activitias’ 2,002 (82) 99)
Share of loss/(profit) in associates and joint ventures 30 (191} 1
Change in expected credit losses gross of recoveries and other credit impairment charges 253 17y 810
Provisions including pensions 192 104 424
Share-based payment expense B - S - 46 96 78
Other non-cash items included in loss/{profit) before tax (242) (198) 138
Elimination of exchange differences’ (6.714) 4,926 2,627)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 37.454 9,602 3418
— change in net trading securities and derivatives (6,213) 8,157 8.070
change in loans and advances to banks and customers (2,717) 11,149 | 6,780 |
- change in reverse repurchase agreements - non-trading 6,251 8,538 | 16,084
— change In financial assets designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value 2,729 {2.425}: 735
- change in other assets (7,329) 10,924 {7.6513)
change in deposits by banks and customer accounts B 19,835 7,940 28,262
— change in repurchase agreements - non-trading 5,641 (7,643)! (14.482)
- change in debt securities in issue o o B {1,060) (7.943) (7.668)
- change in financial liabilities designated at fair value - (1,822) {7,191) 1402)
- change in other liabilities - 21,297 (12,295 5,432
dividend received from associates 7 = -
— contributions paid 1o defined benefit plans (10 (24) (22
tax received/(paid) 845 | (581) 142 |
_Net cash from operating activities 32,180 15,303 33,808
- purchase of financial investments - (13,227) 118,890 121,087)]
— proceeds from the sale and maturity of financial investments - 20,490 25,027 17417
- net cash flows from the purchase and sale of property, plant and equipment (20) 52 [?0}%
— net investment in intangible assets (28) ME}E 1’150}|
net cash outflow from investment in associates and acquisition of businesses and subsidiaries (29). :35}: (371)
net cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries, businesses, associates and joint ventures - - | 5?|
Net cash from investing activities 7,186 6,059 {4,154)
- rademption of preference shares and other equity instruments 628 - (318)
~ subordinated loan capital issued 3111 10,466 o
- subordinatéd loan capital repaid* (2,248) {10,902]! (18)
- dividends to the parent company - (1,052) 1194) (263)
- funds received from the parent company - 1.465 — 1,000
— dividends paid to non-controlling interests B 2 (1)} —
Nst cash from financing activities 1,902 (B31) 401
Net increase in cash and cash equi 41,278 20,731 30,146
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jan 140,923 125,304 92,338
Exchange difference in respect of cash and cash equivalents 7,706 (6,112) 2,820
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Dec® 189,907 140,923 125,304
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of S
- cash and balances at central banks 131_5;_@ 108,482 85,092
- items in the course of collection from other banks S - 2,285 346 243
- lpans and advances to banks of ane month or less 13,801 7,516 8,676
reverse repurchase agreement with banks of one month or less 23 182 17,430 21,020
treasury ’mils. other bills and CEr';.i‘f‘i‘C“.ﬂlBE of deposit less than three months 294 236 685
- cash collateral and net settlemant accounts 19,213 7.403 9.878
cash and cash equivalents held for sale® 1,925 — =
- less! items in the course of transmission to other banks B {2,226) (489) (290}
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Dec® 189,907 140,923 125,304

1 Included within 2020 are the impact of impairment and write-offs related principally to our businesses in the UK and HSBC Continental Europe

£1994)m.

2 2022 balances include losses on disposal of businesses classified as held-for-sale as part of a broader restructuring of our European business.
3 Adjustment to bring changes between opening and closing balance sheet amounts to average rates. This is not done on a line-by-line basis, as

details cannot be determined without unreasonable expense.

4 Subordinated liabilities changes during the year are attributable to cash flows from issuance £3,111m (2021: £10,466m,. 2020: nil) and repayment
of £12,248)m (2021 £(10,802)m; 2020: £(18)m] of securities as presented in the Consolidated statement of cash flows. Non-cash changes during
the year included foreign exchanges gains/{fosses) £711m (2021: £(512)m; 2020: £351m) and fair value gains/{losses) £(427)m 2021 £(82)m;

2020: £69m),

5 At 31 December 2022, £25,395m (2021 £9,410m, 2020: £11,828m) was not available for use by the group, of which £1,601m (2021; £1,393m;

2020: £2,460m) related to mandatory deposits at central banks.

6 [Includes £1,662m of cash and balances at central banks fexcluding the expected cash contribution as part of the planned sale of our retail banking
operations in France, For further details, see Note 34); £208m of reverse repurchase agreements with banks of one month or less, £114m of loans
and advances to banks of one month or less and remaining £41m relates to other cash and cash equivalents.

Interest received was £7,668m (2021: £4,285m; 2020: £5,424m), interest paid was £5,284m (2021: £2,919m; 2020: £3,725m) and

dividends received were £431m (2021; £704m; 2020: £423m).
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December

Other reserves

Called up Group
share Financial Cash reorganisa- Total
capital & Other assets at flow Foreign tion share- Non-
share equity Retained FVOCI  hedging exchange reserve  holders’  controlling Total
premium instruments  earnings rESErVE  reserve  reserve ('GRR)* equity interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m £m £m
At 1 Jan 2022 797 3,722 24,735 1,081 (7) 948 (7,692) 23,584 131 23,715
Loss for the year b == (408) - - - — (408) 10 (398)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income
(nal of Lax) — - 367 (449) (943) 694 - (331) 2 (329)
debt instruments at fair value through | [
other comprehensive income - - (449) — | - - (449) (5) (454)
cash flow hedges - - — - (943) — — (943) - (943)
changes in fair value of financial
lahilities designated at fair value due to
movement in own credit risk’ - - 329 — - - - 329 - 329
rerneasurement of defined benefil asset/
linhility — - 38 - - — - 38 - 38
exchange differences - - - - | - | 694 - 694 | 7 701
['otal comprehensive (expensall income for
the year - — (41) (449) (943) 694 - (739) 12 (727)
Capital securities issued during the period 420 208 — - = — - 628 - 628
Dividends to the parent company’ —_ — {1,052) - - - - (1,052) 2) (1,054}
Net impact of equity-settled share-based
payments - = 5 - — - = 5 = 5
Capital contribution® — - 1,465 - - — — 1,465 - 1,465
Change in business combinations and
other movements — = {16] = = - el (16) o (16)
At 31 Dec 2022 1,217 3,930 25,096 632 (950) 1,642 (7,692) 23,875 141 24,016
At 1 Jan 2021 797 3,722 23,829 1,309 158 1,643 {7,692) 23,666 183 23,849
Prafit for the year 1,041 1,041 5 1,046
Other comprehensive (expenselincome
tnet of tax) A6 (234) {165) (695) (948) 19 (957}
debt instruments at fair value through I [ |
other comprehensive income 12:36) 1?36:” {1} (237)|
- equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive |
incoma 2 2| 2
cash flow hedges (165) | (6s) (165)
- changes in fair value of financial
lighilitias designated at fair value due to
movernent in own cradit risk’ | 2 2 - 2
- remeasurement of defined benefit asset/
liability 44 A4 44
exchange differences l {595) (595) 8) (603)|
Total comprehensive incomellexpense) for
tha year 1,087 [234) (165) {63k} 93 (4] 89
Capital securities issued during the period - -
Dividends o the parent company” 194} (194) 11} (195}
Net impact of equity-settled share-based
payimnents o) 110 (10}
Change in business combinations and
ather movements” 23 (5 29 (47) (18)
AL 31 Dec 2021 797 3,722 24,735 1,081 (7} 948 (7.692) 23,684 131 23,715
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity (continued)

for the year ended 31 December

Other reserves

Called up Group
share Financial reorganisa- Total
capital & Other assetls at - Cash flow Foreign tion share Non-
share sguity  Ratained FVOCI hedging  exchange reserve holders’  controlling Total
premium  instruments BATINGS reEsarve reserve resere ['GRR")" equity interests aquity
fm £m £m Em fm £m fm £m fm £m
At 1 .Jan 2020 797 3,722 24,449 1,089 A0 1,098 (7,692) 23,503 509 24012
Loss for the year - — (1.488) - ~ - - (1488 10 (1.478)
Other comprehensive incomea (net of tax) - - 56 216 118 445 B35 24 859
- debt instruments at fair value through | | | |
ather comprehensive incoma - — | 214 — | - 214 () 213
— equity instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income — — - 2 - — 2 — 21
— cash flow hedges - | = - 118 - — 118 118
changes In fair value of financial liabilities |
designated at fair value due to movement |
in own credit risk’ - 67 - | - 67 - | 67
rameasurement of defined benefit asset/ |
[iability — - (113 - - - - (1 3 (8)
- exchange differences =i b - <= - | 445 | 445 22 467 |
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for
the yoar — 11,432) 216 118 445 — (653) 34 619)
Dividends to the pa{ent_ctlm_;_:_lanf — - (263) — — [263) — (263)
Net impact of equity-settled shara-based
payments - 1 — — - n" — 11
Capntal contribution® = 1,000 — — 1.000 1.000
Change in business combinations and other
movements” - — 64 4 — — — 68 (360} 1292)
At 31 Dec 2020 797 3,722 23,829 1,309 158 1,543 17,682) 23,666 183 23,849

1 The cumulative amount of change in fair value attributable to changes in own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value was a gain of
£292m (2021: loss of £165m and 2020; loss of £189m).

2 The dividends to the parent company includes dividend on ordinary share capital £850m (2021: nil and 2020 nifl, coupon payment on additional
tier 1 instrument £202m (2021: £194m and 2020: £212m) & dividend on preference share capital nil (2021 nil and 2020: £5 Tm).

3 HSBC Holdings ple injected £1.5bn of CET1 capital into HSBC Bank plc during November 2022 which in turn injected into HSBC Continental
Europe for funding the acquisition of HSBC Bank Mailta plc and HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH.

4 HSBC UK Holdings Limited (during 2021, parent company of the bank changed to HSBC Holdings pic) injected £1bn of CETT capital into HSBC
Bank pie during March 2020 to improve the capital base of the group, impacted by Covid-19. There was no new issuance of share capital.

5 Additional shares were acquired in HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH and HSBC Bank Armenia gjsc, in 2021 increasing the group's interest to

100%.

6 Additional shares were acquired in HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH in May 2020, increasing the group's interest from 80.67% to 99,33%.
7 The Group reorganisation reserve ('GRR') is an accounting reserve resulting from the ring-fencing implementation. The GRR does not form part of

regulatory capital
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Financial statements

H_SBC Bank plc balance sheet

at 31 December

2022 2021
Neatwes* £fm £m

Assets
Sash and balances at central banks 78,441 63,008
ltems i the course of collection from other biunks 1,863 n
Trading s m 67,623 70,790
Finaneial assets designated and atherwise mandatornily imeasured at fair value through profit or loss 1i 1,618 3,215
Derivitives H 196,714 125,787
Loans and advances to banks 14,486 6,778
Loans and advances 1o customers 36,992 33,936
Revarse repurchase agreements — non-trading 43,055 39,708
Financial investments o] 18,639 26,542
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 43,907 31,490
Current tax assets 394 1,00
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 10,646 6,479
Gaodwill and intangible assets ' a1 34
Deferred tax assets 7 608 508
Total assets 515,027 409,558
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 13,594 14,665
Customer accounts 141,714 124,706
Repurchase u-l;reemeni:; - non-trading 29,638 22,344
ltems in the course of transmission to other banks 1,758 172
Trading hatilities 25,765 31,161
Financial labilities designated at fair value 29 19,415 20,869
Darivalives i 193,336 127,651
Dbt secunties in issue 4,656 5,668
Accruals, defarred income and other liabilities & 47,982 30,170
Currenl lax hiabilities 21 5
Pravisions 45 167 250
Sllhnrthnillur_l Iial:ri_liiims 200 14,252 12,218
Total liabilities 492,298 389,859
Equity
Called up share capital M 797 797
Share premium account 420
Other equity instruments <l 3,930 3,722
Other reserves (6,073) {5,173)
Retained earnings 23,655 20,353
Total equity 22,729 19,689
Total liabilities and equity 515,027 409,658

* For Notes on the financial statements, see page 124,

Profit after tax for the year was £2,743m (2021: £45bm; 2020: loss after tax £(644)m.

The accompanying notes on pages 124 to 190, and the audited sections of the ‘Report of the Directors' on pages 26 to 102 form an

integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 February 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

David Watts

Director
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HSBC Bank plc statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December

Profit/loss) before tax
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment’
Net gain fram investing activities”

Change in expected credit losses gross of recoveries and other credit impairment charges

Provisions including pensions

Share-based paymant expense -
_Other non-cash items included in loss/(profit) before tax

2022 2021 2020

£m £m _ fm

. 2,548 273 (936)

B 17 18 636
(1,669) {34) (67)

130 (216) 457

91 42 154

. A A b6

g2 D 8

Elimination of exchange differences” = ,109) 1,073 108
Changes in operating assets and liabilities . 18,609 a0 27197
— change in net trading securities and derivatives N | [9.551)! 11,761 | 11,680
— change in Joans and advances to banks and customers | (3,870) 9712 B.568
- change in reverse repurchase agreements — non-trading ! 5,651 5,880
~ change in financial assets designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value | 1.597 (1,350) 1,264
- thange in other assels® ) | (10,912) 4,383 3.771)
- change in deposits by banks and customer accounts - | 15,947 1,803 | 12,062
- change in repurchase agreaments — non-trading 7,294 (4,652) (9,331}
~ change in debt securities in issue B - B (1,002) (9.698) 318
— change in financial liabilities designated at fair villue | {116) 13.831) 500
- change in other liabilities - - | 17,343 (9,357) rall
- contributions paid to defined benefit plans - | {10) 21 22}
- tax received/(paid) | 1,098 (381) 210
Net cash from operating activities 17,623 5,370 27,612
- purchase of financial investments = (8,535) (15,185)| (13,882}
- proceeds from the sale and maturity of financial investments 17,022 18,285 | nm
— net cash llows from the purchase and sale of property, plant and equipment {2) (4| 9
- net investment in intangible assets S - (176) (8)] (98)
Net cash from investing activities . 8,309 3,088 (2.198)
- issue of ordinary share capital and other equity instruments - | 628 =
- subordinated loan capital issued® 3,111 10,466 -
subordinated loan capital repaid® | 12.240]‘ (10,797) (313)
funds received from the parant company 1,465 — 1,000
- dividends to the parent company (1,052) (194) {263)
Net cash from financing activities B ) 1,912 (619) 424
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 27.844 7,939 25,838
Cash and cash equivalonts at 1 Jan . 83,814 77,605 51,235
Exchange difference in respect of cash and cash equivalents 3,652 (1,730 532
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Dec 115,310 83,814 77,605
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: = B
- cash and balances at central banks ) 78,441 63,008 48,777
- iterns in the course of collection from other banks 1,863 21 37
- loans and advances to banks of one maonth or less 11,353 4,323 5,338
- meverse repurchase agreement with banks of one month or less o B - 13917 9,779 14,588
— treasury bills, other bills and certificates of deposit less than three months B - 150 175 279
cash collateral and net settlement accounts - 11,344 6.480 8,630
— less: items in the course of transmission to other banks - (1,758) 173 4)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Dec 115,310 B3,814 77,605

1 Included within 2020 is the impact of impairment related to our business in the UK (£531m).
2 Included within 2022 is the impact of impairment reversal booked in Paris branch for investment in suhsichary.
3 Adjustment to bring changes between opening and closing balance sheet amounts to average rates. This is not done on a line-by-line basis, as

details cannot be determined without unreasonable expense.
4 Includes additional investment in subsidiaries (2021: £17m; 2020: £443m).

& Subordinated liabilities changes during the year are attributable to cash flows from issuance £3,111m (2021: £ 10,466m, 2020: nil) and repayment
of £12,240)m (2021: £10,791m, 2020: £313m) of securities as presented in the HSBC Bank ple statement of cash flows. Non-cash changes during
the year included foreign exchange gains(losses) £696m (2021: £489m; 2020: £329m) and fair value gains £(427)m 2021: £(82)m; 2020: £ B9rm).

Interest received was £5,023m (2021: £2,321m, 2020: £3,211m), interest paid was £3,891m (2021: £1,827m; 2020: £2,539m) and

dividends received was £936m (2021: £902m, 2020: £5655m).
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Financial statements

HSBC Bank plc statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December

Dli.'.:ar reserves

Called up
share Financial Group
capital & QOther assets at Cash flow Foreign reorganisation Total
share equity Retained FVOCi hedging exchange reserve shareholders’
premium  instruments earnings TESErVe reserve reserve I'GRR'Y equity
£m £m fm £m £m £m fm £m
At 1 Jan 2022 797 3,722 20,353 135 (82) 22 (5,248) 19,699
Profil for the year - - 2,743 - - — - 2,743
Other comprehensive income/{expense) (net
ol 1ax) - — 141 (257) (714) 71 — (759)
— debt instruments at fair value through other |
comprehensive income | - - — {258) - . = (258)
eauity instruments designated al fair value |
thraugh other comprehensive income - - — 1 - - i 1
cash {low hedges — — — — (714) - —| (714)
changes in fair value of financial liabilities
designated at fair value due 1o movement
in own credit risk’ - - 156 = o = o 156
remeasurement of defined benefit asset/
Jiability = - (15) o - < = (15)
- exchange differences = — - — - 71 — FAl
Total comprel ive ince flexp
for the period — — 2,884 (257) (714) 71 - 1,984
Capital securities issued during the period 420 208 — = = - — 628
Dividends to the parent company” — - (1,052) - — - - (1,052)
Net impact of equity-settled share-based
payments as = 5 s _ _ _ 5
Capital contribution® 1,465 1.465
At 31 Dec 2022 1,217 3,930 23,655 (122) (796) 93 (5,248) 22,729
A1 Jan 2021 797 3,722 20,099 361 55 a3 {5,248) 19,819
Profit for the year 455 456
Other comprehensive income/(expanse) (net
of tax} N 14 (216G) 1137) (21) (360)
debl instruments at fair value through other | [
comprehansive income | {216} = {215)
equity instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (1} (1 :||
cash flow hedges ) 1137 {137ﬁ!
changes in fair value of financial liabllities
designated at fair value due to movement
in own credit risk’
remeasurement of defined benefit asset/
liability 14 14
~ exchange differencas = (21) @21)
Total comprehensive incomedlexpense) for
the period - 469 {218) {137 121) 85
Dividends to the parent company” 1194) 1194}
Net impact of equity-settled share-based
payments (10 (10}
Change in business combinations and other
movements® ) (1)
Al 31 Dec 2021 797 3.722 201,363 135 182} ok |5,248) 19,699
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HSBC Bank plc statement of changes in equity (continued)
for the year ended 31 December

Other reserves

Called up Financial
share assots at Cash flow Foreign Group Total
capital & share  Othar equity Retained FVOC! hedaing exchange  reorganisation  sharsholders'
premium instriiments BATNINGS reserve reserve reserve  reserve ('GRR') aquity
£m £m £m fm £m : fm ~ Em £m
At 1.Jan 2020 797 3,722 19,876 182 (32 77 (6,248) 19,374
Loss for the year — - (Ba4) — - (B44)
Other comprehensive income/{axpense) (net
of tax} _ - — 107 70 87 128) - 336
debt instruments at fair value through other [
comprehensive income - - | — 168 - - | - 168
- equity Instruments designated at fair value | ‘ |
through other comprehensive income - - — 2 — — — 2
- cash flow hedges - - | = — a7 — — B7
- changes in fair value of financial liabilites | | |
designated at fair value due to movemant
in own credit risk’' ~ - 92 - — - 92
= remeasurement of defined benefit asset! | |
liability ' s 15 — = s | - 15
- exchange differences o J_ = | =] = s M | =l 128)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for
the period - 1537) 170 87 (28) - {308)
Dividends to the parent company” - — 1263) = - ) — - — 1263)
Net impact of equity-settled shara-based
payments - - " — — - — 1
Capital contribution® — 1,000 — 1,000
Change in business combinations and ather
movements® — 12 o m - | = 5
At 31 Dec 2020 797 3,722 20,099 351 55 43 15,248) 19,819

1 The cumulative amount of change in fair vaiue attributable (o changes in own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value was a gain of

£139m (20217 loss of £72m and 2020: loss of £76m)

2 The dividends to the parent company includes dividend on ordinary share capital £850m (2021: nil and 2020: nil), coupon payment on additional
tier 1 instrument £222m (2021: £194m and 2020: £2 12m) & dividend on preference share capital nil (2021 nil and 2020: £51m).
3 HSBC Holdings plc injected £1.5bn of CET1 capital into HSBC Bank plc during November 2022 which in turn infected into HSBC Continental

Europe for funding the acquisition of HSBC Bank Malta ple and HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH,

2N

HSBC UK Holdings Limited (during 2021, parent company of the bank changed to HSBC Holdings plc) injected £1bn of CETT capital into HSBC

Bank plc during March 2020 to improve the capital base of the group, impacted by Covid-19. There was no new issuance of share capital,

WO,

regulatory capital

Additional shares were acquired in HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH in Feb 2021, increasing the group's interest from 99.33% to 100.00%.
Additional shares were acquired in HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH in May 2020, increasing the group’s interest from 80.67% to 99.33%.
The Group reorganisation reserve ('GRR') is an accounting reserve resulting from the ring-fencing implementation. The GRR does not form part of
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Notes on the Financial Statements

Notes on the Financial Statements

1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the group and the separate financial statements of HSBC Bank plc comply with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and have also applied international financial
reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union. These financial statements
are also prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ('1ASB'), including interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee, as there are no applicable differences
from |IFRSs as issued by the IASB for the periods presented. There were no unendorsed standards effective for the year ended

31 December 2022 affecting these consolidated and separate financial statements.

Standards adopted during the year ended 31 December 2022

There were no new accounting standards or interpretations that had a significant effect on the group in 2022, Accounting policies have
been consistently applied.

(b) Future accounting developments
Minor amendments 1o IFRSs

The IASB has not published any minor amendments effective from 1 January 2022 that are applicable to the group. However, the IASB
has published a number of minor amendments to IFRSs that are effective from 1 January 2023 and 1 January 2024, The group expects
they will have an insignificant effect, when adopted, on the consolidated financial statements of the group and the separate financial
statements of HSBC Bank plc.

New IFRSs
IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ was issued in May 2017, with amendments to the standard issued in June 2020 and December 2021.
Following the amendments, IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and 1s applied
retrospectively, with comparatives restated from 1 January 2022 IFRS 17 has been adopted in its entirety for use in the UK while it has
been adopted by the EU subject to certain optional exemptions.

IFRS 17 sets out the requirements that the group will apply in accounting for insurance contracls it issues, reinsurance contracts it holds,
and investment contracts with discretionary participation features.

The group 1s at an advanced stage in the implementation of IFRS 17, having put in place accounting policies, data and models, and
made progress with preparing 2022 comparative data. Below are set out our expectations of the impact of IFRS 17 compared with our
current accounting policy for insurance contracts, which is set out in policy 1.2(j) on page 344.

Under IFRS 17, no present value of in-force business ('PVIF') asset is recognised. Instead, the measurement of the insurance contracts
liability is based on groups of insurance contracts and will include fulfilment cash flows, as well as the contractual service margin
('CSM’), which represents the unearned profit.

To identify groups of insurance contracts, individual contracts subject to similar dominant risk and managed together are identified as a
portfolio of insurance contracts. Each portfolio is further separated by profitability group and issue date into periodic cohorts.

The fulfilment cash flows comprise:

« the best estimates of future cash flows, including amounts expected 1o be collected from premiums and payouts for claims, benefits
and expenses, which are projected using assumptions based on demographic and operating experience;

« an adjustment for the time value of money and financial risks associated with the future cash flows; and
e an adjustment for non-financial risk that reflects the uncertainty about the amount and timing of future cash flows.

In contrast to the group's IFRS 4 accounting where profits are recognised upfront, the CSM will be systematically recognised in revenue,
as services are provided over the expected coverage period of the group of contracts without any change to the overall profit of the
contracts. Losses resulting from the recognition of onerous contracts are recognised in the income statement immediately.

The CSM is adjusted depending on the measurement model of the group of Insurance contracts, While the general measurement model
('GMM'} is the default measurement model under IFRS 17, the group expects that the majority of its contracts will be accounted for
under the variable fee approach ('VEA), which is mandatory to apply for insurance contracts with direct participation features upon
meeting the eligibility criteria.

IFRS 17 requires entities to apply IFRS 17 retrospectively as if IFRS 17 had always been applied, using the full retrospective approach
{‘FRA’) unless it is impracticable. When FRA is impracticable such as when there is a lack of sufficient and reliable data, an entity has an
accounting policy choice 1o use either the modified retrospective approach ('MRA) or the fair value approach ('FVA'). The group will
primarily apply the MRA for new business where FRA is impracticable. The group will make use of the other comprehensive income
('OCI') option for some contracts.

Impact of IFRS 17

Changes to equity on transition are driven by the elimination of the PVIF asset, the re-designation of certain eligible financial assets in
the scope of IFRS 9, the remeasurement of insurance liabilities and assets under IFRS 17, and the recognition of the CSM.

IFRS 17 requires the use of current market values for the measurement of insurance liabilities. The shareholder's share of the investment
experience and assumption changes will be absorbed by the CSM and released over time to profit or loss under VFA, For contracts
measured under GMM, the shareholder’s share of the investment volatility is recorded in profit or loss as it anses. Under IFRS 17,
operating expenses will be lower as directly attributable costs will be incorporated in the CSM and recognised in the insurance service
result.
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While the profit over the life of an individual contract will be unchanged, its emergence will be later under IFRS 17.
All of these impacts will be subject to deferred tax.

Estimates of the opening balance sheet as at 1 January 2022 have been calculated and are presented below, showing separately the
impact on the total assets, liabilities and equity of our insurance manufacturing operations. These estimates are based on accounting
policies, assumptions, judgements and estimation techniques that remain subject to change.

Total assets Total liabilities Total equity
Impact of transition to IFRS 17, at 1 January 2022 £bn £bn £bn
Balance sheet values at 1 January 2022 under IFRS 4 271 255 1.6
Remaoval of PVIF (0.8) — (0.8)
Replacement of IFRS 4 liabilities with IFRS 17 — - -
Removal of IFRS 4 liabilities and recarding of IFRS 17 fulfilment cash flows - {D.SI 0.9
IFRS 17 contractual service margin - 0.9 (0.9)
Re-measurement effact of IFRS 8 re-designations - - e
Tax effact - (0.2) 0.2
Esti d balance sheet values at 1 January 2022 under IFRS 17 26.3 25.3 1.0

PVIF of £812m less deferred tax of £175m constitute the overall estimate

cicten i intangilbie assets. after tax, of FG37m on transdion to IFRS 17
(c) Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the bank is sterling, which is also the presentational currency of the consolidated financial statements of the
group.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date except non-monetary assets and liabilities
measured at historical cost, which are translated using the rate of exchange at the initial transaction date. Exchange differences are
included in other comprehensive income or in the income statement depending on where the gain or loss on the underlying item is
recognised,

In the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of branches, subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates whose
functional currency is not sterling are translated into the group's presentation currency at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date,
while their results are translated into sterling at the average rates of exchange for the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, exchange differences previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement.

{d) Presentation of information
Certain disclosures required by IFRSs have been included in the audited sections of this Annual Report and Accounts 2022 as follows:

* disclosures concerning the nature and extent of risks relating to financial instruments and insurance contracts are included in the
'Report of the Directors: Risk' on pages 26 to 93;

* the 'Own funds' disclosure is included in the ‘Report of the Directors: Capital Risk in 2022' on page 80; and

* in publishing the parent company financial statements together with the group financial statements, the bank has taken advantage of
the exemption in section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual income statement and related notes.

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and judgements about future conditions. In view of the inherent
uncertainties and the high level of subjectivity involved in the recognition or measurement of items highlighted, as the 'critical
accounting estimates and judgements' in section 1.2 below, it is possible that the outcomes in the next financial vear could differ from
those on which management's estimates are based. This could result in materially different estimates and judgements from those
reached by management for the purposes of these financial statements. Management's selection of the group’s accounting policies that
contain critical estimates and judgements reflects the materiality of the items to which the policies are applied and the high degree of
judgement and estimation uncertainty involved.

Management has considered the impact of climate-related risks on HSBC's financial position and performance. While the effects of
climate change are a source of uncertainty, as at 31 December 2022 management do not consider there to be a material impact on our
critical judgements and estimates from the physical, transition and other climate-related risks in the short to medium term. In particular
management has considered the known and observable potential impact of climate-related risks of associated judgements and
estimates in our value in use calculations.

(f) Segmental analysis

HSBC Bank plc's chief operating decision maker is the group Chief Executive, supported by the group Executive Committee, and
operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the group Chief Executive and the group
Executive Committee.

Measurement of segmental assets, liabilities, income and expenses is in accordance with the bank's accounting policies. Segmental
income and expenses include transfers between segments and these transfers are conducted at arm’s length. Shared costs are
included in segments on the basis of the actual recharges made.

The types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenue are discussed in the ‘Strategic Report -
Our global businesses’ on page 9
(g) Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Directors are satisfied that the group and the company have the
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Directors have considered a wide range of
information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows, capital requirements and
capital resources. These considerations include stressed scenarios that reflect the uncertainty in structural changes from the Covid-19
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pandemic, the Russia-Ukraine war, disrupted supply chains globally, climate change and other top and emerging risks, as well as from
the related impacts on profitability, capital and liquidity.

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Consolidation and related policies

[hvestments in subsidiaries

Where an entity is governed by voting rights, the group consolidates when it holds - directly or indirectly - the necessary voting nghts to
pass resolutions by the governing body. In all other cases, the assessment of control is more complex and requires judgement of other

factors, including having exposure to variability of returns, power to direct relevant activities and whether power is held as agent or
principal,

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount of non-controlling interest is measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s dentifiable net assels.

Ihe bank's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses.

Impairment testing is performed where there is an indication of impairment, by comparing the recoverable amount of a cash-generating
unit with its carrying amount.

Critical accounting estimates and judygenieni:

Investments in subsidiaries are tested for impairment when there is an indication that the investment may be impaired, which involves estimations of value
in use reflecting management’s best estimate of the future cash llows of the investment and the rales used to discount these cash flows, both of which are
subject to uncertain factors as follows:

Judgemenis Estimatos

+ The accuracy of forecast cash flows is subject toa » The future cash flows of each investmeant are sensitive to the cash flows projected for the
high degree of uncertainty in volatile market poriods for which detailed forecasts are available and to assumptions regarding the long-term
conditions, Where such circumstances aro pattern of sustainable cash flows therealter. Forecasts are compared with actual performance
determined to exist, management re-lasts for and verifiable economic data, but they reflect management’s view of fulure business prospects
impairment more frequently than once a year when at the time: of the assessment.

indicators of impairment exist. This ensures thal the o
assumptions on which the cash flow forecasts are
based continue to reflect currant markat conditions
and management's best estimate of fulure business
prospacts.

The ratas used to discount future expected cash flows can have a significant ellect on their
valuation, and are based an the costs of equity assigned Lo the investment. I'hex cost of equity
percentage is generally derived from a capital assel pricing mode! and tho market implied cost
of equity, which incorporates inputs reflecting a number of financial and economic variables,
including the risk-free interest rate in the country concerned and a premium for the risk of tha
business being evaluated. These variables are subject to fluctuations in external market rates
and economic conditions beyond management’s control.

» Key assumptions used in estimating impairment in subsidiaries are described in Note 18.

Group sponsored structured entities

The group is considered to sponsor another entity if, in addition to ongoing involvement with the entity, it had a key role in establishing
that entity or in bringing together relevant counterparties so the transaction that is the purpose of the entity could occur. The group is
generally not considered a sponsor if the only involvement with the entity is merely administrative.

Interests in associates and jomnt arrangements

Joint arrangements are investments in which the group, together with one ar more parties, has joint control. Depending on the group's
rights and obligations, the joint arrangement is classified as either a joint operation or a joint venture, The group classifies investments in
entities over which it has significant influence, and those that are neither subsidianes nor joint arrangements, as associates.

The group recognises its share of the assets, liabilities and results in a joint operation. Investments in assoctates and interests in joint
ventures are recognised using the equity method. The attributable share of the results and reserves of joint ventures and associates are
included in the consolidated financial statements of the group based on either financial statements made up to 31 December or pro-
rated amounts adjusted for any material transactions or events occurring between the date the financial statements are available and
31 December.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are assessed at each reporting date and tested for impairment when there is an indication
that the investment may be impaired. Goodwill on acquisition of interests in joint ventures and associates is not tested separately for
impairment, but is assessed as part of the carrying amount of the imvestment

{b) Income and expense
Operaling income
Interast income and e Xpense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, excluding those classified as held for trading or designated at fair value, are
recognised in 'Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense” in the income statement using the effective interest method. However, as an
exception to this, interest on debt instruments issued by the group for funding purposes that are designated under the fair value option
to reduce an accounting mismatch and on derivatives managed in conjunction with those debt instruments is included in interest
expense.

Interest on credit-impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.

Non-interest ineame and expense

The group generates fee income from services provided at a fixed price over time, such as account service and card fees, or when the
group delivers a specific transaction al a point in time, such as broking services and import/export services. With the exception of certain
fund management and performance fees, all other fees are generated at a fixed price. Fund management and performance fees can be
variable depending on the size of the customer portfolio and HSBC's performance as fund manager. Variable fees are recognised when
all uncertainties are resolved. Fee income is generally earned from short-term contracts with payment terms that do not include a
significant financing component.
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The group acts as principal in the majority of contracts with customers, with the exception of broking services, For most brokerage
trades, the group acts as agent in the transaction and recognises broking income net of fees payable to other parties in the arrangement.

The group recognises fees earned on transaction-based arrangements at a point in time when it has fully provided the service to the
customer. Where the contract requires services to be provided over time, income is recognised on a systematic basis over the life of the
agreement. Where the group offers a package of services that contains multiple non-distinct performance obligations, such as those
included in account service packages, the promised services are treated as a single performance obligation. If a package of services
contains distinct performance obligations, such as those including both account and insurance services, the corresponding transaction
price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the estimated stand-alone selling prices.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. This is the ex-dividend date for listed equity securities,
and usually the date when shareholders approve the dividend for unlisted equity securities.

Net income/{expense) from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss includes the following:

* ‘Net income from financial instruments held for trading or managed on a fair value basis’: This comprises net trading income, which
includes all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading and ather
financial instruments managed on a fair value basis, together with the related interest income, expense and dividends, excluding the
effect of changes in the credit risk of liabilities managed on a fair value basis. It also includes all gains and losses from changes in the
fair value of derivatives that are managed in conjunction with financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

* ‘Net income/(expense) from assets and liabilities of insurance businesses, including related derivatives, measured at fair value
through profit or loss": This includes interest income, interest expense and dividend income in respect of financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss; and those derivatives managed in conjunction with the above that can be separately
identifiable from other trading derivatives.

* ‘Changes in fair value of designated debt instruments and related derivatives': Interest paid on the debt instruments and interest cash
flows on related derivatives is presented in interest expense where doing so reduces an accounting mismatch.

* ‘Changes in fair value of other financial instruments mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss': This includes interest
on instruments that fail the solely payments of principal and interest {'SPPI') test, see (d) below.

The accounting policies for insurance premium income are disclosed in Note 1.2(j).
(c) Valuation of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of a financial instrument
on initial recognition is generally its transaction price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). However, if there is a
difference between the transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value is based on a quoted price in an
active market or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the group recognises the difference as a trading
gain or loss at inception (a ‘day 1 gain or loss’). In all other cases, the entire day 1 gain or loss is deferred and recognised in the income
statement over the life of the transaction either until the transaction matures or is closed out or the valuation inputs become observable.

The fair value of financial instruments is generally measured on an individual basis. However, in cases where the group manages a
group of financial assets and liabilities according to its net market or credit risk exposure, the fair value of the group of financial
instruments is measured on a net basis but the underlying financial assets and liabilities are presented separately in the financial
statements, unless they satisfy the IFRS offsetting criteria. Financial instruments are classified into one of three fair value hierarchy
levels, described in Note 11, 'Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value'.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The majority of valuation techniques ﬂmpioy only observable market data, However, certain financial instrumeants are classified on the basis of valuation
technigues that feature one or more significant market inputs that are unobservable, and for them, the measurement of fair value is more judgemental;

Judgements Estimates

* Aninstrument in its entirety is classified as valued using significant unobservable inputs  » Details on the group’s level 3 financial instruments and the
if, In the opinion of management, greater than 5% of the instrument's valuation is driven sensitivity of their valuation to the effect of applying
by unobservable inputs. reasonably possible alternative assumptions in

* ‘Unobservable’ in this context means that there is little or no current market data determining their fair value are set out in Note 11.
avallable from which to determine the price at which an arm's length transaction would
be likely to oceur, It generally does not mean that there is no data available at all upon
which to base a determination of fair value (consensus pricing data may, for example,
be used),

(d) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held to collect the contractual cash flows and which contain contractual terms that give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Such financial assets include most loans
and advances to banks and customers and some debt securities. In addition, maost financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
The group accounts for regular way amortised cost financial instruments using trade date accounting. The carrying value of these
financial assets at initial recognition includes any directly attributable transactions costs.

The group may commit to underwriting loans on fixed contractual terms for specified periods of time. When the loan arising from the
lending commitment is expected to be sold shortly after origination, the commitment to lend is recorded as a derivative. When the group
intends to hold the loan, the loan commitment is included in the impairment calculations set out below.

Non-trading reverse repurchase, repurchase and similar agreements

When debt securities are sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them at a predetermined price ('repos’), they remain on the
balance sheet and a liability is recorded in respect of the consideration received. Securities purchased under commitments to resell
{‘reverse repos’) are not recognised on the balance sheet and an asset is recorded in respect of the initial consideration paid. Non-trading
repos and reverse repos are measured at amortised cost. The difference between the sale and repurchase price or between the purchase
and resale price is treated as interest and recognised in net interest income over the life of the agreement.
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Contracts that are economically equivalent to reverse repo or repo agreements (such as sales or purchases of debt securities entered
into together with total return swaps with the same counterparty) are accounted for similarly to, and presented together with, reverse
repo of repo agreements.

(e) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets held for a business model that is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling and which contain
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and interest are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income [‘FVOCI'). These comprise primarily debt sacurities. They are recognised on the trade date
when HSBC enters into contractual arrangements to purchase and are normally derecognised when they are either sold or redeemed.
They are subsequently remeasured at fair value and changes therein (except for those relating to impairment, interest income and
fareign currency exchange gains and losses) are recognised in other comprehensive income until the assets are sold. Upon disposal, the
cumulative gains or losses in other comprehensive income are recognised in the income stalement as ‘Gains less losses from financial
instruments’. Financial assets measured at TVOCI are included in the impairment calculations set oul below and impairment is
recognised in profit or loss.

(i Equity securities measured at fair value with fair value movements presented in other comprehensive income

The equity securities for which fair value movements are shown in other comprehensive income are business {acilitation and other
similar investments where HSBC holds the investments other than to generate a capital return. Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Gains or losses on the derecognition of these equity securities are not transferred to profit or loss, Otherwise,
equity securities are measured at fair value through profit or loss,

(g) Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments, other than those held for trading, are classified in this category if they meet one or more of the criteria set out
below and are so designated irrevocably at inception:

 the use of the designation removes or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch;

s a group of financial assets and liabilities or a group of financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strateqy, and

« the financial liability contains one or mare non-closely related embedded denvatives.

Designated financial assets are recognised when HSBC enters into contracts with counterparties, which is generally on trade date, and
are normally derecognised when the rights to the cash flows expire or are transferred, Designated financial liabilities are recognised
when HSBC enters into contracts with counterparties, which is generally on settlement date, and are normally derecognised when
extinguished. Subsequent changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement in ‘Net income from financial instruments held
for trading or managed on a fair value basis’ or ‘Net income/(expense) from assets and liabilities of insurance businesses, including
related derivatives, measured at fair value through profit or loss' or 'Changes in fair value of designated debt and related derivatives’
except for the effect of changes in the liabilities" credit risk, which is presented in 'Other comprehensive income’, unless that treatment
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Under the above criterion, the main classes of financial instruments designated by HSBC are:

s Debt instruments for funding purposes that are designated to reduce an accounting mismatch: The interest and/or toreign exchange
exposure on certain fixed-rate debt securities issued has been matched with the interest and/or foreign exchange exposure on certain
swaps as part of a documented risk management strategy,

« Financial assets and financial liabilities under unit-linked and non-linked investment contracts: A contract under which HSBC does not
accept significant insurance risk from another party is not classified as an insurance contract, other than investment contracts with
discretionary participation features ('DPF’), but is accounted for as a financial liability. Customer liabilities under linked and certain
non-linked investment contracts issued by insurance subsidiaries are determined based on the fair value of the assets held in the
linked funds. If no fair value designation was made for the related assets, at least some of the assets would otherwise be measured at
either fair value through other comprehensive income or amortised cost. The related financial assets and liabilities are managed and
reported to management on a fair value basis. Designation at fair value of the financial assets and related liabilities allows changes in
fair values to be recorded in the income statement and presented in the same line,

= Financial liabilities that contain both deposit and derivative components: These financial liabilities are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis.

(h) Derivatives

Derivatives are financial instruments that derve their value from the price of underlying items such as equities, interest rates or other
indices. Derivatives are recognised initially and are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, with changes in fair value
generally recorded in the income statement. Derivatives are classified as assets when their fair value is positive or as liabilities when
their fair value is negative. This includes embedded derivatives in financial liabilities, which are bifurcated from the host contract when
they meet the definition of a derivative on a stand-alone basis. Where the derivatives are managed with debt securities issued by HSBC
that are designated at fair value where doing so reduces an accounting mismatch, the contractual interest is shown in ‘Interest expense’
together with the interest payable on the issued debt.

Hedge accounting

When derivatives are not part of fair value designated relationships, if held for risk management purposes they are designated in hedge
accounting relationships where the required criteria for documentation and hedge effectiveness are met. The group uses these
derivatives or, where allowed, other non-derivative hedging instruments in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net
investments in foreign operations as appropriate to the risk being hedged.

Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge accounting does not change the recording of gains and losses on derivatives and other hedging instruments, but results
in recognising changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or liahilities attributable to the hedged risk that would not otherwise be
recognised in the income statement. If a hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is
discontinued and the cumulative adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortised to the income statement on a
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recalculated effective interest rate, unless the hedged item has been derecognised, in which case it is recognised in the income
statement immediately.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of gains and losses on hedging instruments is recognised in other comprehensive income and the ineffective
portion of the change in fair value of derivative hedging instruments that are part of a cash flow hedge relationship is recognised
immediately in the income statement within ‘Net trading income'. The accumulated gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement in the same periods in which the hedged item affects profit or loss. When a hedge
relationship is discontinued, or partially discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income remains in
equity until the forecast transaction is recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is immediately reclassified to the income statement,

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Non-qualifying hedges are derivatives entered into as economic hedges of assets and liabilities for which hedge accounting was not
applied.

(i)  Impairment of amortised cost and FVOCI financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognised for loans and advances to banks and customers, non-trading reverse repurchase agreements,
other financial assets held at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI'),
and certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, an allowance (or provision in the case of some
loan commitments and financial guarantees) is required for ECL resulting from default events that are possible within the next 12
months, or less, where the remaining life is less than 12 months, ("12-month ECL’). In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, an
allowance (or provisian) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument
(‘lifetime ECL'). Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognised are considered to be ‘stage 1'; financial assets which are considered
to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in ‘stage 2'; and financial assets for which there is objective evidence of
impairment so are considered 1o be in default or otherwise credit impaired are in ‘stage 3'. Purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets ('POCI') are treated differently as set out below.

Credit-impaired (stage 3)

The group determines that a financial instrument is credit impaired and in stage 3 by considering relevant objective evidence, primarily
whether contractual payments of either principal or interest are past due for more than 90 days, there are other indications that the
borrower is unlikely to pay such as that a concession has been granted to the borrower for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower's financial condition, or the loan is otherwise considered to be in default.

If such unlikeliness to pay is not identified at an earlier stage, it is deemed to occur when an exposure is 90 days past due, even where
regulatory rules permit default to be defined based on 180 days past due. Therefore, the definitions of credit impaired and default are
aligned as far as possible so that stage 3 represents all loans that are considered defaulted or otherwise credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost amount, i.e. gross carrying amount less
ECL allowance.

Nrite-off

Financial assets {and the related impairment allowances) are normally written off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceeds from the realisation of SeCurity.

In circumstances where the net realisable value of any collateral has been determined and there is no reasonable expectation of further
recovery, write-off may be earlier,

Forbearance

Loans are identified as forborne and classified as either performing or non-performing when the group modifies the contractual terms
due to financial difficulty of the borrower. Non-performing forbarne loans are stage 3 and classified as non-performing until they meet
the cure criteria, as specified by applicable credit risk policy (for example, when the loan is no longer in default and no other indicators of
default have been present for at least 12 months). Any amount written off as a result of any modification of contractual terms upon
entering forbearance would not be reversed.

In 2022, the group adopted the EBA Guidelines on the application of definition of default for our retail portfolios, which affects credit risk
policies and our reporting in respect of the status of loans as credit impaired principally due to forbearance {or euring thereof). Further
details are provided under 'Forborne loans and advances' on page 37.

Perfarming forborne loans are initially stage 2 and remain classified as forborne until they meet applicable cure criteria (for example, they
continue to not be in default and no other indicators of default are present for a period of at least 24 months). At this point, the loan is
either stage 1 or stage 2 as determined by comparing the risk of a default occurring at the reporting date (based on the modified
contractual terms) and the risk of a default occurring at initial recognition (based on the original, unmodified contractual terms).

A forborne loan is derecognised if the existing agreement is cancelled and a new agreement is made on substantially different terms, or
if the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the forborne loan is a substantially different financial instrument. Any new
loans that arise following derecognition events in these circumstances would generally be classified as POCI and will continue to be
disclosed as forborne.

Loan modifications other than forborne loans

Loan modifications that are not identified as forbomne are considered to be commercial restructurings. Where a commercial restructuring
results in a modification (whether legalised through an amendment to the existing terms or the issuance of a new loan contract) such
that HSBC's rights to the cash flows under the ariginal contract have expired, the old loan is derecognised and the new loan is
recognised at fair value. The rights to cash flows are generally considered to have expired if the commercial restructure is at market
rates and no payment-related concession has been provided. Modifications of certain higher credit risk wholesale loans are assessed for
derecognition having regard to changes in contractual terms that either individually or in combination are judged to result in a
substantially different financial instrument. Mandatory and general offer loan modifications that are not borrower specific, for example
market-wide customer relief programmes generally do not result in derecognition, but their stage allocation is determined considering all
available and supportable information under our ECL impairment policy, Changes made to these financial instruments that are
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economically equivalent and required by interest rate benchmark reform do not result in the derecognition or a change in the carrying
amount of the financial instrument, but instead require the effective interest rate to be updated 1o reflect the change of the interest rate
benchmarlk.

Significant increase in credit risk (stage 2)

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition is performed at each reporting period by
considering the change in the risk of default oceurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

The assessment explicitly or implicitly compares the risk of default occurring at the reporting date compared with that at initial
recognition, taking into account reasonable and supportable information, including information about past events, current conditions
and future economic conditions. The assessment is unbiased, probability-weighted, and to the extent relevant, uses forward-looking
information consistent with that used in the measurement of ECL. The analysis of credit risk is multifactor. The determination of whether
a specific factor is relevant and its weight compared with other factors depends on the type of product, the characteristics of the
financial instrument and the borrower, and the geographical region. Therefore, it is not possible 1o provide a single set of criteria that will
determine what is considered to be a significant increase in credit risk and these criteria will differ for different types of lending,
particularly between retail and wholesale. However, unless identified at an earlier stage, all financial assets are deemed to have suffered
a significant increase in credit risk when 30 days past due. In addition, wholesale loans that are individually assessed, which are typically
corporate and commercial customers, and included on a watch or worry list, are included in stage 2.

For wholesale portfolios, the quantitative comparison assesses default risk using a lifetime probability of default {'PD'), which
encompasses a wide range of information including the obligor's customer risk rating ('CRR’), macro-economic condition forecasts and
credit transition probabilities. For origination CRRs up to 3.3, significant increase in credit risk is measured by comparing the average PD
for the remaining term estimated at origination with the equivalent estimation at reporting date. The quantitative measure of significance
varies depending on the credit quality at origination as follows:

Origination CRR Significance trigger - PD to increasa by
0.1-1.2 o — 1bbps -
2.1-3.3 30bps

FFor CRRs greater than 3.3 that are not impaired, a significant increase in credit risk 1s considered to have occurred when the origination
PD has doubled. The significance of changes in PD was informed by expert credit risk judgement, referenced to historical credit
migrations and to relative changes in external market rates.

For loans originated prior to the implementation of IFRS 9, the origination PD does not include adjustments to reflect expectations of
future macroeconomic conditions since these are not available without the use of hindsight. In the absence of this data, origination PD
must be approximated assuming through-the-cycle PDs and through-the-cycle migration probabilities, consistent with the instrument’s
underlying modelling approach and the CRR at origination. For these loans, the quantitative compatison is supplemented with additional
CRR deterioration-based thresholds, as set out in the table below:

Additional significance criteris - number of CAR grade notches deterioration

Origination CRR requiret! to identify as significant credit deterioration (stage 2) {> or equal to)

0.1 o o 5 natches -
1.1-4.2 o o 4 notches - -
4.3-5.1 o 3 notches -
-1l o S 2 notches -

7.2-82 o 1 notch o
8.3 U notch

Further information aboul the 23-grade scale gsed for CRA G De Tounice on fade

For Retail portfolios, default risk is assessed using a reporting date 12-month PD derived from credit scores, which incorporate all
available information about the customer. This PD is adjusted for the effect of macroeconomic forecasts for periods longer than

12 months and is considered to be a reasonable approximation of a lifetime PD measure. Retail exposures are first segmented into
homogenous portfolios, generally by country, product and brand. Within each portfolio, the stage 2 accounts are defined as accounts
with an adjusted 12-month PD greater than the average 12-month PD of loans in that portfolio 12 months before they become 30 days
past due. The expert credit risk judgement is that no prior increase in credit risk is significant. This portfolio-specific threshold therefore
identifies loans with a PD higher than would be expected from loans that are performing as originally expected and higher than that
which would have been acceptable at origination. It therefore approximates a comparison of origination to reporting date PDs.

As additional data becomes available, the retail transter criteria approach continues to be refined to utilise a more relative approach for
certain portfolios. These enhancements take advantage of the increase in origination related data in the assessment of significant
increases in credit risk by comparing remaining lifetime PD to the comparable remaining term lifetime PD at origination based on
portfolio-specific origination segments. These enhancements resulted in significant migrations of loans to customers gross carrying
amounts from stage 1 to stage 2, but did not have a significant impact on the overall ECL for these portfolios in 2022 due fo low loan-to-
value ratios.

Unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk (stage 1)

ECL resulting from default events that are possible within the next 12 months ('12-month ECL") are recognised for financial instruments
that remain in stage 1.

Purchased or originated credit impaired

Financial assets that are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses are considered to be POCI.
This population includes new financial instruments recognised in most cases following the derecognition of farborne loans. The amount
of change in lifetime ECL for a POCI loan is recognised in profit or loss until the POCI loan is derecognised, even if the lifetime ECL are
less than the amount of ECL included in the estimated cash flows on initial recognition.

Movement between stages

Financial assets can be transferred between the different categories (other than POCI) depending on their relative increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Financial instruments are transferred out of stage 2 if their credit risk is no longer considered to be significantly

130 HSBC Bank plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



increased since initial recognition based on the assessments described above. In the case of non-performing forborne loans such
financial instruments are transferred out of stage 3 when they no longer exhibit any evidence of credit impairment and meet the curing
criteria as described above.

Measurement of ECL

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability-weighted, and incorporate all available information
which is relevant to the assessment including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable
forecasts of future events and economic conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL should take into account the
time value of money and considers other factors such as climate-related risks.

In general, HSBC calculates ECL using three main components, a probability of default ('PD’), a loss given default ('LGD') and the
exposure at default (‘EAD’).

The 12-month ECL is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD, LGD, and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the lifetime PD instead.
The 12-month and lifetime PDs represent the probability of default occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the
instrument respectively.

The EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheet
date to the default event together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on the
EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money.

HSBC makes use of the Basel Il IRB framework where possible, with recalibration to meet the differing IFRS 9 requirements as set out in
the following table:

Model Regulatory capital IFRS 9
* Through the cycle (represents long-run average PD throughout a * Point in time (based on current conditions, adjusted to take
full economic cycle). into account estimates of future conditions that will impact

FD s The definition of default includes a backstop of 90+ days past due, PD).

although this has been modified to 180+ days past due for some
portfolios, particularly UK and US mortgages.

Default backstop of 80+ days past due for all portfolios.

EAD * Cannot be lower than current balance * Amortisation captured for term products
» Downturn LGD (consistent losses expected to be suffered duringa  * Expected LGD (based on estimate of loss given default
sevare but plausible economic downturn). including the expected impact of future economic conditions
» Regulatory floors may apply to mitigate risk of underestimating such as changes in value of collateral).
LGD downturn LGD due to lack of historical data. * No floors.

Discounted using the original effective interest rate of the loan.

Only costs associated with obtaining/selling collateral
included.

* Discounted using cost of capital.
= All collection costs included.

-

Other * Discounted back !rom_pnint of default to balance sheet date,

While 12-month PDs are recalibrated from Basel models where possible, the lifetime PDs are determined by projecting the 12-month PD
using a term structure. For the Wholesale methodology, the lifetime PD also takes into account credit migration, i.e. a customer
migrating through the CRR bands over its life.

The ECL for Wholesale stage 3 is determined on an individual basis using a discounted cash flow ('DCF’) methodology. The expected
future cash flows are based on the credit risk officer’s estimates as of the reporting date, reflecting reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of future recoveries and expected future receipts of interest. Collateral is taken into account if it is likely
that the recovery of the outstanding amount will include realisation of collateral based on its estimated fair value of collateral at the time
of expected realisation, less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral.

The cash flows are discounted at a reasonable approximation of the original effective interest rate. For significant cases, cash flows
under four different scenarios are probability-weighted by reference to the economic scenarios applied more generally by HSBC Group
and the judgement of the credit risk officer in relation to the likelihood of the workout strategy succeeding or receivership being
required. For less significant cases, the effect of different economic scenarios and work-out strategies is approximated and applied as an
adjustment to the most likely outcome.

Pariod over which ECL is measured

Expected credit loss is measured from the initial recognition of the financial asset. The maximum period considered when measuring
ECL (be it 12-month or lifetime ECL) is the maximum contractual period over which HSBC is exposed to credit risk. However, where the
financial instrument includes both a drawn and undrawn commitment and the contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel the
undrawn commitment does not serve to limit HSBC's exposure to credit risk to the contractual notice period, the contractual period does
not determine the maximum period considered. Instead, ECL is measured over the period HSBC remains exposed to credit risk that is
not mitigated by credit risk management actions. This applies to retail overdrafts and credit cards, where the period is the average time
taken for stage 2 exposures to default or close as performing accounts, determined on a portfolio basis and ranging from between two
and six years. In addition, for these facilities it is not possible to identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from the
financial asset component. As a result, the total ECL is recognised in the loss allowance for the financial asset unless the total ECL
exceeds the gross carrying amount of the financial asset, in which case the ECL is recognised as a provision. For wholesale overdraft
facilities, credit risk management actions are taken no less frequently than on an annual basis.

Forward-loeking economic inputs

HSBC applies multiple forward-looking global economic scenarios determined with reference to external forecast distributions
representative of its view of forecast economic conditions. This approach is considered sufficient to calculate unbiased expected loss in
most economic environments. In certain economic environments, additional analysis may be necessary and may result in additional
scenarios or adjustments, to reflect a range of possible economic outcomes sufficient for an unbiased estimate. The detailed
methodology is disclosed in ‘Measurement uncertainty and sensitivity analysis of ECL estimates' on page 48.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

set out below:

Judgements Estimates

* Defining what is considered to be a significant increase in credit risk. « The section ‘Measurement uncertainty and

« Selecting and calibrating the PD, LGD and EAD models, which support the calculations, 59"?““"“\" analysis of ECL estimates’, marked as
including making reasonable and supportable judgements about how models react to current ?Ud'lEd “TF"'_“ page 48 sets oul the assumptions used
and future economic conditions. in determining ECL, and provides an indication of

the sensitivity of the result to the application of
different weighlings being applied to different
econamic assumptions,

= Selecting modael inputs and economic forecasts, including determining whether sufficient and
appropriately weighted economic forecasts are incorporated to calculate unbiased expected
loss.

* Making management judgemental adjustments o account for late breaking events, model and
data limitations and deficiencies, and expert credil judgements.

* Selecting applicable recovery strategies for certain wholesale credit-impaired loans.

(i)  Insurance contracts

A contract is classified as an insurance contract where the group accepts significant insurance risk from another party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified uncertan future event. An insurance contract may also transfer financial risk, but
is accounted for as an insurance contract if the insurance risk is significant. In addition, the group Issues investment contracts with
discretionary participation features ('OPH') which are also accounted for as insurance contracts as required by IFRS 4 ‘Insurance
Contracts’.

Net insurance premium tiheome

Premiums for life insurance contracts are accounted for when recewvable, except in unit linked insurance contracts where premijums are
accounted for when liabilities are established.

Reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the premiums for the direct insurance contracts to which
they relate.

I

MNet insurance claims and benefits paid and movements in liahilities to policyholders

Gross insurance claims for life insurance contracts reflect the total cost of claims arising during the year, including claim handling costs
and any policyholder bonuses allocated in anticipation of a bonus declaration.

Maturity claims are recognised when due for payment. Surrenders are recognised when paid or at an earlier date on which, following
notification, the policy ceases to be included within the calculation of the related insurance liabilives. Death claims are recognised when
notified.

Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related claim.
Liabilities under insurance contraat:

Liabilities under non-linked life insurance contracts are calculated by each life insurance operation based on local actuarial principles.
Liabilities under unit-linked life insurance contracts are at least equivalent to the surrender or transfer value, which is calculated by
reference to the value of the relevant underlying funds or indices.

Future profit participation on insurance contracts with DPF

Where contracts provide discretionary profit participation benefits to policyholders, liabilities for these contracts include provisions for
the future discretionary benefits to policyholders. These provisions reflect the actual performance of the investment portfolio to date and
management’s expectation of the future performance of the assets backing the contracts, as well as other experience factors such as
mortality, lapses and operational efficiency, where appropriate. The benefits to policyholders may be determined by the contractual
terms, regulation or past distribution policy.

Investmernt contracts with DPF

While investment contracts with DPF are financial instruments, they continue to be treated as insurance contracts as required by IFRS 4.
The group therefore recognises the prermiums for these contracts as revenue and recognises as an expense the resulting increase in the
carrying amount of the liability.

In the case of net unrealised investment gains on these contracts, whose discretionary benefits principally reflect the actual performance
of the investment portfolio, the corresponding increase in the liabilities 1s recognised in either the income statement or other
comprehensive income, following the treatment of the unrealised gains on the relevant assels. In the case of net unrealised losses, a
deferred participating asset is recognised only to the extent that its recoverability is highly probable. Movements in the liabilities arising
from realised gains and losses on relevant assets are recognised in the income statement.

Present value of in-force long-term insurance business

The group recognises the value placed on insurance contracts, and investment contracts with DPF, that are classified as long-term and
in-force at the balance sheet date, as an asset. The asset represents the present value of the equity holders’ interest in the issuing
insurance companies’ profits expected to emerge from these contracts written at the balance sheet date. The present value of

in-force long-term insurance business ('PVIF'} is determined by discounting those expected future profits using appropriate assumptions
in assessing factors such as future mortality, lapse rates and levels of expenses, and a risk discount rate that reflects the risk premium
attributable 1o the respective contracts. The PVIF incarporates allowances for both non-market risk and the value of financial options and
guarantees, The PVIF asset is presented gross of attributable tax in the balance sheet and movements in the PVIF asset are included in
'Other operating income’ on a gross of tax basis.
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(k) Employee compensation and benefits
Share-based payments

The group enters into both equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payment arrangements with its employees as compensation for
the provision of their services. The vesting period for these schemes may commence before the legal grant date if the employees have
started to render services in respect of the award before the legal grant date, where there is a shared understanding of the terms and
conditions of the arrangement. Expenses are recognised when the employee starts to render service to which the award relates.

Cancellations result from the failure to meet a non-vesting condition during the vesting period, and are treated as an acceleration of
vesting recognised immediately in the income statement. Failure to meet a vesting condition by the employee is not treated as a
cancellation, and the amount of expense recognised for the award is adjusted to reflect the number of awards expected to vest.

Post-employment benefit plans

The group operates a number of pension schemes including defined benefit, defined contribution and post-employment benefit
schemes.

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as the employees render service.

Defined benefit pension obligations are calculated using the projected unit credit method. The net charge to the income statement
mainly comprises the service cost and the net interest on the net defined benefit asset or liability, and is presented in operating
expenses,

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset or liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income, The
net defined benefit asset or liability represents the present value of defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of plan assets,
after applying the asset ceiling test, where the net defined benefit surplus is limited to the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The costs of obligations arising from other post-employment plans are accounted for on the same basis as defined benefit pension plans.
() Tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in the same statement in
which the related item appears.

Current tax is the tax expected to be payable on the taxable profit for the year and on any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years. The group provides for potential current tax liabilities that may arise on the basis of the amounts expected to be paid to

the tax authorities. Payments associated with any incremental base erosion and anti-abuse tax are reflected in tax expense in the period
incurred.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet, and the
amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the
periods as the assets will be realised or the liabilities settled.

In assessing the probability and sufficiency of future taxable profit, we consider the availability of evidence to support the recognition of
deferred tax assets. taking into account the inherent risks in long-term forecasting, including climate change-related, and drivers of
recent history of tax losses where applicable. We also consider the future reversal of existing taxable temporary differences and tax
planning strategies, including corporate reorganisations.

Current and deferred tax are calculated based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date,

Critical accounting judgements

The rec:gnﬂ_ion of def_erre_d ta_x ;sel.s depends on judgnma_nand estimates

Judgements Estimates
* Specific judgemeants supporting deferred tax assets are described in The recognition of deferred tax assets is sensitive to estimates of future cash
Nota 7. flows projected for periods for which detailed forecasts are available and to

assumptions regarding the long-term pattern of cash flows thereafter, an
which forecasts of future taxable profit are based, and which affect the
expected recovery periods and the pattern of utilisation of tax losses and tax
cradits.

The Group does not consider there to be a significant risk of a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets in
the next financial year but does consider this to be an area that is inherently judgemental.

(m) Provisions, contingent liabilities and guarantees

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle a present legal or
constructive obligation that has arisen as a result of past events and for which a reliable estimate can be made.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The recognition and measurement of provisions requires the group to make a number of judgements, assumptions and estimates. The most significant are
sel out helow:

Judgements Estimates

« Determining whether a present obligation exists. Professional advice s« Provisions for legal proceedings and requlatory matters remain very
taken on the assessment of litigation and similar obligations. sensilive to the assumptions used in the estimate, There could be a wider

« Provisions for legal proceedings and regulatory maltars typically require range of pessible outcomes for any pending legal proceedings,
a higher degree of judgement than other types of provisions. When investigations or Inquines. As a resull, it is often not practicable to
matters are at an early stage, aceounting judgements can be difficult quantify a range of possible outcomes for individual matters. It is also not
because of the high degree of uncertainty associated with determining practicable to meaningfully quantify ranges of potential outcomes in
whether a present obligation exists, and estimating the probability and aggregate for these types of provisions, because of the diverse nature and
amount of any outflows that may arise. As matters progross, F:m;umstam:es of such matters and the wide range of uncertainties
management and legal advisers evaluate on an ongoing basis whether involved.

provisions should be recognised, revising previous estimates as
appropriate. At more advanced stages, it is typically casier to make
estimates around a better defined set of possible outcomes

Contingent labilities, contractual Gommitments and guaraniee:

Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security, and contingent liabilities
related to legal proceedings or regulatory matters, are not recognised i the financial statements but are disclosed unless the probability
of settlement is remote.

Finanawal guarantes contracts

Liahilities under financial guarantee contracts that are not classified as insurance contracts are recorded nitially at their fair value, which
is generally the fee received or present value of the fee receivable.

The bank has issued financial guarantees and similar contracts to other group entities. The group elects to account for certain
guarantees as insurance contracts in the bank’s financial statements, m which case they are measured and recognised as insurance
liabilities. This election is made on a contract by contract basis, and is irevocable.

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets

Software under development is tested for impairment at least annually. Other non-financial assets are property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets (excluding goodwill) and right-of-use assets. They are tested for impairment at the individual asset level when there is
indication of impairment at that level, or at the CGU level for assets that do not have a recoverable amount at the individual asset level.
In addition, impairment is also tested at the CGU level when there is indication of impairment at that level. For this purpose, CGUs are
considered to be the principal operating legal entities divided by global business.

Impairment testing compares the carrying amount of the non-financial asset or CGU with its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
the fair value less costs of disposal or the value in use. The carrying amount of a CGU comprises the carrying value of its assets and
liahilities, including non-financial assets that are directly attributable to it and non-financial assets that can be allocated to it on a
reasonable and consistent basis. Non-financial assets that cannot be allocated to an individual CGU are tested for impairment at an
appropriate grouping of CGUs. The recoverable amount of the CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal of the CGU,
which is determined by independent and qualified valuers where relevant, and the value in use, which is calculated based on appropriate
inputs. When the recoverable amount of a CGU 15 less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss 1s recognised in the income
statement to the extent that the impairment can be allocated on a pro-rata basis to the non-financial assets by reducing their carrying
amounts to the higher of their respective individual recoverable amount or nil. Impairment is not allocated to the financial assets in a
CGU.

Impairment loss recognised in prior periods for non-financial assets is reversed when there has been a change in the estimate used to
determine the recoverable amount. The impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the non-financial assets
would not exceed the amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior periods.

(o) Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

HSBC classifies non-current assets or disposal groups (including assets and liabilities) as held for sale when their carrying amounts will
be recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use. To be classified as held for sale, the non-current asset or
dispesal group must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales
of such assets (or disposal groups), and the sale must be highly probable. For a sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of
management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset {or disposal group) and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete
the plan must have been initiated. Further, the asset (or disposal group) must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in
relation to its current fair value. In addition, the sale should be expected to qualify as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification and actions required to complete the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Held-for-sale assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell except for
those assets and liabilities that are not within the scope of the measurement requirements of IFRS 5. If the carrying amount of the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is greater than the fair value less costs to sell, an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write
down of the asset or disposal group to fair value less costs to sell is recognised. Any such impairment losgs is first allocated against the
non-current assets that are in scope of IFRS b for measurement. This first reduces the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
disposal group, and then to the other assets of the disposal group pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
disposal group. Thereafter, any impairment loss in excess of the carrying value of the non-current assets in scope of IFRS 5 for
measurement is recognised against the total assets of the disposal group.
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_Tﬂeaassiﬁcaﬁon as held for sale depends on certain judgements
Judgements

Management judgement is required in determining whether the IFRS 5 held for sale criteria are met, including whether a sale is highly probable and
expected to complets within one year of classification. The exercise of judgement will normally consider the likefihood of successfully securing any
necessary regulatory or political approvals which are almost always required for sales of banking businesses. For large and complex plans judgement will
also include an assessment of the enforceability of any binding sale agreement, the nature and magnitude of any disincentives for non-performance, and
the ability of the counterparty to undertake necessary pre-completion preparatory work, comply with conditions precedent, and otherwise be able to
comply with contractual undertakings to achieve completion within the expected timescale. Once classified as held for sale, judgement is required to be

2 Net fee income

Net fes income by product type

2022 2021 2020
. Em £m £m
Account services 302 a1 23
Funds under managamant 433 465 424
Cards 56 44 M
Credit facilities 235 246 250
Broking income 354 368 369
Imports/exports ) 44 40 M
Remittances ) 101 B4 62
Underwriting . 286 360
Global custody B 208 200 220
Corporate finance - 124 132 85
Securities others — (including stock lending) B - L 76 =
Trust income o 49 43 45
Othar 453 451 535
Fee i 2,606 2,706 2,674
Loss: fee expense (1,345) (1.293) (1.274)
Net fee income 1,261 1,413 1,400
Net fee income by global business
GBM Corporate
Mss GB Other CMB WPB Centre Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Year ended 31 Dec 2022
Fee income 1.301 817 70 425 592 (599) 2,606
Less: fee expense (1,439) (173) (55) (26) (248) 594 (1,345)
Net fee ir (138) 644 15 399 346 {5} 1,261
Year ended 31 Dec 2021
Fee income 1.251 861 £9 415 633 (543) 2,706
Less: fee expanse (1,245) {188) (83) (54) (255) 532 {1,293)
Net fee income i 673 6 361 378 (1) 1,413
Year ended 31 Dec 2020 B
Fee income 1,243 B&7 94 407 603 (530) 2,674
Less: fee expense (1,209) (172) (123) (51) {245) 526 11,274)
Net fee income 34 685 (29) 356 358 (4] 1,400

Net fee income includes £778m of fees earned on financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss (other than amounts
included in determining the effective interest rate) (2021: £93bm; 2020 £883m), £229m of fees payable on financial liabilities that are not
at fair value through profit of loss (other than amounts included in determining the effective interest rate) (2021: £221m; 2020: £176m),
£687m of fees earned on trust and other fiduciary activities (2021: £709m; 2020: £688m), and £69m of fees payable relating to trust and
other fiduciary activities (2021: £61m; 2020 £68m).
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3 Net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

2022 2021 2020
£m £ £m
Net income arising on:
Net Trading activities {2,840} 3 1.948
Othar instruments managed on a fair value basis 5715 1,730 {190)
Net income from fir cial instruments held for trading or managed on a fair value basis 2,875 1,733 1,768
Financial assets held to meet liabilities under msurance and investment contracts (1,436) 1.30% 290
Liahilities to nustoﬁ-\ers under (nvestment contracts 67 (91) (36)
Net (expense)fincome from assets and linbilities of insurance businesses, including related
derivatives, measured at fair value through profit or loss (1,369) 1.214 254
Denvatives managed in conjunction with the group’s issuad debt securities (736) (337) 112
Other changes in fair value 838 329 {95)
Changes in fair value of designated debt and related derivatives 102 (8) 17
Changes in fair value of other financial instruments mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss 143 493 285
Year ended 31 Dec 1,751 3,432 2,314
4  Insurance business
Net insurance premigm income
Nondinked Linked life Investment contracts
insurance insurance with DPF' Total
£m £m £m £m
Gross insurance premium income 214 432 1,238 o 1,884
Rensurars' share of gross insurance premium income (96) {1) - - (97)
Year ended 31 Dec 2022 118 431 1,238 1,3“3?
Gross insurance pramium income 218 429 1,360 2,007
Reinsurers' share of gross insurance premium income {100} n 1101}
Year ended 31 Dec 2021 118 428 1,360 1,906
Gross iINsurance premium income 205 274 1,185 1,664
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance premium meomo 1100} () 1105)
Year ended 31 Dec 2020 106 269 1,185 1,659
1 Discretionary participation features.
MNet insurance claims and benefits paid and movement in hakulities to pohcyholders
Non-linked Linked life Investment contracts
insurance insurance with DPF' Total
£m £m £m £m
Gross claims and benefits paid and movement in liabilihes aa 238 177 459
— claims, henefits and surrenders paid 122 | 129 1,491 1,742
movemeant in liabilities (78) 109 (1,314) (1 ,2!_131J
Reinsurers’ share of claims and benefits paid and movement in liabilities (64) 11 - (53)
claims, benefits and surrenders paid (57) (2) - | (59)
- mavermnent in liabilities (7) 13 -] 6
Year ended 31 Dec 2022 (20) 249 177 406
Gross claims and benefits paid and movement in liabilities 120 hh0 2420 3,000
- clmims, benefits and surrenders paid 126 106 1,654 1,786
movement in liabilities (B} 444 BGG 1,304 |
Reinsurers’ share of claims and benefits paid and movement in liabilities (45} 1) . (51)
claims, benefits and surrenders paid (G} 1 ‘ (69}
- mavement in habilities 23 {5) | 18
Year ended 31 Dec 2021 78 Hdd 2,420 3,039
Gross claims ancj benefits paid and movement in liabilities 143 300 1,404 1,847
- claims, benefits and surrenders paid 102 | 93 1,478 | 1,773
mavement in abilities 41 207 (1741 74
Feinsurers’ share of claims and benefits paid and movement in liabilities {64) . 164)
claims, benefits and surrenders paid (62)! 3 (65)]
- movement in liabilities (2) a =] 1]
Year ended 31 Dec 2020 79 300 1,404 1,783

1 Discretionary participation features.
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Liabilities under insurance contracts

Non-linked Linked life  Investment contracts

i i with DPF' Total
B ) £m £m £m £m
Gross liabilities under insurance contracts at 1 Jan 2022 556 1,938 19,770 22,264
Claims and benefits paid ) (122) {129) (1,491) {1.742)
Increase in liabilities to policyholders 44 238 177 459
Exchange differences and other movements® 20 16 (1,029) (994)
Gross liabilities under insurance contracts at 31 Dec 2022 498 2,062 17,427 19,987
Reinsurers' share of liabilities under insurance contracts (100} (40) - (140)
Net liabilities under i [ ts at 31 Dec 2022 398 2,022 17.427 19,847
Grose liabilities under insurance contracts at 1 Jan 2021 594 1,612 20,710 22,816
Claims and benefits paid (126} (108) (1,554) (1,786}
Increase in liabilities to policyholders 120 550 2,420 3.090
Exchange differences and other movements® (32} 118 (1.806) (1.8586)
Gross liabilities under insurance contracts at 31 Dec 2021 556 1,938 19,770 22,264
Reinsurers' share of liabilities under insurance conltracts (93) {53} — {146)
Net liabilities under insurance contracts at 31 Dec 2021 463 1,885 19,770 22,118
Gross liabilities under insurance contracts at 1 Jan 2020 576 1,295 19,638 21,508
Claims and henefits paid (102) (93) 11.578) (1,773)
Increase in liahilities to policyholdars 143 300 1,404 1,847
Exchangu differences and other movements” 123) 10 1,246 1.233
Gross liabilities under insurance contracts at 31 Dec 2020 594 1.512 20,710 22,816
Reinsurers’ share of liabilities under insurance contracts (118} 147} - {165])
Net liabilities under insurance contracts at 31 Dec 2020 476 1,465 20,710 22,651

1 Discretionary participation features,

2 'Exchange differences and ather maovements’ includes movements in liabiiities arising from net unrealised investment gains recognised in other

comprehiensive income.

The key factors contributing to the movement in liabilities to policyholders included movement in the market value of assets supporting
policyholder liabilities, death claims, surrenders, lapses, new business, the declaration of bonuses and other amounts attributable to

policyholders.

5 Employee compensation and benefits

2022 2021 2020
£m fm Em
Wanes and salaries 1,423 1_609 1.917
Social security costs 282 3 367
Post-employment berefits' 57 73 56
Year ended 31 Dec 1,762 2,023 2,340
1 Includes £42m (2021: £37m, 2020. £36m) in employer contributions to the defined contribution pension plans.
Average number of persons employed by the group during the year by global business
2022 2021 2020
MSS 3,722 4,322 4,590
GB 2,155 2,458 2,867
GBM Other a1 140 158
cMmB 2,748 3,023 3.396
wea 6,484 6,709 6,807
Corporate Centre 215 171 58
Year ended 31 Dec 15,405 16,823 17,866

1 Average numbers of headcount in corporate centre are allocated in respective businesses on the basis of amounts charged to the respective

global businesses.

Share-based payments

'Wages and salaries’ includes the effect of share-based payments arrangements, of which £45m were equity settled (2021: £96m;

2020: £76m), as follows:

2022

2021 2020

£m Em fm

Restricted share awards B - 45 - 96 77

Savings-related and other share award option plans 1 1 2

Year ended 31 Dec a6 a7 79
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HSBC share awards

Award

Deferred share awards
{including annual incentive
awards, long-term
incentive ('LTI') awards
delivered in shares) and
Group Performance Share

Policy
= An assessment of performance over the relevant period ending on 31 December is used to determine the amount of the
award tn be granted,

« Deferred awards generally require employees 1o remain in employment over the vesting period and are generally not
subject to performance conditions after the grant date. An exception to these are the LTI awards, which are subject to
performance conditions,

» Deferred share awards generally vest aver a period of thres, four, five or seven yoars.

Plan ('GPSP')
* Vested shares may be subject (o a retention requirement post-vesting.

s Awards are subject to malus and clawback.

International Employee s The plan was first introduced in Hong Kong in 2013 and now includes employees based in 31 jurisdictions.
Share Purchase Plan * Shares are purchased in the market each quarter up to a maximum value of £750, or the equivalent in local currency.
('ShareMatch’)

» Matching awards are added at a ratio of one free share for every three purchased.

s Matching awards vest subject to continued employment and the retention of the purchased shares for a maximum
period of two years and nine manths.

Movement on HSBC shara awards

2022 2021 2020

Number Nurniber Number

(000s) {00Ck) ({H00s)

Restricted share awards outstanding at 1 Jan 21,828 24,367 24 ,57;'3
Additions during the year' 11,651 15,479 16,823
Released in the y_z_z_._ar_‘ (12,279) {16,690} {16,024)
Farteited in the year (746) 1,328) (1.010)
Restricted share awards ding at 31 Dec 20,454 21,828 24,367
Weighted average fair value of awards granted (£] 4.96 4.49 h.58

1 Includes a numbar of share aption plans transierred from or to other subsidiaries of HSBC Holdings pic.

share option plans

HSBL
Main plans Policy

Savings-related share

» From 2014, eligible employees for the UK plan can save up to £500 per month with the option to use the savings to
option plans ('Sharesave’)

acquire shares.

» These are generally exarcisable within six months following either the third or fifth anniversary of the commencement af
a three years or five years contract, respectively.

s The exercise price is set at a 20% (2021 20%) discount to the market value immediately preceding the date of invitation.

Calculation of fair values

The fair values of share options are calculated using a Black Scholes model. The fair value of a share award 15 based on the share price at
the date of the grant.

Movemant on HSBC share option plians

Savings-related
share option plans
Number WAEP!
(000s) £
Outstanding at 1 Jan 2022 6,936 2.87
Granted during the year’ (179) 3.96
Exercisad during the yoar (173) 3.36
Expired during the year (177) 4.72
Forleited during the year (625) 2.98
Qutstanding at 31 Dec 2022 5,782 2.91
Weighted average remaining contr | life (years) 2.18
Outstanding at 1 Jan 2021 7,206 2.96
Granted during the year’ 984 3.25
Exercised during the year (227 3.97
Expired during the year (99) 4.70
Forfeited during the year [928) 3.68
Dutstanding at 31 Dec 2021 6,936 2.87
Weighted average remaining contractual life (years) 2.98
Outstanding at 1 Jan 2020 4,245 478
Granted during the year’ 5,909 2 56
Exercised during the year {107) 4.43
Expired during the year |78) 4.64
Farfeited during the year (2,763) 4.79
Outstanding at 31 Dac 2020 7,206 2.96
Weighted average remaining contractual life lyears) 3.64

1 Weighted average exercise price.
2 Includes a number of share option plans transferred from or to other subsidiaries of HSBC Holdings pic.
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Post-employment benefit plans

We operate a number of pension plans throughout Europe for our employees. Some are defined benefit plans, of which HSBC Trinkaus &
Burkhardt Pension Plan is the most prominent within the group.

The group's balance sheet includes the net surplus or deficit, being the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the
discounted value of scheme liabilities at the balance sheet date for each plan. Surpluses are only recognised to the extent that they are
recoverable through reduced contributions in the future, or through potential future refunds from the schemes. In assessing whether a
surplus is recoverable, the group has considered its current right to obtain a future refund or a reduction in future contributions together
with the rights of third parties such as trustees.

HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Pension Plan

The plan is a final salary scheme and is calculated based on the employee length of service multiplied by a predefined benefit accrual and
earnings. The pension is paid when the benefit falls due and is a specified pension payment, lump-sum or combination thereof. The plan
is overseen by an independent corporate trustee, who has a fiduciary responsibility for the operation of the plan. Its assets are held
separately from the assets of the group.

The strategic aim of the investment is to achieve, as continuously as possible, an increase in value over time. For this purpose, the fund
invests mainly in government bonds, corporate bonds, investment funds and equities. |t invests predominantly in developed regions.
Overall, emphasis is placed on having a high degree of diversification.

Plan assets were created to fund the pension obligations and separated through what is known as a contractual trust agreement ('CTA').
HSBC Trinkaus Vermogenstreu-hénder e. V. and HSBC Trinkaus Mitarbeitertreuhdnder e. V. assume the role of trustee. Active members
of the trustee constitute members of the Management Board, of the Supervisory Board and Bank employees.

The Bank reqularly aims to comprehensively finance the committed benefits externally. There is no obligation to allocate contributions to
the CTA. The Bank is entitled to assets that are not needed to fund the committed benefits. No further additions to the plan assets are
envisaged at the present time.

In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association, the revenues may only be used, for example, for pension payments or
for reinvestment. Similarly, withdrawals may only be made in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association. In so far as
the benefits are directly committed and there is a shortfall in the CTA, provisions are created for these.

The latest measurement of the defined benefit obligation of the plan at 31 December 2022 was carried out by Tim Voetmann and Hans-
Peter Kieselmann, at Willis Towers Watson GmbH, who are Fellows of the German Association of Actuaries ('DAV'), using the projected
unit credit method. The next measurement will have an effective date of 31 December 2023.

Net assets/(habilities) recognised on the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans

Present value

of defined

Fair value of benefit
plan assets obligations Total
£m £m £m
Defined benefit pension plans 534 (531) 3
Defined benefit healthcare plans - - (51) (51)
At 31 Dec 2022 534  (582) (48)
Total employee benefit liabilities (within ‘Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities') {121)
Total employee benefit [within 'Prepay accrued income and other assets’) 73
Defined benefit pension plans B 668 (742) (74)
Defined bnne_ﬁ_t healthcare plans - {68} (68)
At 31 Dac 2021 668 (810) 1142)
Total employee benefit Iiahilit_i{-_!_s_ (within 'Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities’) N {196)
Total employee benefit assets (within ‘Prepayments, accrued income and other assets’) 54
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Defined benefit pension plans

Net asset/(hability} under detined benefit pension plans

Present value of defined benefit

Fair value of plan assets obligations Net defined benefit asset/(liability)
HSBC Trinkaus & HSBC Trinkaus & HSBC Trinkaus &
Burlchardt Other Burlkchardt Other Burkhardt Other
Pension Plan® plans Pension Plan® plans Pension Plan® plans
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Jan 2022 434 234 (438) {304) (G (70)
Service cost - - L (8) 4 (8)
current sarvice cost | — - 3 (BIE 3| 9)
past service cost and gains from settlements — - 1] 1 1] 1
Met interest incomedicost) on the net defined
banelit asset/(lability) (3) 5 14} {5) 7) -
Remeasurement effects recognised in other
comprehensive income (51) (99) 94 98 43 (%)
return on plan assets lexcluding interest | |
income) 51 (99) = - 51) (99)
actuarial gains/(losses) financial assumplions . - 94 106 94 106
— actuarial gains/(lesses) demographic I
assuUmphions ‘ - - - (2) - (2)
actuarial gains/{losses) experience ‘
assumptions - - = {ﬁil 6)
other changes - - - | - - - |
Exchange differences 22 1 (20} (3) 2 2)
Benefits paid - (7) 10 13 10 6
Other movements' 3 (5) 3) 35 — — 30
At 31 Dec 2022 405 129 (357) (174) 48 (45)
At 1 Jan 2021 435 2h8 (4889} (357) {54) {129)
Service cost 7 27 (7 27)
current service cost [ 1) 1y (B) 111y
past service cost and gains from settlements | 1 (16} 1 {_‘IGJ!
Net interest income/{cost) on the net defined
benefit ;msemlml_:i_litw 3 4 {3) {3) 1
Rerneasurement effects recognised in other
comprehensive income 17 i2) 26 16 43 14
~ return on plan assets {excluding interest |
income) - ) | 17 12} | 17| 12y
actuarial galns/{losses) financial assumplions | | | 26 7 26| 7
actuarial gains/{losses) demographic |
assumptions =
- actuarial gains/{losses) experience |
assumptions | | 8 9|
other changes | | |
Exchange differances {28) {1} 29 g 1 8
Benefits paid {15) 10 19 10 4
Other movements' 7 (1 ) 69 3 59
At 31 Dec 2021 434 234 (4:38) (304) 4} (70)

1 Other movements include contributions by the group, contributions by employees, administrative costs and tax pard by plan.
i prominent plan within the

2 The HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Pension Plan and its comparatives have been disclosed as it is considered to be

group. Figures disclosed comprise this pronunent plan and other plans i Germany

HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH has not made contributions to the HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Pension Plan during 2022. Benefits
expected to be paid from the HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Pension Plan to retirees over each of the next five years, and in aggregate for

the five years thereafter, are as follows:

Banefits expected to be pad from plans

HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Pension Plan'

2023
£m
1"

2024
Fm
10

2026 2027
fm £
11 12

2028-2032
£m

66

1 The duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13.7 Years for the HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhard! Pension Plan under the disclosure assumptions

adopted (2021: 17.1).

140 HSBC Bank plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Fair value of plan assets by asset classes

31 Dec 2022 a1 Der 2021
Quoted No quoted Quoted No quoted
market price  market price market price matket price
in active in active in active In active
Value b K Th f HSBC Value market market Thersol HSBC
_ £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
HSBC Trink & Burkhardt Pension Plan - S
Fair value of plan assets ) 405 352 53 - 434 377 57
- pquities _ 8 8 — - 1 1] =1 —|
— bonds | 199 199 — - 112 112 = —
~ other | 198 | 145 | 53 - 311 254 | 857 - |

Post-employment defined benefit plans’ principal actuarial financial assumptions

The group determines the discount rates to be applied to its obligations in consultation with the plans’ local actuaries, on the basis of
current average vields of high quality (AA-rated or equivalent) debt instruments with maturities consistent with those of the defined
benefit obligations.

Key actuanal assumptions

Rate of
increase for Rate of pay
Discount rate  Inflation rate i i

) % Yo % o
HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Pension Plan
At 31 Dec 2022 an 2.25 2.25 2.25
At 31 Dec 2021 1.14 1.76 1.756 1.76

Mortality tables and average life expectancy at age 60

Mortality Life expectancy at age 60 for  Life expectancy at age 60 for
1y o Fors

table a rrlnln_ . b ber currently:
= Aged 60 Aged40  Aged60  Aged 40
HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Pension Plan __ B
At 31 Dec 2022 RT 2018G1" 25.2 28.2 28.9 31.2
AU31 Dec 2021° AT 2018G1’ 206 234 240 263

1 Heubeck tables: RT 2018G. These are generally accepted and used mortality tables for occupational pension plans in Germany, taking into account
future mortality improvements and lighter mortality for higher-paid pensioners.
2 2021 data provided based on Heubeck tables for Life expectancy at age 65 for male/female members currently aged 65 or 45.

The effect of changes in key assumptions

HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Pension Plan Obligation

Financial impact of increase Financial impact of decrease
2022 021 2020 2022 2021 2020
£m Em Em £fm fm £m
Discount rate - increase/decrease of 0.25% (7 r1§_ {15) ] 13 16
Intlation rate - increase/decrease of 0.26% 7 1" 16 (5) 9) 12)
Pension payments and deferred pensions - increase/decrease of
0.25% ) __!_fi_ ] 10 - (5) 8 110
i)e_y — increase/decrease of 0.26% 1 2 4 (1 2) 4)
Change in maortality - increase of 1 Year - 10 16 19 N/A N/A NIA

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this in
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit asset
recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared to the prior penod.
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Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate emoluments of the Directors of the bank, computed in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as amended by statutory
mstrument 2008 No.410, were:

2022 2021 2020

B £000 £O00 000

Fees! 1,410 1,525 1,25.5.

Salanes and other emoluments’ 2,294 3,669 2321

Annual incentives® 979 694 576

Long-term incentives® 779 511 727

Year ended 31 Dec 5,462 6,299 4,880

!

Fees paid to non-executive Directars.
Salaries and other emoluments include Fixed Pay Allowances.

3 Discretionary annual incentives for executive Directors are based on a combination of indvidual and corporate performance, and are determined

by the Remuneration Committee of the bank's parent company, HSBC Holdings ple. Incentive awards made to executive directors are delivered
the farm of cash and HSBC Holdings ple shares, The total amount shown is comprised of £489,285 (2021: £346,959) in cash and £489,285 (2021:
£346.959) in Restricted Shares, which is the upfront portion of the annual incentive granted in respect of performance year 2022,

4 The amount shown is comprised of £380,893 (2021: £274,177) in deferred cash, £398, 162 (2021: £237,253) in deferred Restricted Shares. These

amounts relate to the partion of the awards that will vest followmg the substantial completion of the vesting condition attached to these awards in
2022, The total vesting period of deferred cash and share awards is no less than three years, with 33% of the award vesting on each of the first
and second anniversarias of the date of the award, and the balance vesting on the third anniversary of the date of the award. The deferred share
awards are subject to at least a six-month retention period upon vesting. Delails of the Plans are contained within the Directors’ Remuneration
Report of HSBC Holdings pic. The cast of any awards subject to service conditions under the HSBC Share Plan 2011 are recogmsed through an
annual charge based on the fair value of the awards, apportioned over the period of service lo which the award relates.

No Director exercised share options over HSBC Holdings plc ordinary shares during the year,

No Director is accruing retirement benefits under a money purchase scheme in respect of Directors” qualifying services (2021: one
Director).

1 addition, there were payments during 2022 under unfunded retirement benefit agreements 1o former Directors of £394 334 (2021;

£396,363). The provision at 31 December 2022 in respect of unfunded pension obligations to former Directors amounted to £4,286,951
(2021 £5,387,505).
Of these aggregate figures, the following amounts are attributable to the highest paid Director:

2022 2021 2020
£000 oo i_".'pfju
Salaries and other emoluments 1,641 1,399 1 392
Annual incentives' 859 568 417
Long-term incentives” 677 290 677
Year ended 31 Dec 3,177 2,347 2,486

1 Awards made to the highest paid Director are delivered in the form of cash and HSBC Holdings ple shares. The amount shown COMpPrises
£429,285 (2021: £279,225, in cash and £429,285 (2021 £278,225, in Restricted Shares.

2 The amount shown comprises £330,687 (2021: £209,492) in deferred cash, £345,818 (2021: £180, 147 in deferred Restricted Shares. These

amounts relate to a portion of the awards that will vest following the substantial completion of the vesting condition attached to these awards in
2022. The total vesting period of deferred cash and share awards is no less than three years, with 33% of the award vesting on each of the first
and second anmiversaries of the date of the award, and the balance vesting on the third anniversary of the date of the award., The share awards
are subject to a six-maontt; retention period upan vesting.

No pension contributions were made by the bank in respect of services by the highest paid Director during the year {2021: £0).
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6 Auditors’ remuneration

2022 2021 2020
£m £m ﬂ
Audit feas payable to PwC 11.3 104 113
Other audit fees payable 0.7 0.4 0.4
Year ended 31 Dec 12.0 10.8 11.7
Fees payable by the group to PwC

- 202 2021 2020

B - Cm_ o £rm Em

Fees for HSBC Bank ple's statutory audit’ 55 48 5.3
Fees for ather services provided to the group 15.6 143 131
audit of the group's subs_idia_ries" 5.8 5.6 6.0

- audit-related assurance services® 53 8.7 4.2
4.5 3.0 29

- other assurance services [——
Year ended 31 Dec 21.1 19.1

1 Fees payable to PwC for the statutory audit of the consolidated financial statements of the group and the separate financial statements of HSBC
Bank ple. They exclude amounts payable for the statutory audit of the bank's subsidiaries which have been included in ‘Fees for other services
provided to the group”.

Including fees payable to PwC for the statutory audit of the bank's subsidiaries.

Including services for assurance and ather services that relate to statutory and reguiatory filings, including interim reviews.

Including permitted services relating to attestation reports on internal controls of a service organisation primarily prepared for and used by third-
party end user, including comfort letters.

184

LAY

Fees payable for non-audit services for HSBC Bank plc are not disclosed separately because such fees are disclosed on a consolidated
basis for the group.

7 Tax
lax expense
2022 2021 2020
£m £m tm
Current tax _ (283) (187) 195
~ for this year (243) (245) 186
adjustments in respect of prior years (a0 58 2]
Deferred tax : - _(278) 164 (331)
— origination and reversal of temporary differences [m;i 248 (339}}
- effect of changes in tax rates ) | 33 (56) (26)
- adjustments in respect of prior years — 133 (28) 34 _|
Year ended 31 Dec’ (561) (23) (136)

1 In addition to amounts recorded in the income statement, a tax credit of £393m (2021: credit of £135m; 2020 charge of £135m) was recorded
directly to equity.

The group's profits are taxed at different rates depending on the country in which the profits arise. The key applicable corporate tax rates
in 2022 included the UK and France. The UK tax rate applying to HSBC Bank plc and its banking subsidiaries was 27% (2021: 27%),
comprising 19% corporation tax plus 8% surcharge on UK banking profits. The applicable tax rate in France was 26% (2021: 28%). Other
overseas subsidiaries and overseas branches provided for taxation at the appropriate rates in the countries in which they operate.

During 2022, legislation was enacted to reduce the UK banking surcharge rate from 8% to 3% from 1 April 2023, decreasing the tax
credit for 2021 by £33m due to the remeasurement of deferred tax balances. The main rate of UK corporation tax will increase from 18%
to 25% from 1 April 2023.

In December 2021, the OECD published model rules that provided a template for countries to implement a new global minimum tax rate
of 15%. These rules are due to be effective from 2024. In January 2022, the UK government opened a consultation on how the UK
implements the rules. The impact on HSBC will depend on exactly how the UK implements the model rules, as well as the profitability
and local tax liabilities of HSBC's operations in each tax jurisdiction from 2024. In addition, potential changes to tax legislation and tax
rates in the countries and territories in which we operate could increase our effective tax rate in the future.
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Tax reconciliation

The tax charged to the income statement differs from the tax expense that would apply if all profits had been taxed at the UK corporation
tax rate as follows:

2022 2021 2020
£m Yo Frm U fm Y%

(Loss)profit before tax o 1959) 1,023 (1,615}

Tax expense

Taxation at UK corporation tax rate (182) 19.0 194 19.0 (307) 19.0

Impact of taxing overseas profits at different rates (75) 7.8 / 0.7 (75) 4.6

UK banking surcharge (47) 4.9 (2 0.2} {100) 6.2

ltems increasing the tax charge in 2022:

- adjustrmient in respect of prior years 93 {9.7) 30 29 45 {2.8)
UK and European Banlk levies 50 {5.2) 72 0 31 11.9)
impict of held for sale adjustments a7 14.9) - -
adjusiment to ddfﬂrred tax on insurance contracts 36 (3.8) -

- impact of changes in tax rates 33 (3.4) (56) (5.5) (26) 1.6

- effect of profits in associates and joint ventures 5 {0.5) {43) 4.2 {3) 02

- local taxes and overseas withhalding taxes 4 {0.4) (4] 0.4y 49 {3.0)

— impact of temporary differences between French tax retums and [FRS - — 324 1.7 -

- other 1 {0.1) (34) {3.4) 34 (2.1}

Items reducing the tax charge in 2022

~ ml:wurnents.. in .unnrc:()gr!isud deferred tax (268) 279 147) 14.6) 3n 19.9)
movement in uncertain tax positions (110) 11.5 5 05 1 {01)

- non-laxable income and gains (93) 9.7 (92) (9.0) (55) 34
deductians for AT1 coupon payments (55) 5.7 {53) 5.2) 51 3.2
tax impact of plannad sale of French retail banking business - - (324 {31.7) -

Year ended 31 Dec (561) 58.5 123) (2.3) (136) 5.4

The effective tax rate for the year was 58.5% (2021: (2.3)%, 2020: 8.4%), reflecting a tax credit arising on a loss before tax. The tax credit
for 2022 was driven by underlying losses before tax and non-recurring items, including recognition of previously unrecognised deferred
tax assets in France and a tax credit of £110m from movement in provisions for uncertain lax positions. The tax credit for 2021 included
favourable non-recurring items in respect of tax rate changes, prior period adjustments and the recognition of previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets in France.

In 2021, the signing of a framework agreement for the planned sale of the French retail banking business resulted in a tax deduction {tax
value of £324m} for a provision for loss on disposal which was recorded in the French tax return. A deferred tax liability of the same
amount arose as a consequence of the temporary difference between the French tax basis and IFRS in respect of this provision. This
temporary difference reversed in 2022 upon application of held for sale accounting for IFRS, resulting in the reversal of this deferred tax
liability to the income statement.

Accounting for taxes involves some estimation because tax law is uncertain and its application requires a degree of judgement, which
authorities may dispute. Liabilities are recognised based on best estimates of the probable outcome, taking into account external advice
where appropriate. We do not expect significant liahilities to arise in excess of the amounts provided, The current tax asset includes an
estimate of tax recoverable from HMRC with regards to past dividends received from EU resident companies. The ultimate resolution of
this matter involves litigation for which the outcome is uncertain.
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Movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities

Loan Property,
Ratir i i plant and FVOCI Goodwill and  Relief for tax

benefits provisions equipment  investments intangibles losses® Other’ Total
The group wall_ £m ~ £m . fm £m £m fm £m £m
Assets . 74 53 215 = 212 381 = 935 ‘
Libilties L - @ - (58) i | -l e @sn)
At 1 Jan 2022 7a a9 215 58) 212 381 (289) 584
Income statement 1) - 22 3 (201) 243 222 278
Other comprehensive incoma (18) — - 179 — - 218 76
Fareign exchange and other — - (1) 18 — 4 6 27
At 31 Dec 2022 45 49 236 142 11 628 154 1,265
Assets’ a5 50 236 14z] 1 628 154 1,266
Liabilities' - (1) - i - ‘ - - | )
Assots B 63 66 171 - | 157 418 | T' 875 |
Liabilites _ <] (@ ) 166, | - (7] (298)|
AL 1 Jan 2021 63 57 165 166) 157 418 (117) 577
Income statement 28 (10) 51 3 b5 (37) (254) {164}
Other comprehensive income {17} 2 (m 105 — — 82 171
At 31 Dec 2021 74 48 215 58] 212 381 {289) 584
“Assats’ i 74 53 215 ~ ] 212 381 - l 935 ‘
Liabilities® - (4)] ~ 58| R | (289 (3851)]

1 Other deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to share-based payments, cash flow hedges and temporary differences arising between IFRS and
French tax returns.

2 The deferred tax asset recognised in respect of tax losses mainly relates to France £(688)m, and US State tax losses of the New York branch of
HSBC Bank ple £(28)m, all of which are supported by future profit forecasts.

3 After petting off balances within countries, the balances as disclosed in the financial statements are as follows: deferred tax assets £ 1.279m (2021
£599m); and deferred tax liabilities £14m (2021:£15m).

Management has assessed the likely availability of future taxable profits against which to recover the deferred tax assets of the Company
and the Group, taking into consideration the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, past business performance and forecasts
of future business performance.

The group’s net deferred tax asset of £1,265m (2021: £584m) included a net UK deferred tax asset of £498m (2021: £448m) and a net
deferred asset of £697m (2021: £7m) in France, of which £588m (2021: £294m) related to tax losses which are expected to be
substantially recovered within 10 years.

Management is satisfied that although the Company recorded a UK tax loss in the year, the aforementioned evidence is sufficient to
support recognition of all UK deferred tax assets. These deferred tax assets are supported by future profit forecasts for the whole of
HSBC's UK tax group. This includes a number of companies which are not part of the HSBC Bank plc group, in particular HSBC UK Bank
ple and its subsidiaries.

Following the signing of a framewaork agreement in 2021 for the planned sale of the French retail banking business, that business is now
excluded from our deferred tax recognition analysis as its sale is considered probable. Although the French consolidated tax group
recorded a tax loss in 2020 and 2021, this would have been taxable profit if the effects of the retail banking business and other non-
recurring items, mainly related to the restructuring of the European business, were excluded. The accounting loss for France in 2022 is
driven by the loss on assets held for sale. Excluding this amount, the business in France recorded a profit in 2022. The French net
deferred tax asset is supported by forecasts of taxable profit, also taking into consideration the history of profitability in the remaining
businesses.
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Movement of daferred tax assets and llalilities
Retirement Property, plant Goodwill and  Relief for tax
k fits and equif Fvoci intangibles losses? Other’ Total
The bank £m £m fm £m £m £m £m
Assels’ 17| 207 - 191 69 48 | 532 |
Lliabilities” ‘ - -1 (23) = | - il 23)
At 1 Jan 2022 17 207 (23) 191 69 48 509
Income slatement (4) 24 — (191) (41) (6) (218)
(ther comprehensive income 1 - 98 - - 210 309
Farean exchange and other adjusiments — - — — 8 8
At 31 Dec 2022 14 231 75 — 28 260 608
Assets? | 14 231 75 - 28 260 608
Liahilities' — - - - — = —
Agsets 16 162 166 416 — 750 |
Liabilities {100) {104} qzmﬂ
At 1 Jan 2021 16 162 (100) 156 A6 (104) 546
Income statement 2 4h 35 1347) 73 (192}
Other comprehensive income (1 77 77 153
Foreign exchange and other adjustmants 2 2
At 31 Dec 2021 17 207 [23) 191 64 48 509
Assets’ 17 207 191 9 48 532
Liabilities” | {23) (23)

1 Other deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to fair value of own debl, loan impairment allowances, share based payments and cash flow hedges.
2 The deferred tax asset recognised in respect of losses mainly refates to US State tax Josses of the New York branch of HSBC Bank ple,which are

supported by future profit forecasts.

3 After netting off balances within countries, the balances as disclosed in the aceounts are as follows: defer

deferred tax fabiities mil (2027:0i)).

Unrecognised deferred tax

The group

The amount of temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance

red tax assets £608m (2021: £509m) and

sheet was £1,017m (2021: £1,944m). These amounts include unused tax losses, tax credits and temporary differences of £912m (2027:

£1.141m) arising in the New York branch of HSBC Bank plc and of nil (2021: £782m) arising in France. Of the unrecognised losses,

£502m expire within 10 years (2021: £394m), and the remainder expire after 10 years or do not expire.

The hank

The amount of temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance

sheet was £912m (2021: £1,141m). These amounts include unused tax losses, tax credits and temporary differences arising in the New
York branch of HSBC Bank plc of £912m (2021: £1,141m). Of the unrecognised losses, £402m expire within 10 years (2021 £394m), and

the remainder expire after 10 years.

There are no unrecognised deferred tax liabilities arising from the group's investments in subsidianies and branches.
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8 Dividends

Dividends to the parent company

2020

2022 2021
- £ per share . Em £ per _sh{if fm : £ per share £m
Dividends paid on ordinary shares = s - - o
In respect of previous year: o - B —
I5r_ev?ou_s year! - B ) - - _ ) - — - B
- first special dividend —
In reépuct of current year: B -
Current year; - - -
first special dividend' 1.067 850
- second special dividend - - —
Total ) ) 1.067 850 = - B
Dividends on preference shares classified as equity - =
Dividend on HSBC Bank ple non-cumulative third dellar preference
shares” 0.001 - 0.0 — 1.47 51
Total 0.001 — 0.001 - 1.47 51
Total coupons on capital securities classified as equity (= 202 - 194 o 212
Dividends to parent — 1,052 - 194 0 263
1 Special dividend declared/paid on CETT capital in 2022,
2 In 2021, the hquidation value of USD third daliar preference shares reduced o $0.01 per share.
Total coupons on capital securities classified as equity
2022 2021 2020
) - - First call date fm fm Em
'Undated Subordinated additional Tier 1 instruments - _ o
Undated Subordinated Resettable Additional Tiar 1 instrument 2015 Dac 2020 a7 84 103
Undated Subordinated Resettable Additional Tier 1 instrument 2016 Jan 2022 11 12 "
Undated Subordinated Resettable Additional Tier 1 instrument 2018 Mar 2023 28 10 10
Unduled&lbordinat&d Resettable Additional Tier 1 instrument 2018 Mar 2023 st gl 28 28
Undated Subordinated Resetlable Additional Tier 1 instrument 2019 Nov 024 24 24 24
Undated Subordinated Resettable Additional Tier 1 instrument 2019 - Nov 2024 ] 7 B
Undated Subordinated Resettable Additional Tier 1 instrument 2019 Dec 2024 20 20 20
Undated Subordinated Resettable Additional Tier 1 instrument 2019 Jan 2025 8 E) 8
Undated Subordinated Resettable Additional Tier 1 instrument 2022 Mar 2027 6 —
Total 202 184 212

9 Segmental analysis

The Chief Executive, supported by the rest of the Executive Committee, is considered the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM’) for
the purposes of identifying the group’s reportable segments. Business results are assessed by the CODM on the basis of adjusted
performance that removes the effects of significant items from reported results. We therefore present a reconciliation between reported
and adjusted results as required by IFRSs.

Our operations are closely integrated and, accordingly, the presentation of data includes internal allocations of certain items of income
and expense. These allocations include the costs of certain support services and functions to the extent that they can be meaningfully
attributed to businesses and countries. While such allocations have been made on a systematic and consistent basis, they necessarily
involve a degree of subjectivity. Costs that are not allocated to businesses are included in Corporate Centre.

Where relevant, income and expense amounts presented include the results of inter-segment funding along with inter-company and
inter-business line transactions. All such transactions are undertaken on arm'’s length terms. The intra-group elimination items for the
businesses are presented in Corporate Centre.
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Our businesses

HSBC provides a comprehensive range of banking and related financial services to its customers through its global businesses. The
products and services offered to customers are arganised by these global businesses.

Our operating model has the following matenal segments: WPEB: CMB: a GBM business which is further split into three reportable
segments MSS, GB and GBM Other reflecting the reorganisation of the GBM management structure during 2021 and a Corporate Centre,
These segments are supported by Digital Business Services and eleven global functions, including Risk, Finance, Compliance, Legal,
Marketing and Human Resources. These business segment are our reportable segments under IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’.

By operating segment:

Adjusted profit/(loss) befora tax

2022
GBM Corporate
Mss GB Dther cve WFPB Centre Total
Em £m £m £m £fm £fm £m
Net operating income before change in expected
credit losses and other credit impairment charges 2,413 1,571 (8) 1,432 1,492 (118) 6,782
af which: net interest income/fexpensel 54} 903 (16) 925 710 (564) 1,904
Change in expected credit losses and other aredit
impairment charges (1 (153) (1) {54) (7) (6) (222)
Net operating income/{expense) 2412 1418 (9) 1,378 1,485 {1 24_) 6,560
Total operating expenses (1.940) (932) (318) 1593) (908) (115) (4,806)
Operating profit/(loss) 472 486 (327) 788 577 (239) 1,754
Share of loss in associates and joint ventures — - 2) - - (28) (30)
Adj 1 profit/(loss) before tax 472 486 (329) 785 577 (267) 1,724
%% %o o %Y %o “{n
Adjusted cost efficiency ratio 80.4 59.3 nfa 41.4 60.9 . 70.9
2021
Net oparaling income/(expense) before change in
expected credit losses and other credit impairment
charges' 2,065 1,367 574 1,095 1,275 141} 6,330
of which, net interest income/{expense) (232) h68 2249 649 567 f22) 1,754
Change in expectad credit losses and othar credit
impairment charges 1 140 5 1 23 {2} 174
Net aperating incdmea’iexpense} 2,056 1,507 684 1,102 1,298 43) 6,504
Total oparating expenses (2,064 1918) (485) 1612} 1975) 164) 5,118
Operating profitilloss) (8) 589 99 490 323 AL L] 1,386
“Share of profitin associates and jouint ventures - T 1M 191
Adjusted profitiloss) before tax (8) 589 99 490 323 B4 1,677
U % Y % %o %
Adjusted cost efficiency ratio 1004 67.2 839 559 165 80.9
2020
Nit aperating incomel{expense) before change in
expecied credit losses and other credit impaitment
charges' 1,968 1,381 624 1133 1.035 (144) 5,997
of which: net interest income/fexpense) (96) 51 a6 656 664 (53) 1,898
Change in expected credit losses and other credil
impairment charges 1 (448) () {322) 39) 4 {808)
Net operating incomel(expense) - 1,969 933 620 a1 996 (140) 5,189
Total operating expenses 11,949) {878} 672) 1659 (1,128) (86) 15,372}
Operating profit/{loss) 20 55 152) - 152 (132) (226) . 1183)
Share of profit in associates and joint ventures (1) 1)
Adjusted profit/iloss) before tax 20 ah (62) 1652 (132) 1227} {184)
[ % % % % %
Adjusted cost efficiency ratio 99.0 636 107.7 b2 109.0 89.6

1 Net operating income before change in expected credit losses and other credit impairment charges, also referred to as revenue. It ineludes inter-
segment ravenue which is eliminated in Corporate centre, amountmg to £120m (2027: £124m: 2020: Fi67m)

Reported external net operating income 1s attributed to countries on the basis of the location of the branch responsible for reporting the
results or advancing the funds:

2022 2021 2020
£m fm Em
Reported external net operating income by country 4,646 6,120 5,900
United Kingdom 3,161 2,937 2,914 |
- France' 17 1,677 1,528‘
— Garmany 732 887 814
Other countries’ ; | 582 618 644

1 2022 halances include losses on disposal of businesses classified as held-for-sale as parl of a broader restructuring ol our European business.
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Adjusted results reconciliation

2022 2021 2020
Significant Significant Significant
Adjusted items Reported Adjusted itams Reportad Adjusted items Reported
) . fm  Em £m _Em £m £m Em fm £m
Revenue' 6,782 (2,136) 4,646 6,330 210) 6,120 5,997 97) 5,900
ECL (222) = (222) 174 174 (808) ~ (808)
Operating expenses (4.806) {547) (5.353) (6,118) (344) (5.462) (6.372) (1,333 (6,705)
Share of profit/iloss) in associates
and joint veritures (30) - 130) 19 - 191 ) — 4}
Prol‘.it.i.’i.loss} before tax 1,724 (2,683) (958) 1,577 1554) 1,023 {184) (1,430) (1.614)
1 Net operating income before change in expected credit Josses and other credit impairment charges, also referred to as revenue.
Adjusted profit/{loss) reconciliation
2022 2021 2020
- £m Em Fm
Year nded 31 Dec R
Adjusted profit/{loss) before tax - 1,724 1.577 (184)
Significant items . (2,683) (564} {1,430)
fair value movements on financial instruments’ : a3 (5) {3))
- European restructurings | (2,034) 123} ‘
restructuring and other related costs | (692) (526} (773)
settlements and provisions in connection with lagal and regulatory matters - - [9:||
~ Impairment of other intangible assets - - = (645)|
Reported profit/{loss) before tax (959) 1,023 (1.614)
1 Includes fair value movements on non-qualifying hedges and debit valuation adjustments on derivatives.
Balance sheet by business
GBM Corporate
MSS GB Other CMB WFPB Contre Total
L D - e £m fm = fm £m
31 Dec 2022 - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 2,785 37,523 115 25,219 6,826 146 72,614
Customer accounts 45,320 79,606 5,903 55,749 29,211 159 215,948
31 Dec 2021 -
Loans and advances to customers 2,016 37,685 197 23,629 27.574 176 B‘I,*I??.-'.
Customer accounts 34,243 74,179 4,355 50,297 41,939 228 205,241
10 Trading assets
The group The bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m fm
Treasury and other eligible bills N 3,712 2.451 3,061 1,872
Debt securities 21,873 27,004 13,960 17,794
Equity securities 38,330 40,930 35,407 38,570
Trading securities 63,915 70,385 52,428 58,236
Loans and advances to banks' 3,987 4,142 3.872 3,559
Loans and advances to customers' . 11,976 9179 11_.3-2_3_ 8,995
At 31 Dec 79,878 83,706 67,623 70,790

1 Loans and advances to banks and customers include reverse repos, stack borrowing and other accounts.

11 Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Control framework

Fair values are subject to a control framework designed to ensure that they are either determined or validated by a function independent

of the risk taker,

For all financial instruments where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to
models, independent price determination or validation is utilised. In inactive markets, the group will source alternative market information
to validate the financial instrument’s fair value, with greater weight given to information that is considered to be more relevant and
reliable. The factors that are considered in this regard are, inter alia:

* the extent to which prices may be expected to represent genuine traded or tradable prices;

* the degree of similarity between financial instruments;

* the degree of consistency between different sources:

* the process followed by the pricing provider to derive the data;
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« the elapsed time between the date to which the market data relates and the balance sheet date; and
» the manner in which the data was sourced.

For fair values determined using valuation models, the control framework may include, as applicable, development or validation by
independent support functions of: (i) the logic within valuation models; (i) the inputs to these models; (iii} any adjustments required
outside the valuation models; and (iv) where possible, model outputs. Valuation models are subject to a process of due diligence and
calibration before becoming operational and are calibrated against external market data on an ongoing basis.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

In certain circumstances, the group records its own debt in issue at fair value, based on quoted prices in an active market for the specific
instrument. When quoted market prices are unavailable, the own debt in issue 15 valued using valuation techniques, the inputs for which
are based either on quoted prices in an inactive market for the instrument or are estimated by comparison with quoted prices in an active
market for similar instruments. In both cases, the fair value includes the effect of applying the credit spread that is appropriate to the
group’s liabilities.

Siructured notes issued and certain other hybrid instruments are included within trading liabilities and are measured at fair value.
The spread applied to these instruments i1s denved from the spreads at which the group issues structured notes.

Fair value hierarchy
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determmed according to the following hierarchy:

e Level 1 - valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active
markets that HSBC can access al the measurement date.

s Level 2 - valuation technigue using observable inputs: financial nstruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active
markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where
all significant inputs are observable

« Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one
or more significant inputs are unobservable.

Financial instruments carried at falr value and bases of viluatusn

2022 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Lewval 2 Level 3 Total
The group ) £m £m £m Em fm fm £m Em
Recurring fair value measurements at 31 Dec
Assels
Trading assets 52,493 24,647 2,738 79,878 59,813 22,549 1,344 83,706
Financial assets designated and otherwise mandatornly
measured al fair value through profit or loss 6,183 6,380 3,318 15.881 6,332 9,146 3.1 18,649
Derivatives 2,296 221,205 1,737 225,238 1.987 137,418 1.816 141,221
Financial investments 19,007 8,902 1,447 29,356 29,668 10,235 1,387 41,290
Liabilities
Trading liabilities 26,258 14,592 415 41,265 32,886 12,967 580 46,433
Financial liabilities designated at fair valug 938 23,888 2,461 27,287 1,020 30,457 2,121 33,608
Derivatives 1,744 214,645 2,478 218,867 1,108 135,809 2,454 139,368
The bank
Recurring fair value measurements at 31 Dec
Assets
Trading assets 41,524 23,940 2,159 67,623 49,435 20,021 1,334 70,790
Financial assets designated and otherwise manditorily
measured at fair value through profit or lnss 252 1,094 272 1,618 298 2,556 361 3,215
Dervatives 2,037 192,778 1,899 196,714 1,413 122,422 1,952 125,787
Financial investments 11,214 976 71 12,261 21,806 1,346 53 23,20.5
Liabilities
Trading liabilities 11,771 13,591 403 25,765 19,367 11,240 554 31,161
Financial liabilites designﬂmd at fair value — 17,565 1,850 19,415 19,306 1,563 20,869
Derivatives 1,691 189,908 1.737 193,336 1,066 123,863 2.722 127,651
Iransfers betwean Level 1and Level 2 tar values

Assets Liabilities

Designated and
otherwise mandatorily

Financial Trading measured at fair value Trading Designated
+ gh profit or loss Derivatives liahilities at fair value Derivatives
£m £m £m £m £m ~ fm £m
At 31 Dec 2022 - N
Transfers from Level 1 to Level 2 126 1,194 — 39 — - —
Transfers from Level 2 1o Level 1 189 682 - 32 = = e
A1 31 Dec 2021
Transiers from Level 1 to Level 2 366 1,73 w7 — 27 — —
Transters from Level 2 ta Level 1 244 290 399 9 — —

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to occur at the end of each quarterly reporting period. Transfers into and
out of levels of the fair value hierarchy are normally attributable to observability of valuation inputs and price transparency.
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Fair value adjustments

Fair value adjustments are adopted when the group determines there are additional factors considered by market participants that are
not incorporated within the valuation model. Movements in the level of fair value adjustments do not necessarily result in the recognition
of profits or losses within the income statement, such as when models are enhanced and fair value adjustments may no longer be
required.

Far value adjustments
2022 3 2021
Mss Corporate 4 MSS Corparate
£m £m frm fm
Type of adjustment
Risk-related 359 33 605 31
- bid-offer 188 -] 190 |
- uncertainty | 50 — 3?| 1
credit valuation adjustrnent | 98 29 | 89 26
debt valuation adjustment - | 134]| 27) -
~ funding fair value adjustment _ 87 4 206 4|
- otier | = =1 ] —|
Model-related - 31 - 19
- madel limitation . 31| - 19/ —1
other ! = ‘ - | -
Inception profit (Day 1 P&L reserves) - 64 - 65
At 31 Dec 454 33 589 31
Bid-offer

IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ requires use of the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of fair value. Valuation
models will typically generate mid-market values. The bid-offer adjustment reflects the extent to which bid-offer costs would be incurred
if substantially all residual net portfolio market risks were closed using available hedging instruments or by disposing of or unwinding the
position,

Uncertainty

Certain model inputs may be less readily determinable from market data, and/or the choice of model itself may be more subjective, In
these circumstances, an adjustment may be necessary to reflect the likelihood that market participants would adopt more conservative
values for uncertain parameters and/or model assumptions than those used in the valuation model.

Credit and debit valuation adjustments

The CVA is an adjustment to the valuation of over-the-counter ('OTC’) derivative contracts to reflect the possibility that the counterparty
may default, and that the group may not receive the full market value of the transactions.

The DVA is an adjustment to the valuation of OTC derivative contracts to reflect the possibility that HSBC may default, and that it may not
pay the full market value of the transactions.

HSBC calculates a separate CVA and DVA for each legal entity, and for each counterparty to which the entity has exposure. With the
exception of central clearing parties, all third-party counterparties are included in the CVA and DVA calculations, and these adjustments
are not netted across the Group's entities.

HSBC calculates the CVA by applying the probability of default ('PD’) of the counterparty, conditional on the non-default of HSBC, to
HSBC's expected positive exposure to the counterparty and multiplying the result by the loss expected in the event of default.

Conversely, HSBC calculates the DVA by applying the PD of HSBC, conditional on the non-default of the counterparty, to the expectad
positive exposure of the counterparty to HSBC and multiplying the result by the proportional loss expected in the event of default. Both
calculations are performed over the life of the potential exposure.

For most products, HSBC uses a simulation methodology, which incorporates a range of potential exposures over the life of the portfolio,
to calculate the expected positive exposure to a counterparty. The simulation methodology includes credit mitigants, such as
counterparty netting agreements and collateral agreements with the counterparty. The methodologies do not, in general, account for
‘wrong-way risk’, which arises when the underlying value of the derivative prior to any CVA is positively correlated to the PD of the
counterparty. When there is significant wrong-way risk, a trade-specific approach is applied to reflect this risk in the valuation.

Funding fair value adjustment

The FFVA is calculated by applying future market funding spreads to the expected future funding exposure of any uncollateralised
component of the OTC derivative portfolio. The expected future funding exposure is calculated by a simulation methodology, where
available, and is adjusted for events that may terminate the exposure, such as the default of HSBC or the counterparty. The FFVA and
DVA are calculated independently.

Model limitation

Madels used for portfolio valuation purposes may be based upon a simplified set of assumptions that do not capture all current and
future material market characteristics. In these circumstances, model limitation adjustments are adopted.

Inception profit (Day 1 P&L reserves)

Inception profit adjustments are adopted when the fair value estimated by a valuation model is based on one or maore significant
unobservable inputs, The accounting for inception profit adjustments is discussed in Note 1.
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Fair value valuation bases

Financial instruments measured at faur value using a valuation techmaue with significant unobservable inputs Level 3
- Assets Liabilities - o
Designated and
otherwise
mandatorily
measured at fair
Financial Held for value through Held for  Designated at
| ling profit or loss  Derivatives Total trading fair value  Derivatives Total
The group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Private equity including stralegic
invastments 85 59 3,058 - 3,202 104 — — 104
Assal-backed securities B 275 170 78 — 523 — - = =
Srructured notes z - - — — — — 2,461 = 2,461
Derivatives o - — - 1,737 1.737 — — 2,478 2,478
hor portfolios 1,087 2,509 182 - 3,778 31 — - 311
At 31 Dec 2022 1,447 2,738 3,318 1,737 9,240 415 2,461 2,478 5,354
Privite equity including strategic
investments 79 1 2,898 2978 7 7
Asset backed securities 495 a7 592 -
Structured notes 2,120 — 2,120
Derivativas 1,816 1,816 2,454 2.454
Other portiolios 813 1,246 273 2,332 573 | - 574
At 31 Dec 20217 1.387 1,344 3171 1.816 7,718 HE0 2121 2,454 5,165
The bank .
Private equity inchuding strategic
investmenls 54 58 272 — 384 103 — — 103
Asset-backed securities 17 170 - - 187 - — = _ o =
Structured notes - - - - - - 1,850 — 1,850
Dervatives - - — 1,899 1,899 - — 1,728 1,728
Othar partfolios — 1,931 - - 1,931 300 - 9 309
At 31 Dec 2022 71 2,159 272 1,899 4,401 403 1,850 1,737 3.990
Privarte equity including strategic
investments 53 353 A06 [ - - i}
Asset-backed securities 97 97 : B =
Structured notes. 1,663 — 1,563
Derivalives 1,852 1,952 2,722 2,722
Other portfolios 1.237 8 1,245 548 - 548
At 31 Dec 2021 h3 1,334 361 1,952 3,700 Hh4d 1,563 2,722 4,839

Level 3 instruments are present in both ongoing and legacy businesses. Loans held for securitisation, certain derivatives and
predominantly all Level 3 Asset-backed securities are legacy positions. HSBC has the capability to hold these positions.

Private equity including strategic investments

The investment's fair value is estimated: on the basis of an analysis of the investee’s financial position and results, risk profile, prospects
and other factors; by reference to market valuations for similar entities quoted in an active market; the price at which similar companies
have changed ownership; or from published net asset values ('NAVs') received. If necessary, adjustments are made to the NAV of funds
to obtain the best estimate of fair value.

Asset-backed securities

While quoted market prices are generally used 10 determine the fair value of these securities, valuation models are used to substantiate
the reliability of the limited market data available and to identify whether any adjustments to quoted market prices are required. For
certain ABSs, such as residential morgage-backed securities, the valuation uses an industry standard model with assumptions relating to
prepayment speeds, default rates and loss severity based on collateral type, and performance, as appropriate. The valuations output is

benchmarked for consistency against observable data for securities of a similar nature.

Structured notes

The fair value of Level 3 structured notes is derived from the fair value of the underlying debt security, and the fair value of the embedded
derivative is determined as described in the paragraph below on derivatives. These structured notes comprise principally equity-linked
notes, 1ssued by HSBC, which provide the counterparty with a return linked to the performance of equity securities and other portfolios.
Examples of the unobservable parameters include long-dated equity volatilities and correlations between equity prices, and interest and
foreign exchange rates.

Derivatives

OTC derivative valuation models calculate the present value of expected future cash flows, based upon ‘no-arbitrage’ principles. For
many vanilla derivative products, the modelling approaches used are standard across the industry. For more complex derivative products,
there may be some differences in market practice. Inputs to valuation models are determined from observable market data, wherever
possible, including prices available from exchanges, dealers, brokers or providers of consensus pricing. Certain inputs may not be
observable in the market directly, but can be determined from observable prices through model calibration procedures or estimated from
historical data or other sources.
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Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Movement in Level 3 financial instruments

 Assets o B Uabilites
Designated and
mandatorily
measured at fair
Financial Trading value through Trading Designated
profit or loss Derivatives liabilities  at fair value  Derivatives
The group _Em £m £m £m £m fm £m
At 1 Jan 2022 1,387 1,344 317 1,816 580 2,121 2,454
Total gaina/{losses) on assets and total (gains)/losses
on liabilities recognised in profit or loss B {6) B (415) (84) . 564 [223_] i (638) 723
- net incorme trom financial instruments held for [ ‘ .I
Lrtlding or managed on a fair value basis - (415) - 564 (223) - 723
- changes in fair value of other financial instruments ‘
mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
or lnss - - (84) — - [B38]| -
gains less losses from financial investments at fair |
value through other comprehensive income | [6}_ | - - | - - -
Total gains/{losses) recognised mn other
comprehensive income ('OCI")' 12 238 3 ¥ 29 47
- financial investments: fair value gains/{losses) Ly = = ‘ e e -
- exchange differences 1? | 238 | _3 { 1 = : 29 - _1
Purchases B 2,067 562 = 151 - -
New issuances . . £ = z_ 1705 =
Sales (716) (594) - (120 78 =
Settlements (323) (51) (731) (407) (575) (701)
Transfars out (283) (2) (473) (15) (564) (582)
Transfers in 1,052 78 558 a1 461 567
At 31 Dec 2022 2,738 3,318 1,737 415 2,461 2,478
Unrealised gains/{losses) recognised in profit or loss
relating to assets and liabilities held a1 31 Dec 2022 - B 49 B 565 2 30 2,339
- tading incomefiexpense) excluding net interest |
income | - {5) - 565 - ] - 2,339
- net ncome/|expense) from other financial
instruments designated at fair value ‘ = | =] 49 - — 3D| -
At 1 Jan 2021 1.635 1.611 3,467 1.974 118 1,150 3,006
Total gains/|losses) on assets and total {gains)losses i .
on liabilities recognised in profit or loss 15 !”I'I 148 1.608 "m {316) 1,362
- netincoma from financial instruments held for I |
trading or managed on & fair value basis | - (77} — 1,608 1 - 1,362
-~ changes in fair value of other financial instruments | |
mandatorily measurad at fair value through profit | |
or loss | - - 148 - - (316) —
- gains less losses from financial investments at fair | |
value through other comprehensive income | 15 — | — - - - | -
Total gains/{losses) recognised in other
comprehensive income "OC1")! (75) (4) (152) (B} 1) {32) {8)
- financial investments: fair value gains/(losses) | 127) — | - - — =il —
- exchange differences (48), 4] (162). B} (), (32)] 18)
Purchases 565 686 543 - 742 1 o
New issuances - - - — 25 213 —
Sales 417) (208) 813) = B 3) (200 -
Settlerments (109) (506} (5) (1,722) (604) (1,063) (2,343)
Transters out (218) (668) [41) (368) (5) (137) (465)
Transfers in 1 511 24 330 197 315 B12
At 31 Dec 2021 1,387 1,344 3,171 1,816 580 2,121 2,454
Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss
relating to assets and liabilities held at 31 Dec 201 — (11} 51_ 846 102 (721}
- trading income/{expense) excluding net interest |
_ income o (1 — 846 — (721)
= net income from other financial instruments |
designated at fair value - 51 —| — 102 | -~

—

1 Included in “financial investments: fair value gains/(losses)’ in the current year and ‘exchange differences’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to occur at the end of each quarterly reporting period. Transfers into and
out of levels of the fair value hierarchy are primarily attributable to observability of valuation inputs and price transparency.
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Movement in Level 2 financial instruments (Continued)

Assets Liabilities
Designated and
otherwise
mandatorily
measured at fair
Financial Trading value through Trading Designated
Investments Assets profit or loss Derivatives Liabilities  at fair value Derivatives
The bank £m £m £m £m fm £m £m
At 1 Jan 2022 53 1,334 361 1,952 554 1,563 2,722
Total gains/(losses) on assets and total (gains)losses
an liahilities recognised in profit or loss 2 (419) (91) 665 (216) (569) 45
net incoma from financial instruments held for
trading or managed on a fair value basis — (419)| - 665 (216) — 45
changes in fair value of other financial nstriuments
mandatorily measured at fair valug through profit
or loss — — (91) — (569) -
gaing less losses from financial investments at fair
value through other comprehensive incorma 2 — - - = — =
Total gains/(losses) recognised in other
comprehensive income rocry 1 — 24 - == == ==
linancial investments: fair value gains!|lusses) 1 — = — - i —
nxchange differences — - 24 - 5 = P
Purchases — 1,495 — - 151 - —
MNew issuances - - - — — 1,682 —
Sales - (659) (12) — (120) - =
Seltlemants — (323) (8) (850) (392) (557) (1,025)
Transfers out - (283) 2) (541) (15) {471) {6086)
Transfers in 15 1,014 — 673 441 202 601
At 31 Dec 2022 71 2,159 272 1,899 403 1,850 1,737
Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised in prafit or lass
telating to assets and fabilities hald at 31 Dec 2022 - = - Gag - 19 3,020
trading income/{expense) excluding net interest |
income - | — — 688 - - 3,020
net income/(expense) from other financial
instruments designated at fair value = — - - - 19 —
At 1 Jan 2021 141 1,583 31 2,032 103 651 3,287
Total gaina/tlosses) on assets and total (gans)losses
on liabilities recognised in profit or loss ] {76) T 1,730 12 (246} 1,443
net income from financial instruments held for |
trading or managed on a fair value basis (76)| 1,730 12 =] 1,443
changes in fair value of other financial instruments
mandatorily measured at fair value through profit |
o loss | 77 {246}
aing less losses from financial investments at fair |
value through other comprehansive income 1 = =
Total gains/{losses) recognised in other
camprahensive income ('OCI')' (1 13) {11} —
financial investments: fair value gains/(losses) &l I -
~ exchange differences (3)| (11 - —
Purchases 683 2 /N
MNew issuances 2128 —
Sales (2) 1186} {13) = =
Settlements (3} (505) 4] 11,778} (494) (950} 12,297)
Transfers oul (83) (668) {375) (5) (163) {511}
Transfers in 506 343 197 133 800
Al 31 Dec 2021 53 1,334 361 1,952 554 1,563 2,722
Unrealised gains/{losses) recognised in profit or loss
relating to assels and liabilities held at 31 Dec 2021 (11} I 973 46 1949)
trading incomey{expense) excluding net interest
income {11 973 (949}
net ncome from other financial instruments
designated at fair value 1] 46 =

1 Included in ‘financial investments: fair value gans/(losses)’ in the current year and ‘exchange differences’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive INCome.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to oceur at the end of each quarterly reporting period. Transfers into and
out of levels of the fair value hierarchy are primarily attributable to observability of valuation inputs and price transparency.
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Effect of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to reasonably possible alternatives

Sensitivity of Level 3 fair values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions

—_ e - 2021 -
Reflected in Retlactad in
profit or loss Reflected in OCI profit or loss Reflected in OCI
Un- Un- Lin Un
Favourable favourable Favourable favourable Favourable favourable Favourable  favourable
hang + hang hang chang changes changes changes
The group £m £m £m £m £m fm Em £m
Derivatives, trading assets and trading liabilities' 201 {261) - - 92 70) - —
Designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss 236 lz:!?l = == 247 (247) - —
Financial investments ) - E: 9 27 {19) 15 {15) 51 (50)
Year ended 31 Dec 446 {505) 27 (19) 354 (332) 51 (50)
The bank
Derivatives, trading assets and trading liabilities' 183 (253) — — 93 (72) -
Designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss ) 45 (45} - - 64 164} =k -
Financial investments B - - - 14 ) R — 6 15)
Year ended 31 Dec 238 (298) 14 (6) 167 [136) B 15)

1 Derivatives, trading assets and trading liabilities are presented as one category to reflect the manner in which these instruments are risk managed.

Sensitivity of Level 3 fair values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions by instrument type

2022 2021
Reflected in Reflected in .
profit or loss - — Mﬂd in OCI profit ar loss Reflected in oc
Un- Un- Un- Un
F ble f F ble Favourable  favourable  Favourable  favourable
hang hang hang hang changes changes changes changes
a B ~ Em ~ Em - £m B £m fin B fm B £m £_|:n_
Private equity including strategic investments 225 (389) 8 @ 232 (234) 7 )
Assat-backed securities 28 {17) 12 5) 38 (20) 1 =
Structured notes 5 (5) - - 6 16) - -
Derivatives a4 (44) — — 29 34 -
Other portfolios 144 oy 7 ™ 48 138) a3 (43)
Total 446 {505) 27 (19) 354 {332 51 {50)

The sensitivity analysis aims to measure a range of fair values consistent with the application of a 95% confidence interval.

Methodologies take account of the nature of the valuation technique employed, as well as the availability and reliability of observable
proxy and historical data.

When the fair value of a financial instrument is affected by more than one unobservable assumption, the above table reflects the most
favourable or the most unfavourable change from varying the assumptions individually.

HSBC Bank plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022 155




Notes on the Financial Statements

Key unobservable inputs to Level 3 financial instruments

Guantitative information about significant tine shservable inputs in Level 3 valuations
Fair value 2022 2021
Full ranq_a of Full range of
Assets  Liabilities yuation Key unobservable i"pmi inputs
fm fm technigues inputs Lower Higher Lower Higher
Private equity including strategic
investments 3,202 104 See below See below N/A N/A NA M/A
Asset backed securities 523 - )
cLo/eno’ | 156 —  Market proxy | Bid quotes = 92 I 100
Other ABSs 367 | —  Market proxy Bid quotes — 99 = 100
Structured notes E 2,461
equity-inked notes | ) Model — Option model Equity Vplatilih{r 6%  99% 6% 124%
| = 042 Equity Correlation 32% 99%  34%  99%
fund-linked notes : —  Model - Option model Fund .\."olatility
FX-linked notes ‘ - 3 Model - Option model FX Volatility 3%  20% 3% 99%
athar | — 416
Darivatives 1,737 2,478
Imerest rate derivatives: ‘ 507 633
secunlisalion swaps | 215 173 Model - Discounted cash flow Constant Prepayment 5%  10% 5%  50%
long-dated swaptions LE 56 Model - Option model IR Volatility 9% 33% 16%  35%
ather ‘ 248 404
— FX dervatives: | 447 304 i
FX optitns 418 294 Model - Option model FX Volatility 3%  46% 2% 99%
other ‘ 29 | 10
Equily derivatives: | G688 1,324
long-dated single stock options | 344 376 Model - Dption model Equity Volatility 7% 153% 4%  138%
nther | 344 948
Cradit derivatives: | 95 217
other | 95 | 217
Other portfolios 3,778 3
repurchase agreements | a7 272 Model - Discounted cash flow IR Curve 1% 9% 1% 5%
other” i 3.391 39
At 31 Dec 9,240 5,354

I Collateralised loan obligation/callateralised debt obligation.
2 Other Equity Derivatives consists mainly of Swaps and OTC Options.
2 Other consists of various instruments including investment in funds, repurchase agreement and bords.

Private equity including strategic investments

Given the bespoke nature of the analysis in respect of each holding, it is not practical to quote a range of key unobservable inputs. The
key unobservable inputs would be price and correlation. The valuation approach includes using a range of inputs that include company
specific financials, traded comparable companies multiples, published net asset values and qualitative assumptions, which are not
directly comparable or quantifiable.

Prepayment rates

Prepayment rates are a measure of the anticipated future speed at which a loan portfolio will be repaid in advance of the due date, They
vary according to the nature of the loan portfolio and expectations of future market conditions, and may be estimated using a variety of
evidence, such as prepayment rates implied from proxy observable security prices, current or histonical prepayment rates and
macroeconomic modelling.

Market proxy

Market proxy pricing may be used for an instrument when specific market pricing 1s not available, but there is evidence from instruments
with common characteristics. In some cases, it might be possible to identify a specific proxy, but more generally evidence across a wider
range of instruments will be used to understand the factors that influence current market pricing and the manner of that influence.

Volatility

Volatility is a measure of the anticipated future vanability of a market price. It vanes by underlying reference market price, and by strike
and maturity of the option.

Certain volatilities, typically those of a longer-dated nature, are unobservable and estimated from observable data. The range of
unobservable volatilities reflects the wide variation in volatility inputs by reference market price. The core range is significantly narrower
than the full range because these examples with extrermne volatilities occur relatively rarely within the HSBC portfolio.

Correlation

Correlation is a measure of the inter-relationship between two market prices, and is expressed as a number between minus one and one.
Itis used to value more complex instruments where the payout is dependent upon more than one market price. There is a wide range of
instruments for which correlation is an input, and consequently a wide range of both same-asset correlations and cross-asset correlations
is used. In general, the range of same-assel correlations will be narrower than the range of cross-asset correlations.

Unohservable correlations may be estimated based upon a range of evidence, including consensus pricing services, HSBC trade prices,
proxy correlations and examination of historical price relationships. The range of unobservable correlations quoted in the table reflects
the wide variation in correlation inputs by market price pair.
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Credit spread

Credit spread is the premium over a benchmark interest rate required by the market to accept lower credit quality. In a discounted cash
flow model, the credit spread increases the discount factors applied to future cash flows, thereby reducing the value of an asset. Credit
spreads may be implied from market prices and may not be observable in more illiquid markets.

Inter-relationships between key unobservable inputs

Key unobservable inputs to Level 3 financial instruments may not be independent of each other. As described above, market variables
may be correlated. This correlation typically reflects the manner in which different markets tend to react to macroeconomic or other

events. Furthermoare, the effect of changing market variables on the HSBC

each variable.

12 Fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value

portfolio will depend on HSBC's net risk position in respect of

Fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value and bases of valuation

The group

At 31 Dec 2022

Assets -

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers
Reverse repurchase agreements — non-trading
Finangial investments - at amortised cost
Liabilities

Deposits by banks

Customer accounts

Repurchase agreemants - non-trading
Debt securities in issug

Subordmated liabilities

At 31 Dac 2021

Asset_s B

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers
Reverse repurchase agreements — non-trading
Financial investments - at amortised cost
Liabilities

Deposits by banks

Customer accounts

Repurchase agreements non-trading
Debt securities in issue

Subordinated habilities

32,188
205,241
27,259
9,428
12,488

Fair value
Observable
inputs
Level 2

Quoted
market price
Level 1

17,112
: 53,948
2,336 848

= 20,900
- 215955

= 7,124
- 14,434

= 10,786

54,448

= 32,102
205,236

= 27,259
- 9,286

= 13,118

- 3291

Significant
unobsarvable
inputs Level 3

144

10,786
91,276
54,448
1o
32,102
206,236
27,258
9,430
13,118

Fair values of selected financial instruments not carried at fair value and bases of valuation

At 31 Dec 2022

Assets o

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

Reverse repurchase agreements - non-trading
Liabilities

Deposits by banks
Customer accounts
Debt securities in issue

assets and disposal groups held for sale

Fair value

Quoted Observable Significant

Carrying market price input k vable
amount Level 1 Level 2 inputs Level 3 Total
_$m ___%m _ m LI __§m
127 B B E T = 131
21,067 — - 19,481 19,481
208 - 208 - 208
el = MR o = : 2
_ 20478 o 20,393 I 20,393
1,100 - 1,100 - 1,100
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Fair values of financial instruments not carmed at fair value and hases ( i valuation

Fair value
Quoted Observable Significant

Carrying market price inputs unohservable

amount Level 1 Lovel 2 inputs Level 3 Total
The bank £m fm £m £m £m
At 31 Dec 2022
Assets
L oins and advances to banks 14,486 — 14,508 — 14,508
Loans and advances to customers 36,992 - - 36,875 36,875
Reverse repurchase agreements - non-trading 43,055 - 43,055 - 43,055
Financial investments - at amortisad cost 6,378 1,984 4,305 - 6,289
Liabilities - -
Deposits by banks 13,594 - 13,594 — 13,594
Customer accounts 141,714 - 141,714 - 141?14
Repurchase agreements - non-trading 29,638 - 29,638 - 29,638
Debt secuntias in issue ’ 4,656 - 4,656 — 4,656
Subordinated liabilities 14,252 — 14,139 - 14,139
Al 31 Dec 2021
Assets
Loans and advances to banks 6,778 5,881 6,881
Loans and advances to customers 33,836 33.921 33,921
Reverse rnnur&hase agreements — non-trading 39,708 39,708 39,708
Financial investments - at amortised cost! 3,337 3,300 3,300
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 14,605 14,655 14,6565
Customer accounts 124,706 124,106 124,706
Repurchase agreemaents — non-trading 22,344 22,344 22,344
Dbt securities in igsue 5,658 5,668 5,658
Subordinated liabilities 12,218 12,861 12,851

1 Fair value of Financial investment is represented to include the impact of inter-company.

Other financial instrumerits not carned at fair value are typically short-term in pature and reprice to current market rates frequently.
Accordingly, their carrying amount Is a reasonable approximation of fair value. They include cash and balances at central banks and
items in the course of collection from and transmission to other banks, all of which are measured at amortised cost.

Valuation

Fair value is an estimate of the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. It does not reflect the economic benefits and costs that HSBC expects to flow from an
instrument's cash flow over its expected future life. Our valuation methodologies and assumplions in determinming fair values for which
no ohservable market prices are available may differ from those of other companies.

Loans and advances to banks and customers

To determine the fair value of loans and advances to banks and customers, loans are segregated, as far as possible, into portfolios of
similar characteristics. Fair values are based on observable market transactions, when available. When they are unavailable, fair values
are estimated using valuation models incorporating a range of input assumptions. These assumptions may include: value estimates from
third-party brokers reflecting over-the-counter trading activity; forward-looking discounted cash flow models, taking account of expected
customer prepayment rates, using assumptions that HSBC believes are consistent with those that would be used by market participants
in valuing such loans; new business rates estimates for similar loans: and trading inputs from other market participants including
observed primary and secondary trades. From time to time, we may engage a third-party valuation specialist to measure the fair value of
a pool of loans.

The fair value of loans reflects expected credit losses at the balance sheet date and estimates of market participants’ expectations of
credit losses over the life of the loans, and the fair value effect of repricing between origination and the balance sheet date. For credit
impaired loans, fair value is estimated by discounting the future cash flows over the time period they are expected to be recovered.

Financial investments

The fair values of listed financial investments are determined using bid market prices. The fair values of unlisted financial investments are
determined using valuation techniques that incorporate the prices and future earnings streams of equivalent quoted securities.

Deposits by banks and customer accounts

The fair values of on-demand deposits are approximated by their carrying value. For deposits with longer-term maturities, fair values are
estimated using discounted cash flows, applying current rates offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities

Fair values are determined using quoted market prices at the balance sheet date where available, or by reference to quoted market prices
for similar instruments. When guoted market prices are unavailable, these instruments are valued using valuation techniques, the inputs
for which are derived from observable market data and, where relevant, from assumptions in respect of unobservable inputs.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements — non-trading

Fair values approximate carrying amounts as balances are generally short dated.
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13 Financial assets designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value through profit

or loss
The group The bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
Designated at fair Daesignated at fair Designated at fair Designated at fair
value and otherwise value and otherwise value and otherwise value and otherwise
mandatorily measured  mandatorily measured  mandatorily measured mandatorily measured
at fair value at fair value at fair value at fair value
£m EFm £m Fm
Securitios 14,581 15,738 318 418
dabt securities 1,975 2,584 44 146 |
equity securities 12,606 | 13,164 | 274 2721
Loans and advances 1o banks and customars 8971 2,613 971 2,498
Other 329 298 329 299
At 31 Dec 15,881 18,649 1,618 3,215
14 Derivatives
Notional contract amounts and fair values of derivatives by product contract type
Notional contract ameunt " Fair value - Assets ~ Fair value - Liabilities
Trading  Hedging  Trading Hedging Total Trading Hedging Total
The group £m £m £ fm L ____Em £m £m
Foreign exchange 6,101,153 582 88,244 2 88,246 (86,119) {57) (86,176)
Interest rate 10,141,018 56,144 206,689 433 207,122 (201,419} (819) (202,238)
Eqquities 465,626 - 7.751 - 7,751 (8,175) - (8,175)
Credit 146,522 - 865 - 865 (1,012) - (1,012)
Commodity and other 57,594 — 1,053 - 1,053 (1,065) - (1,065)
Offset (Note 28) - - _ (79,799) - — 79,798
At 31 Dec 2022 16,911,913 56,726 304,602 435 225,238 (297,790) (876) _ (218,867)
Foreign exchange 4,737,254 4,045 48,775 266 50,041 148,613) [67) (48,680)
Interest rate 8,727,934 39,553 99,744 144 99,888 (96,297) (270) (96,567)
Equities 498,980 8,718 - 89,718 {11,881) (11.881)
Credit 134,440 — 1,582 1,582 12,159) - (2.159)
Commodity ﬁnd other 42,677 - 681 — 681 (770) (770}
Offset (Note 28) 120,689) 20,689
At 31 Dec 2021 14,141,285 43,598 161,500 410 141,221 (159,720) {337) {139,368)

The notional contract amounts of derivatives held for trading purposes and derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships
indicate the nominal value of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet date; they do not represent amounts at risk.

Derivative asset and liability fair values increased during 2022, driven by yield curve movements and changes in foreign exchange rates.

=

Fair value - Assets

Fair value - Liabilities

Hedging Trading Hedging Total Trading Hedging Total
The bank £m £m £m £m £m ~ £Em £m £m
Foreign exchange 6,049,682 ~ 582 87,459 2 87.461 (84,885) (56) (84,941)
Interest rate 7,665,449 33,408 158,492 244 158,736  (157,315) (780)  (158,095)
Equities 439,588 - 76 = 7.626 (7.325) - (7.325)
Credit _ 144972 - 847 - _ 847 (982 =  (982)
Commodity and other 57,346 - 1081 - 1,051 (1,000) - ) (1,000}
Offset _ 59,007 59,007
At 31 Dec 2022 14,357,037 33,990 255,475 246 196,714 (251,507) (836) (193,336)
Forsign exchange 4,713,729 3,829 48,651 247 48,898 (47,771) (67) (47,838)
Interast rate 6,846,965 27,206 80,798 193 80,291 {80,281) (240) (80,621)
Equities 478,832 = 9,153 9,163 (11.896) - (11,896)
Credit 132,582 = 1,558 1,558 2.121) - (2.121)
Commodity and other 41,308 677 — 677 (765) o - (765)
Offset - (15.,490) B 15,490
At 31 Dec 2021 12,213,416 31,035 140,837 440 125,787 (142,834) (307) 1127,651)

Use of derivatives

We undertake derivatives activity for three primary purposes: to create risk management solutions for clients, to manage the portfolio
risks arising from client business, and to manage and hedge our own risks.

Trading derivatives

Most of the group's derivative transactions relate to sales and trading activities. Sales activities include the structuring and marketing of
derivative products to customers to enable them to take, transfer, modify or reduce current or expected risks. Trading activities include

market-making and risk management. Market-making entails quoting bid and offer prices to other market participants for the purpose of
generating revenues based on spread and volume.
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Risk management activity is undertaken to manage the risk arising from clent transactions, with the principal purpose of retaining client
margin. Other derivatives classified as held for trading include non-qualifying hedging derivatives.

Substantially all of the group's derivatives entered into with subsidiaries are managed in conjunction with financial liabilities designated
at fair value.

Derivatives valued using models with unobservable inputs

The difference between the fair value at imtial recognition {the transaction price) and the value that would have been derived had the

valuation techniques used for subsequent measurement been applied at initial recognition, less subsequent releases, is in the following
table:

Unamaortized batanice of dervatives volued using models with significant unobsery ible inpits
The group The bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m fim £m £m
Unamortised balance at 1 Jan 64 60 64 56
Deferral on new transactions 110 166 29 165
Recogrised in the income statement during the yes (111) {152) (107) {147}
- amortisation (59) 1$iﬂ]| {56]: (86)
subsequent 1o unobservable inputs bacarning ohservable — (2) - 2)
— maturity, termination or offsetting derivative ‘ (52) {60)| (51) 157)
- risk hedged = 12) - =|
Exchange differences and other 1 -
Unamortised balance at 31 Dec! 64 64 56 64

1 This amount is yet to be recognised in the consolidated mcome statement

Hedge accounting derivatives

The group applies hedge accounting to manage the following risks: interest rate and foreign exchange. The Report of the Directors — Risk
presents more details on how these nisks arise and how they are managed by the group.

Hedged risk components

HSBC designates a portion of cash flows of a financial instrument or a group of financial instruments for a specific interest rate or foreign
currency risk component in a fair value or cash flow hedge. The designated risks and portions are either contractually specified or
otherwise separately identifiable components of the financial instrument that are reliably measurable. Risk-free or benchmark interest
rates generally are regarded as being both separately identifiable and reliably measurable, except for the IBOR Reform transition where
HSBC designates Alternative Benchmark Rates as the hedged risk which may not have been separately identifiable upon initial
designation, provided HSBC reasonably expects it will meet the requirement within 24 months from the first designation date. The
designated risk component accounts for a significant portion of the overall changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item(s).

Fair value hedges

I'he group enters into fixed-for-floating interest-rate swaps o manage the exposure to changes in fair value due to movements in market
interest rates on certain fixed rate financial instruments which are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, including debt
securities held and issued.

Hudging instrument by hedged risk

Hedging instrument
Carrying amount

The group Notional amount! Assets Liabilities Change in fair value’
Hedged risk fm fm £m I sheet | tati £m
Interest rate’ 26,649 428 (799) Derivatives 281
At 31 Dec 2022 26,649 428 (799) 281
Interest rate’ 24,486 134 270) Derivitives 159
At 31 Dec 2021 24,486 139 (270) 158

1 The notional contract amounts of derivatives designated in qualifying hedge accounting refationships indicate the nominal value of transactions
outstanding at the balance sheet date; they do not represent amounts al risk.

2 Usad in effectiveness testing; comprising the full fair value change of the hedging instrument not excluding any component.

3 The hedged risk 'interest rate’ includes inflation risk.
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Hadged dem by hedged risk

Hedged itam Ineffectiveness
Accumulated fair value
hed A £ Teaed. i
_ Caryingamount in carrying amount’ Change in fair Recognised in
The group Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities value' profit and loss Profit and loss
Hedged risk £m £m £m £m Bal nce sheet p £m Em presentation
Financial assets at fair
value through other .
15,446 - (1,095) - prehensive i (1,850) . Nntﬁmcnm
Loans and advances to mm
= - = = : __ banks 0 - held for
Interest rate’ Loans and advances to 31 trading or
73 = 31} = = _ customers (40} managed on a
- s _= ReversoRepos  (14) e
- 1,576 - (169) Debt securities in issue B 398
Subordinated liabilities and
- 5,686 7, (659) deposits by banks® 556 B _
At 31 Dec 2022 16,590 7.262 (1.141) {828) (950) 31
- Financial assets at fair
value through other
14,009 167 - comprehensive incomea (278) Net income
Loans and advances ta from financial
% 1 12) - banks (2) instruments
Interest rate” = — 19} held for trading
Loans and advances to ar managed on
897 — 7 customers Ufi:l Y
2,844 - 71 Debt securities in issue 24 basis
Subordinated liabilities and
s 5,841 (77) deposits by banks* 104
AL 31 Dec 2021 15,007 B,685 172 16) 1168) 9)

-

Used in effectiveness assessment, comp
The accumulated amounts of fair value
adjusted for hedging gains and losses
(2027: nil} for 'Depaosits by banks' and £13m (2021: £19m) for
The hedged risk ‘interest rate” includes inflation risk,

4 The notional amount of non-dynarmuc fair value h
the weighted average swap rate is 0.06% (2021:

composed by internal funding hetween HSBC Holdings and the group.

edges was £6,312m (2021: £5,886m) of wh
- 0.06%) (negative). £6.312m

rising amount attributable to the designated hedged risk that can be a risk component.
adjustments remaining in the statement of financial

position for hedged items that have ceased to be
were £10m (2021: £21m

) for ‘Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income’, is nil
'‘Debt securities in issue’,

ich the weighted-average maturity is March 2026 and
(2021: £5,886m) of these hedges are internal to HSEC Group and

Hedging instrument by hedged risk

Hedging instrument

Carrying arnnunt

The bank Notional amount! Assets Liabilities Balance sheet  Change in fair value?
Hedged risk £m £m £m presentation £m
Interast rate” 18,391 242 {773) Derivatives 466
At 31 Dec 2022 13,391 242 (773) 466
Interest rate” 18,016 188 (234) Denvatives 27
At 31 Dec 2021 18.016 188 (234) 27

1 The notional contract amounts of derivatives designated in qualifying hedge accounting relationships indicate the nominal value of transactions

outstanding at the balance sheet date, they do not repres
2 Used in effectiveness testing; cormprisin,

3 The hedged risk ‘interest rate’ includes inflation risk,

ent amounts at risk.
g the full fair value change of the hedging instrument not excluding any component,

Hedged item by hedged risk

- H-d;ed i_(n:n _lneﬂnm;v-snﬁfn_: a
Accumulated fair value
hedge aﬁumm included
Carrying amount in carrying amount! Change in fair  Recognised in
The bank Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities value' profit and loss Profit and loss
Hedged risk £m £m Cm £m  Bal sheet f ; £m £m presentation
Financial assets at fair
value through other Net income
. 9012 - e =~ comprehensiveincome  (1,389) from financial
Loans and advances to instruments
Interest rate’ 7 = 3 ez Cusiomary o 31 tmlmﬁ
— — " —— = . Rw?m Sowde — managed on a
e 1,576 - (169) Debt securities in issue 398 fair value
Subordinated liabilities basis
e 5,653 - (659) and depumbyhml_w‘ 556 - )
At 31 Dec 2022 9,079 7,229 (639) (828) (435) 31
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Hedaed item by hedged risk (continued)
Hedged itam

Accurmulatad fair value hedge
adjustments included in Carrying

Ineffectivaness

Carrying amount amount Change in fair Recognised in
The bank Assets Liabilimes Assels Linktlities value' profit and loss Profit and loss
Hed i risk £m Fm Fm Fm Balance sheat presentation Em fm presentation
Financinl assets at fair
value thraugh other Net income
9,232 159 comprehensive incorme (163) fram financial
- Loans and advinces 1o ) instrumants
Interas e 6 B CUBIGBI (B} held for rading
or managed on
- 2,844 M Debt securiies in ssue 24 a fair value basis
Subordinated habilities
h,810 177) and deposits by banks? 104
At 31 Dec 2021 9,238 #.554 159 {6} {35} (8)

Used in effectiveness assessment; comprsing amount attributable to the designated hedged risk that can be a risk component,

2 The accumulated amounts of fair value adjustments remaining in the statement of linancial position for hedged ftems that have ceased to be
adjusted for hedging gains and losses were £10m (2021: £21m) for 'Financial assels at fair value through other comprehensive iNGome’, nil (2021

nil) for 'Deposits by banks' and £135nm (2021 £19m) for '‘Deht securtties in issue .
3 The hedged risk ‘interest rate’ includes Infiation risk.

4 The notional amount of non-dynarmuc fair value hedges was £6,312m (2021 £5, 886m), of which the weghted-average maturity 1s March 2026
and the weighted average swap rate is 0, (6% (202 1: 0.06%) (negative). Those hedges are internal ta HSBC Group and composed hy internal

funding between HSBC Holdings and the group,

Cash flow hedges

The group's cash flow hedging instruments consist principally of interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps that are used to manage
the variability in future interest cash flows of non-trading financial assets and liabilities, arising due to changes in market interest rates

and foreign-currency basis.

The group applies macro cash flow hedging
of non-trading assets and liabilities that bear interest at variable rates,

for interest rate nisk exposures on portfolios of replenishing current

and forecasted issuances

including rolling such instruments. The amounts and timing of

future cash flows, representing both principal and interest flows, are projected for each portfolio of financial assets and liabilities on the
basis of their contractual terms and other relevant factors, including estimates of prepayments and defaults. The aggregate cash flows
representing both principal balances and interest cash flows across all portfolios are used to determine the effectiveness and

ineffectiveness. Macro cash flow hedges are considered to be dynamic hedges.

The group also hedges the variability in future cash-flows on foreign-denominated financial assets and liabilities arising due to changes in

foreign exchange market rates with cross-currency swaps; these are considered dynamic hedges.

Hedging instrument by hadged nsk

Hedging instrument
Carrying amount

Hedged item

Ineffectiveness

Notional Change in fair  Change in fair Recognised in
The group amount’ Assets Liabilities  pajance sheet value? value®  profit and 1085 profit and loss
Hedged risk £m £m £m presentation £m £m £m presentation
MNet income
from financial
Fareign exchange 582 2 57 84 84 instrumants
Sreian tensd Lol Derivatives e L held for
trading or
managed on a
Interest rate 29,495 5 (20) (1,345) (1,334) {11) fair value basis
At 31 Dec 2022 30,077 7 (77) (1,429) (1,418) (1
Net income from
) financial
Foreign exchange 4,042 266 167) 127 127 instruments held
Dervatives
for trading or
managed on a
Interest rate 15,067 ] (2) (178) (167) {11} fair value basis
At 31 Dec 2021 19,109 271 {169) (51) {440 (11}
B B __ Hedging instrument Hedged item Inaffecﬁu;_p_l_hsa_;
Carrying amount
MNotional Change in fair  Change in fair Recognised in
The bank amount! Assets Liabilities  gajance sheet value” valug® profit and 1085 poods and loss
Hedged risk £m £m £m presentation £m £m £m presentation
Net income
from financial
Fareign exchange 582 2 (56) o (84) 84) - instruments
: = = = Derivatives = held for
trading or
managed on a
Interest rate 1 5.__01 T 2 7) (1,021) (1,021) — fair value basis
At 31 Dec 2022 15,599 4 {63) (1,105) (1,105) =
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Hedging instrument by hedged risk” (continued)

Hedging instrument Hedged item Ineffectiveness
Carrying amount o .
Notional Change in fair Change in fair Recognised in
The bank amount Assets Liabilities Balance sheet vatlue® value' profit and loss Profit and loss
Hedged risk fm £m fm prasentation fm £m £m prasentation

Net income fram

financial
Foreign exchange 3,829 247 (67) ; 127 127 —  instruments held
- Derivatives "
for trading or
managed on a
Interest rate 9,190 5 (@ 119 (116) @ fair value basis
At 31 Dec 2021 13,019 252 (69) 8 11 (3}

1 The notional contract amounts of derivatives designated in qualifying hedge accounting relationships indicate the nominal value of transactions
outstanding at the balance sheet date; they do not represent amounts at risk.

2 Used in effectiveness testing; comprising the full fair value change of the hedging instrument not excluding any component.

3 Used in effectiveness assessment; comprising amount attributable to the designated hedged risk that can be a risk component.

4 The amounts in the above table predominantly represent the bank's exposure.

Sources of hedge ineffectiveness may arise from basis risk including, but not limited to timing differences between the hedged items and
hedging instruments, and hedges using instruments with a non-zero fair value.

Reconciliation of equity and analysis of ather comprehensive income by risk type

Inm_mu F;t;n; e;u:hn;qu

B £m . fm
Cash flow hedging reserve at 1 Jan 2022 - - . §2: el (39)
Fair value (losses)/gains ) (1,334 (84)
Fair value (gains) reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve to income statement in respect of; . A i
- hedged items that have affected profit or loss 53 74
Income taxes 348 -
Cash flow hedging reserve at 31 Dec 2022 (901) {49)
Cash flow hedging reserve at 1 Jan 2021 147 N
Fair value gains/{losses) (187) 127
Fair value {gains)/losses reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve to income statement in respect of
- hedged items that have affected profit or loss {25) {177)
Income taxes o - - 77 =
Cash flow hedging reserve at 31 Dec 2021 32 (39)

Interest rate benchmark reform: amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments’

HSBC has applied both the first set of amendments ('Phase 1') and the second set of amendments ('Phase 2') to IFRS 9 and IAS 39
applicable to hedge accounting. The hedge accounting relationships that are affected by Phase 1 and Phase 2 amendments are
presented in the balance sheet as ‘Financial assets designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income’, 'Loans and advances to customers’, 'Debt securities in issue’ and 'Deposits by banks'. The notional value of the
derivatives impacted by the Ibors reform, including those designated in hedge accounting relationships, is disclosed on page 31 in the

section ‘Financial instruments impacted by the Ibor reform’. For further details of Ibor transition, see ‘Top and emerging risks’ on page
28.

During 2022, the group transitioned all of its hedging instruments referencing sterling Libor, European Overnight Index Average rate
(‘Eonia’) and Japanese yen Libor. The group also transitioned some of the hedging instruments referencing US dollar Libor. There is no
significant judgement applied for these benchmarks to determine whether and when the transition uncertainty has been resolved.

The most significant Ibor benchmark in which the group continues to have hedging instruments is US dollar Libor. The transition out of
US dollar Libor hedging derivatives has been largely completed by the end of 2022. These transitions do not necessitate new approaches
compared with any of the mechanisms used so far for transition and it will not be necessary to change the transition risk management
strategy.

For some of the Ibors included under the 'Other' header, in the table below, judgment has been needed to establish whether a transition
is required, since there are |bor benchmarks which are subject to computation methodology improvements and insertion of fallback
provisions without full clarity being provided by their administrators on whether these |bor benchmarks will be demised.

The notional amounts of Interest Rate derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships do not represent the extent of the risk
exposure managed by the group but they are expected to be directly affected by market-wide Ibor reform and in scope of Phase 1

amendments and are shown in the table below. The cross-currency swaps designated in hedge accounting relationships and affected by
Ibor reform are not significant and have not been presented below.
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Hedging mstrument impacted by thor Refarm

Hedging instrument

Impacted by Ibor Reform NOT Impacted Notional
EUR? GBP usp Other? Total by Ibor Reform Amount’
The group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Fair Value Hedges 7,581 — 225 105 7.911 18,738 26,649
Cash Flaw Hodges 7,359 - - - 7,359 22,136 29,495
At 31 Dec 2022 14,940 s 225 105 15,270 40,874 56,144
Fair Value Hedges 6,407 336 124 6,867 17,619 24,486
Cash Flow Hedges 5,877 5,877 9,190 15,067
At 31 Dec 2021 12,284 336 124 12,744 26,809 39,553
The banlk
Fair Value Hedges 5,184 - a 104 5,292 13,099 18,391
Cash Flow Hedges — - — — — 15,017 15,017
At 31 Dec 2022 5,184 - 4 104 5,292 28,116 33,408
Fait Value Hodges 4,920 6 124 5,050 12,966 18,016
Cash Flow Hedges - 9,190 9,190
At 31 Dec 2021 4,920 ] 124 5,060 92,156 27,206

1 The notional contract amaunts of dervatives designated n qualitying hedge accounting relationships indicate the nominal value of transactions

outstanding at the balance sheet date, they do nol represent amounts at risk.
2 The notional contract amounts of euro interest rate derivatives in wpacted by [bar reform mainly comprise hedges with

are Fair value hedges of £7,581m (31 Dec 2021. £6,407m) and Cash flow hedges £7,355m (31 Dec 2021: £5,87 7m).
3 Other benchmarks impacted by [bor reform comprise derivatives that are expected to transition, but do not have a published cessation date.,

15 Financial investments

a Funbor benchmark, which

ents

Carrying amount of financial my

The group

The: bank

2022 200 2022 2021
£m fm £m m
Financial investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 29,356 41,290 12,261 23,205
treasury and other eligible hills 1,447 2,229 I 693 1,441
debt securilies 27,710 38,924 11,514 21,7
aquily securities 109 103 54 53 |
- other instruments' 20 | 34 - |
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 3,248 10 6,378 3,337
~ teasury and other eligible bills 1,030 | 2 976
deb securities’ 2,218 8| 5,402 3,337 |
At 31 Dec 32,604 41,300 18,639 26,542

1 'Other instruments’ are comprised of loans and advances.

2 The £4.2bn (2021: £3.3bn) of debt securities in the bank relates lo Senior Non-Preferred debt jssued by HSBC Continerntal Europe to comply with
Single Resolution Board requirements on Mitimum Required Elgible Liabilities

Eguity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Instruments Ilelf.;l at year end
Fair Dividends
value recognised
Type of equity instruments fm ~ Em
Business facilitation L ==
Investments required by central institutions N =
Others 1 —
At 31 Dec 2022 109 —
Business facilitation 6
Investments required by central institutions 26 s
Othars 1
103 —

At 31 Dec 2021
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16 Assets pledged, collateral received and assets transferred

Assets pledged'

Financial assets pledged as collateral

The gmu; The banik
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m fm £m fm
Treasury bills and other eligibla securities ~ 1Bag 990 877 990
Loans and advances to banks — __ 3,300 - 3.300 -
Loans and advances o customers o B 4,996 18,403 A — —
Debt securities 17407 20,247 9,699 11,416
Equity securities 25,408 23612 25,014 25,452
Cash collateral 45,034 29,963 32,255 22,961
Other 330 298 329 298
Assets pledged at 31 Dec 98,124 93,513 71,474 61,116
Financial assets pledged as collateral which the counterparty has the right to sell or repledge
The group The_h_ank
2022 2001 2022 2021
~ Em £m £m £fm
Trading assets B 38,896 39594 32,371 36311
Financial investments 3,588 1,436 1,974 542
At 31 Dec 42,484 41,030 34,345 35,853

Assets pledged as collateral includes all assets categorised as encumbered in the disclosure on page 84 except for assets held for sale.

The amount of assets pledged to secure liabilities may be greater than the book value of assets utilised as collateral. For example, in the
case of secunitisations and covered bonds, the amount of liabilities issued, plus mandatory over-collateralisation, is less than the book
value of the pool of assets available for use as collateral. This is also the case where assets are placed with a custodian or a settlement
agent that has a floating charge over all the assets placed to secure any liabilities under settlement accounts.

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to collateralised transactions including, where relevant,
standard securities lending and borrowing, repurchase agreements and derivative margining. The group places both cash and non-cash
collateral in relation to derivative transactions.

Collateral received’

The fair value of assets accepted as collateral, relating primarily to standard securities lending, reverse repurchase agreements and
derivative margining, that the group is permitted to sell or repledge in the absence of default was £180,233m (2021: £202,794m)
(the bank: 2022: £154,376m; 2021: £167,737m). The fair value of any such collateral sold or repledged was £136,777m (2021:
£151,378m) (the bank: 2022: £113,917m; 2021: £120,436m).

The group is obliged to return equivalent securities. These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to
standard securities lending, reverse repurchase agreements and derivative margining.

Assets transferred’

The assets pledged include transfers to third parties that do not qualify for derecognition, notably secured borrowings such as debt
securities held by counterparties as collateral under repurchase agreements and equity securities lent under securities lending
agreements, as well as swaps of equity and debt securities. For secured borrowings, the transferred asset collateral continues to be
recognised in full and a related liability, reflecting the group's obligation to repurchase the assets for a fixed price at a future date is also
recognised on the balance sheet.

Where securities are swapped, the transferred asset continues to be recognised in full. There is no associated liability as the non-cash
collateral received is not recognised on the balance sheet. The group is unable to use, sell or pledge the transferred assets for the
duration of these transactions, and remains exposed to interest rate risk and credit risk on these pledged assets. The counterparty's
recourse is not limited to the transferred assets.

Transterred financial assets not qualifying for full derscognition and associated financial liabilities
Carrying of
Transh A P
assets liabilities
The group: . . s N
At 31 Dec 2022 B = . b | i
Repurchase agreements 13,349 13,3711
Securities lending agreements 29171 3,442

At 31 Dac 2021 ’ .
Repurchase agreemants ) . 11.710 11,732
Securities lending agreements 29,321 2,129

1 Excludes assets classified as held for sale.
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rransterred financial assets not gualifying for Tull derscogniton and asso jated financial habilities

Carrying amount of:

Transferred Associated
assats liabilities
The bank Em . £m
At 31 Dec 2022
Hepurchase agreements 5,795 5,795
Securties lending agreements 28,550 3,467
At 31 Dec 2021
Repurchase agreements 4,489 4,488
Secunties lundiug_ agreemants 31,3656 2132

17 Interests in associates and joint ventures

Principal associates of the group and the bank

Business Growth Fund Group ple ('BGF') is a principal associate of the group. BGF is an independent company, established in 2011 to
provide investment to growing small 10 medium-sized British businesses. BGF is backed by five of the UK’s main banking groups:
Barclays, HSBC, Lloyds, RBS and Standard Chartered. At 31 Dec 2022, the group had a 24.62% interest in the equity capital of BGF.
Share of {Loss)/profit in BGF is £(22)m (2021: £192m; 2020: £bm) and carrying amount of interest in BGI s £673m (2021: £702m; 2020:
EA71m).

Interests in joint ventures

A list of all associates is set out on page 189.

18 Investments in subsidiaries

Main subsidiaries of HSBC Bank ple'
At 31 Dec 2022

HSBC Bank plc's
Country of incorporation interest in equity capital

or registration o Share class
HSBC Investment Bank Haldings Limited England and Wales 100.00 £1 _D_g_d_lnary.
HSBC Life {UK) Limited England and Wales 100.00 _£1 Ordinary
HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH Germany 99.99 €1 Ordinary
HSEC Continental Europe France 99.99 €5 Actions
HSBC Bank Malta p.lc Malta 70.03 €0.3 Ordinary

1 Main subsidiaries are either held directly or indirectly via intermeddiate holding companies,

All the above prepare their financial statements up to 31 December. Details of all group subsidiaries, as required under Section 409 of the
Companies Act 2006, are set out in Note 36. The principal countries of operation are the same as the countries of incorporation.

impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries

At each reporting period end, HSBC Bank plc reviews investments in subsidiaries for indicatars of impairment. An impairment is
recognised when the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount for that investment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the investment’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 36. The value in use Is caleulated by discounting management's cash flow projections for the investment.

The cash flows represent the Free Cash Flows ('FCH') based on the subsidiary's binding capital requirements.

« The cash flow projections for each investment are based on the latest approved plans, which includes forecast capital available for
distribution based on the capital requirements of the subsidiary taking into account minimum and core capital requirements. Our cash
flow projections include known climate-related opportunities and costs associaled with our sustainable offering. A long term growth
rate is used to extrapolate the free cash flows in perpetuity.

« The growth rate reflects inflation for the country within which the investment operates and is based on the long-term average growth
rates.

« The rate used to discount the cash flows is based on the cost of capital assigned to each investment, which is derived using a capital
asset pricing model (‘'CAPM'). CAPM depends on @ number of inputs reflecting financial and economic variables, including the risk-
free rate and a premium to reflect the inherent nsk of the business being evaluated. These variables are based on the market's
assessment of the economic variables and management's judgement. The discount rates for each investment are refined to reflect the
rates of inflation for the countries within which the investment operates. In addition, for the purposes of testing investments for
impairment, management supplements this process by comparing the discount rates derived using the internally generated CAPM,
with cost of capital rates produced by external sources for businesses operating in similar markets.
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During 2022, an additional investment of £3.4bn is made in HSBC Continental Europe. Further, an impairment reversal of £2bn was
recognised in the fourth quarter as a result of the impairment test performed which relates to the investment in subsidiary i.e. HSBC
Continental Europe. This was due to updates to inputs and assumptions in the model used to estimate value-in-use ('VIU') and increase in
forecast free cash flows, resulting from acquisition of HSBC Bank Malta plc and HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt GmbH as well as interest
rates rise in the Eurozone. No investments in subsidiaries were impaired or reversed in 2021. There is no impact on the group financial

statement due to these transactions.

Impairment test results

Investments Cnrr\r'i'ng amount Value inuse Discount rate inng—ﬁsrm g-ner\ rate Headroom
HSBC Continental Europe £m £m Yo % £m
At 31 Dec 2022 7.743 11.507 9.95 1.56 3,764
At 31 Dec 2021 4331 4,429 834 - 1.53 98

Sensitivities of key assumptions in calculating VIU

At 31 December 2022, the investment in HSBC Continental Europe was sensitive to reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions
supporting the recoverable amount.

In making an estimate of reasonably possible changes to assumptions, management considers the available evidence in respect of each
input to the model. These include the external range of observable discount rates, historical performance against forecast, and risks
attaching to the key assumptions underlying cash flow projections.

The following table presents a summary of the key assumptions underlying the most sensitive inputs to the model for HSBC Continental
Europe, the key risks attaching to each, and details of a reasonably possible change to assumptions where, in the opinion of
management, there is a sufficient headroom to cover the changes which could not result in an impairment.

Reasonably possible changes in key assumptions

Input Key assumptions Associated risks Reasonably possible change

_Investment . e . R
HSBC Continental Free Cash * Level of interest rates and yield * Customer remediation and * FCF projections decrease by
Europe Flows curves, regulatory actions. 10% .

prajections = Competitors' positions within * Achiavement of strategic actions  Achievement of revenue and cost
the market. relating to revanue and costs. targets,
¢ |evel and change in unemployment
rates. .
Discount * Discount rate used is a reasonable ¢  External evidence arises to * Discount rate increases by 1%.
rate estimate of a suitable market rate suggest that the rate used is not
for the profile of the business. appropriate to the business.
Sensitivity of VIU fo reasonably possible changes in key assumptions and changes to current assumptions to reduce headroom to nil
Increase/{decrease)
Investments Carrying amount Value in use ‘Discountrate  Free Cash flows
At 31 Dec 2022 N . em  Em  bps %
HSBC Continental Europe ) 7,743 11,507 614 (33.3)

19 Structured entities

The group is mainly involved with both consolidated and unconsolidated structured entities through the securitisation of financial assets,
conduits and investment funds, established either by the group or a third party.

Consolidated structured entities

lotal assets of the group’s consolidated structured entities, split by entity type

HSBC m;u;gad

Condui Securitisati funds Other Total

£m £m fm £m £m

At 31 Dec 2022 3,479 192 3,981 463 8,115

At 31 Dec 2021 3,233 287 4,663 bE8 8,741
Conduits

The group has established and manages two types of conduits: securities investment conduits ('SICs’) and multi-seller conduits.

Securities investment conduits
The SICs purchase highly rated ABSs to facilitate tailored investment opportunities.

At 31 Dec 2022, Solitaire, the group’s principal SIC held £1.1bn of ABSs (2021: £1.2bn). It is currently funded entirely by commercial
paper ('CP’) issued to the group, At 31 Dec 2022, the group held £1.3bn of CP {2021: £1.3bn).

Mutti-seller conduits

The group's multi-seller conduit was established to provide access to flexible market-based sources of finance for its clients. Currently,
the group bears risk equal to transaction-specific facility offered to the multi-seller conduits, amounting to £4.7bn at 31 December 2022
(2021: £4.6bn). First loss protection is provided by the originator of the assets, and not by the group, through transaction-specific credit
enhancements. A layer of secondary loss protection is provided by the group in the form of programme-wide enhancement facilities.
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Securitisations

The group uses structured entities to securitise customer loans and advances it originates in order to diversify the sources of funding for
assel origination and capital efficiency purposes. The loans and advances are transferred by the group to the structured entities for cash
or synthetically through credit default swaps, and the structured entities issue debt securities to investors.

HSBC managed funds

The group together with other HSBC entities has established a number of money market and non-money market funds. Where it is
deemed to be acting as principal rather than agent in its role as investment manager, the group controls these funds.

Other

The group has entered into a number of transactions in the normal course of business, which include asset and structured finance
ransactions where it has control of the structured entity. In addition, the group is deemed to control a number of third-party managed
funds through its invelvement as a principal in the funds.

Unconsolidated structured entities

The term ‘unconsolidated structured entities’ refers to all structured entities not cantrolled by the group. The group enters into
transactions with unconsolidated structured entities in the normal course of business to facilitate customer transactions and for specific
investment opportunities.

Nature and risks associated with the group’s interests i unconsolidated structured entifias
HSBC Non-HSBC
Securitisations funds funds Other Total
Total asset values of the entities (Em) o
0- 400 2 155 966 122 1,135
400 - 1,500 1 55 757 1 814
1,500 - 4,000 - 19 304 i 323
4,004 - 20,000 - 16 155 - 171
20,000+ - 3 14 — 17
Mumber of entities at 31 Dec 2022 3 248 2,196 13 2,460
£m £m £m £m fm
Total assets in relation to the group’s interests in the unconsolidated structured
enlities 220 4,671 4,425 925 10,241
trading assets = . 1 104 — a 1 05
financial assets designated and otherwise mandatorily measured at fai value — 4,665 3,869 - 8,534
- loans and advances Lo banks — - - - -
loans and advances to customers 220 - 452 497 1,169
financial investments - 5 — — 5
other assets — — - 428 | 428
Total liabilities in relation to the group's interests in the unconsolidated
structured enlities — a4 - A= 4
Other off-balance sheet commitments 34 — 571 24 629
The group's maximum exg at 31 Dec 2022 254 4,667 4,996 949 10,866
Total asset values of the entities (Em)
0 40_(_] 2 167 1,194 14 1,367
400 - 1,500 81 774 abb
1,500 - 4,000 16 354 — 370
4,000 - 20,000 12 149 161
20,000+ 2 g — 1
Number of entities at 31 Dec 2021 2 268 2,180 14 2,764
fm Fm Fm m fm
Total assets in relation to the group’s interests in the unconsalidated structured
entities 193 4,414 5,225 631 10,463
trading assets | 1.807 - 1,808
financial assets designated at fair value A.409 3.273 — 7.682
loans and advances to customers 193 49 631 873 |
financial investments 4 96 - | 100
other assels - — - - -
Tatal liabilities in relation to group's interests in the unconsolidated structured
entities 2 — 2
Other off-balance sheet commitments 20 4 916 Si:t 978
The group’s maximum exposure at 31 Dec 2021 213 4,418 6,139 HE9 11,439
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The maximum exposure to loss from the group’s interests in unconsolidated structured entities represents the maximum loss it could
Incur as a result of its involvement with these entities regardless of the probability of the loss being incurred.

* For commitments, guarantees and written credit default swaps, the maximum exposure to loss is the notional amount of potential
future losses.

* For retained and purchased investments and loans to unconsolidated structured entities, the maximum exposure to loss is the carrying
value of these interests at the balance sheet reporting date,

The maximum exposure to loss is stated gross of the effects of hedging and collateral arrangements entered into to mitigate the group's
exposure to loss.

Securitisations

The group has interests in unconsolidated securitisation vehicles through holding notes issued by these entities. In addition, the group
has investments in ABSs issued by third-party structured entities.

HSBC managed funds

The group together with other HSBC entities establishes and manages money market funds and non-money market investment funds to
provide customers with investment opportunities. The group, as fund manager, may be entitled to receive management and performance
fees based on the assets under management. The group may also retain units in these funds.

Non-HSBC managed funds
The group purchases and holds units of third-party managed funds in order to facilitate business and meet customer needs.
Other

The group has established structured entities in the normal course of business, such as structured credit transactions for customers, to
provide finance to public and private sector infrastructure projects, and for asset and structured finance transactions.

In addition to the interests disclosed above, the group enters into derivative contracts, reverse repos and stock borrowing transactions
with structured entities. These interests arise in the normal course of business for the facilitation of third-party transactions and risk
management solutions.

Group sponsored structured entities

The amount of assets transferred to and income received from such sponsored entities during 2022 and 2021 was not significant.

20 Goodwill and intangible assets

The group The bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m
Goodwill B - B = = | 19 19
Present value of in-force lrm;;-le[m insurance business ) 1,076 811 - =
Other intangible assets' 91 83 22 15
At 31 Dec 1,167 594 L3 34

1 Included within the group’s other intangible assets is internally generated software with a net carrying value of £87m (2021: £77m), During 2022,
capitalisation of internally generated software was £47m (2021: £46m), impairment was £21m 2021: £45m) and amortisation was £34m (2021;
£16m).

Present value of in-force long-term insurance business

When calculating the present value of in-force long-term ('PVIF’) insurance business, expected cash flows are projected after adjusting
for a variety of assumptions made by each insurance operation to reflect local market conditions and management’s judgement of future
trends and uncertainty in the underlying assumptions is reflected by applying margins (as opposed to a cost of capital methodology)
including valuing the cost of palicyholder options and guarantees using stochastic techniques.

Financial reporting Committees of each key insurance entity meet on a quarterly basis to review and approve PVIF assumptions. All
changes to non-economic assumptions, economic assumptions that are not ohservable and model methodology must be approved by
the Financial Reporting Committee.

Moverments in PVIF

2022 2021

fm £fm

PVIF at 1 Jan 811 647

Change in PVIF of long-term insurance business 226 200
~ value of new business written during the year - - B o | 79| 67 |
expected return’ - - - ) (53) (70)|
- assumption changes and experience variances™’ {see below) - 200 202 |
- other adjustments B B - - ) | - 1)
Exchange differences - 39 (36)

PVIF at 31 Dec 1,076 811

I “Expected return’ represents the unwinding of the discount rate and reversal of expected cash flows for the period.

2 Represents the effect of changes in assumptions on expected future profits and the difference between assumplions used in the previous PVIF
calculation and actual experience observed during the year to the extent that this affects future profits. The gain of £200m in the year (2021: gain
of £202m) was primarily driven by a reduction in the cost of financial guarantees in France as a result of rising interest rates during 2022

3 2022 includes £562m impact recognised on the classification of France retail as discontinued operations.
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Key assumptions used in the computation of PVIF for main life insurance operations

Economic assumptions are set in a way that is consistent with observable market values. The valuation of PVIF is sensitive to observed
market movements and the impact of such changes is included in the sensitivities presented below.

2022 2021
UK France' UK France'
) %a Yo %
Waeighted average nsk-frae rate ~3n 2.80 0.95 0.69
Weighted average risk discount rate 3.71 4.44 0.95 1.556
Lxpense inflation 3.70 4.26 3.80 1.80

1 For 2022 the calculation of France's PVIF assumes a risk discount rate of 4.44% (2021: 1.55%) plus a risk margin of £83m (2021: £156m).

Sensitivity to changes in economic assumptions

The group sets the risk discount rate applied to the PVIF calculation by starting from a risk-free rate curve and adding explicit allowances
for risks not reflected in the best estimate cash flow modelling. Where the insurance operations provide options and guarantees 1o
policyholders, the cost of these options and guarantees is accounted for as a deduction from the present value of in-force 'PVIF' asset,
unless the cost of such guarantees is already allowed for as an explicit addition to liabilities under insurance contracts. See page 92 for
further details of these guarantees and the impact of changes in economic assumptions on our insurance manufacturing subsidiaries.

Sensitivity to changes in non-economic assumptions

Palicyholder liabilities and PVIF are determined by reference to non-economic assumptions including mortality and/or marbidity, lapse
rates and expense rates. See page 93 for further details on the impact of changes m non-economic assumptions on our insurance
manufacturing operations.

21 Prepayments, accrued income and other assets

The group The bank

2022 2021 2022 2021

Em f'm £m fm

Cash collateral and margin receivables 44,932 29,947 32,255 22,961
Settlement accounts 6,926 4,960 5,441 4,604
Bullion 3,464 2,253 3,464 2,253
Prepayments and accrued income 1,769 1,365 994 531
Property, plant and egquipment 761 846 9 10
Right-ol-use assets 166 251 32 37
Reinsurers' share of liabilities under insurance contracts (Note 4) 140 146 - —
Employes benefit assets (Note 5) 73 54 12 43
Endorsements and acceplances 243 196 218 172
Other accounts 2,905 3,100 1,482 879
At 31 Dec 61,379 43.118 43,907 31,490

Prepayments, accrued income and other assets include £55,801m (2021: £39,064m) of financial assets, the majonty of which are
measured at amortised cost.

22 Trading liabilities

The group The bank

2022 201 2022 2021

£m f'm £m fm

Deposits by banks' 4,337 322 4,350 3,141
Customer accounts’ 5812 6,386 5,692 6,216
Other debt securities in Issue 812 1,324 61 30
Other liabilities — net short positions in securities 30,304 35,601 15,662 21,774
At 31 Dec 41,265 46,433 25,765 31,161

1 'Deposits by banks' and 'Customer accounts' include repos, stock lending and other amounts.
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23 Financial liabilities designated at fair value

The group The ba;k

2022 2021 2022 2021

B £fm fm £m [‘rr_\

Deposits by banks and customer accounts B 4,864 4302 4,864 4,245
_Liabilities 1o customers under investment contracts - - 948 1,032 P = - -
Debt securities in issue ' 20,666 26049 13,742 14,399
Subordinated liabilities (Note 26} 809 2.225 809 2,225
At 31 Dec 27,287 33,608 19,415 20,869

The group

The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value was £(3,431)m lower than the contractual amount at maturity
(2021: £(1,568)m lower). The cumulative amount of change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk was a loss of £{292)m (2021:

loss of £165m).
The bank

The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value was £(2,230)m lower than the contractual amount at maturity (2021
£(2,146)m lower). The cumulative amount of change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk was a loss of £{139)m (2021: loss

of £72m).

24 Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities

The group The bank

2022 2021 2022 2021

B £m fm £m - fm

Cash collateral and margin payables ) 55,470 32,309 40,356 24,204
Settlement accounts 4915 4,767 4,485 3,996
Aceruals and deferred income 1.903 1507 1.241 859
Amaount due 1o investors in funds consolidated by the group 991 1,315 - —
Lease liabilities 269 386 a5 56
Employee benefit liabilities (Note 5) 121 196 56 74
Share-based payment liability to HSBC Holdings a8 129 72 102
Endorsements and acceptances - _ 231 188 218 172
Other liabilities ) 2,947 26868 1,509 708
At 31 Dec 66,945 43,456 47,982 30,170

For the group, accruals, deferred income and other liabilities include £66,356m (2021: £42,887m), and for the bank £47,683m
(2021: £29,913m) of financial liabilities, the majority of which are measured at amortised cost.
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25 Provisions

Legal
proceedings
R ing and regulatory Cu Other
costs matters diati provisi Total
The group ) ) £m fm £m £m £m
Provisions (excluding contractual commitments} o _ . .
At 1 Jan 2022 164 175 21 99 459
Additions 117 61 a 63 245
Amaunts utilised (124) (152) 6) (34) (316)
Unused amounts revarsed (35) (4) (6) (23) (68)
Exchange and other movements 4 {3) — 2) (1)
At 31 Dec 2022 126 77 13 103 319
Contractual commitments’ -
AL 1 Jan 2022 103

Net change in expected credit loss provision and other movements o 2
At 31 Dec 2022

—— — —e = 1 05
Total Provisions

At 31 Dec 2021 - - ) S 562
At 31 Dec 2022 424
Provisions {excluding contractual commitments)

A1 Jan 2021 309 237 25 103 674
Additions N 32 1" 86 220
Amaunts ulilised (170) (634) (10 {32) (275)
Unused amounts reversed (63} (25} (6} (58) {152)
Lxchange and other movements 13 (63 1 8]
At 31 Dec 2021 164 175 21 a9 459
Cantractual commitmants’

Al 1 .Jan 2021 187

Net change in expected credit loss provision and other movements 184)
At 31 Dec 2021

103
Tatal Provisions
At 31 Dec 2020 861
A1 31 Dac 2021 562

1 The contractual commitments include provision for off-balance sheet loan commitments and guarantees, for which expected credit fosses are
provided under IFRS 9. Further analysis of the movement in the expected credit loss is disclased within the "Reconciliation of changes in gross
carrying/nominal amount and allowances for foans and advances to banks and customers including loan commitments and linancial guarantees’
table on page 63.

Legal
proceedings
Restructuring  and regul ¥ C Other
costs iati provisi Total
The bank £m £m £m fm Em
:‘ isi LEod : | 1i i} 11 ct I""' i ts)
Al 1 Jan 2022 12 155 13 27 207
Adtditions 36 51 1 32 120
Amaunts utilised (14) (148) (3) (11) (174)
Unused amounts reversed 117) 3 (3) (13) (36)
Exchange and other movements - — = == .
At 31 Dec 2022 17 57 8 35 117

Contractual t_:omrnitmerlts’

At 1.Jan 2022 43
Net change in expected credit loss provision and other movemerts 7
(At 31 Dec 2022 o =

- - 50
Total Provisions

At 31 Dec 2021 B 250
At 31 Dec 2022 167
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Legal
proceedings and

Restructuring regulatory Customar

coBts matters remediations  Other provisions Total
The bank £m £m fm £m fm
Frovisions (excluding contractual commitments) B B - - - o
AL 1 Jan 2021 _ 39 198 17 52 306
Additions ) . 54 23 7 30 114
Amounts utilised B4y (32) @  15) )
Unused amounts reversed (26) (24) 4 40) 194)
Exchange and other movements (1) (10) 1 — {10)
At 31 Dec 2021 12 156 13 27 207
Contractual commitments’ - - B
At 1 Jan 2021 - ) ; 107
Net change in expected credit loss provision and other movements (64)
At 31 Dec 2021 : 43
Total Provisions . -
At 31 Dec 2020 413
At 31 Dec 2021 250

1 The contractual commitments provision includes off-balance sheet loan commitments and guarantees, for which expected credit losses are
provided under IFAS 8. Further analysis of the movement in the expected credit oss is disclosed within the ‘Reconciliation of changes in gross
carrying/nominal amount and allowances for loans and advances to banks and customers including loan commitments and financial guarantees’
table on page 53.

Restructuring costs

These provisions comprise the estimated cost of restructuring, including redundancy costs where an obligation exists. Additions made
during the year relate to formal restructuring plans made within the group.

Legal proceedings and regulatory matters

Further details of legal proceedings and regulatory matters are set out in Note 32. Legal proceedings include civil court, arbitration or
tribunal proceedings brought against HSBC companies (whether by way of claim or counterclaim), or civil disputes that may, if not
settled, result in court, arbitration or tribunal proceedings. Regulatory matters refer to investigations, reviews and other actions carried
out by, or in response to the actions of, regulatory or law enforcement agencies in connection with alleged wrongdoing.

26 Subordinated liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

The group The bank
2022 2021 2022 2021
£m Em £m Em
At amortised cost 14,528 12,488 14,252 12,218
- subordinated liabilities B _ 13,828 11,788 | 14,252 12,218
- preferred securities | 700 ?Oﬂl =]
Designated at fair value (Note 23) - 809 2,225 809 2,225
subordinated liabilities _ 809 2225] 809 2,225 |
At 31 Dec 15,337 14713 15,061 14,443

Subordinated liabilities rank behind senior obligations and consist of capital instruments and other instruments, Capital securities may be
called and redeemed by HSBC subject to prior notification to the PRA and, where relevant, the consent of the local banking regulator. If
not redeemed at the first call date, coupons payable may reset or become floating rate based on relevant market rates. On subordinated
liabilities other than floating rate notes, interest is payable at fixed rates of up to 7.65%.

The balance sheet amounts disclosed below are presented on an IFRS basis and do not reflect the amount that the instruments
contribute to regulatory capital due to the inclusion of issuance costs, regulatory amortisation and regulatory eligibility limits.
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Subordimated liabilites of the group

Carrying amount

2022 2021
£m £m

Additional tier 1 instruments guaranteed by the banl -
£700m 5.844% Nun-cumulativa Step-up Perpetual Preferred Securities'" 569 700
Tier 2 instruments
$750m 3.43% Subordinated Loan 2022 - 558
£300m 6.5% Subordinated Notes 2023 134 300
£1,500m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2023 - 1,260
€1,500m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2032 1,326
E1,500m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2024 1,329 1,260
$300m 7.65% Subordinated Notes 2025 141 222
$750m HSBEC Bank ple 4.18% Subordmmated Loan 2027 593 604
€300m Floating Rate Subordinated [ oan 2027 = 252
£200m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2028 200 200
£300m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2028 265 252
€260m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2029 230 218
£350m 5.375% Callable Subordinated Step-up Notes 2030741 60 398
$2,000m HSBC Bank plc 1.625% Subardinated Loan 2031 1,497 1.457
€2,000m HSBC Bank plc 0.375% Subordinated Loan 2031 1,583 1,658
€2,000m HSBC Bank ple 0.375% Subordinated Loan 2031 1.583 1,653
€1,250m HSBC Bank ple 0.25% Subordinated Loan 2031 990 1,036
£600m 5 375% Subordinated Notes 20331 152 665
£225m 6.25% Subordinated Notes 20417 47 224
£600m 4.75% Subordinated Notes 20467 191 595
$750m Undated Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes 624 554
$600m Undated Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes 415 369
$300m Undated Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes {Series 3) 249 222
$1,250m HSBC Bank ple floating Subordinated Loan 2028 1,035 -
§1,100m HSBC Bank plc floating Subordinated Loan 2033 910
E400m HSBC Bank plc fioating Subordinated Loan 2026 362 =
E400m HSBC Bank ple floating Subordinated lLoan 2027 361 —
£500m HSBC Bank ple floating Subordinated Loan 2028 443
Other Tier 2 instruments each less than E100m a7 51
At31Dec 15,337 14,713

1 The value of the security partially decreased as a result of a fair value hedge gain. The nstrument was held at amoriised cost in 2021, Also, the
interest rate payable after November 2031 is the sum of the compaunded daily Sonia rate plus 2,0366%

2 The hank tendered for this security mn November 2022, The principal balance is $180m. The original notional value of the security is $300m.

3 The bank tendered for these secutities i November 2022, The principal balance s £135m, FOTm, £167m, £70m and £237m respectively. The
original notional values of these securities are £300m, £350m, £500m, £22hm and FE00m respectively.

4 The interest rate payable after November 2025 is the sum of the compounded daily Sonia rate plus 1.6193%.

5 See paragraph below, ‘Guaranteed by HSBC Bani ple’.

6 These securities are ineligible for inclusion mn the capital base of the group

Guaranteed by HSBC Bank plc

A capital security guaranteed by the bank was issued by a Jersey limited partnership. The proceeds of this was lent to the bank by the
limited partnership in the form of a subordinated note. It qualified as additional tier 1 capital for the group {on a solo and consolidated
basis) under CRR Il until 31 December 2021 by virtue of the application of grandfathering provisions. Smce 31 December 2021, this
security has no longer qualified as regulatory capital for the group.

This preferred security, together with the guarantee, is intended to provide investors with rights to income, capital distributions and
distributions upon liquidation of the company that are equivalent to the rights that they would have had if they had purchased non-
cumulative perpetual preference shares of the company. There are limitations on the payment of distributions if such payments are
prohibited under UK banking regulations or other requirements, il a payment would cause a breach of HSBC's capital adequacy
requirements, or if the bank has insufficient distributable reserves (as defined).

The bank has individually covenanted that, if prevented under certain circumstances from paying distributions on the preferred security in
full, it will not pay dividends or other distributions in respect of its ordinary shares, or repurchase or redeem its ordinary shares, until the
distribution on the preferred security has been paid in full.

If the preferred security guaranteed by the bank is outstanding in November 2048, or if the total capital ratio of the group (on a solo or
consolidated basis) falls below the regulatory minimum required, or if the Directors expect it to do so in the near term, provided that
proceedings have not been commenced for the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the bank, the holders’ interests in the preferred
security guaranteed by the bank will be exchanged for interests in preference shares issued by the bank that have economic terms which
are in all material respects equivalent to the preferred security and its guarantee.

Tier 2 securities

Tier 2 capital securities are either perpetual or dated subordinated securities on which there is an obligation to pay coupons. These capital
securities are included within the group's regulatory capital base as tier 2 capital under CRR I, either as fully eligible capital or by virtue
of the application of grandfathering provisions. In accordance with CRR II, the capital contribution of all tier 2 securities is amortised for
requlatory purposes in their final five years before maturity.
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27 Maturity analysis of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments

Contractual maturity of financial liabilities

The balances in the table below do not agree directly with those in our consolidated balance sheet as the table incorporates, on an
undiscounted basis, all cash flows relating to principal and future coupon payments (except for trading liabilities and derivatives not
treated as hedging derivatives).

Undiscounted cash flows payable in relation to hedging derivative liabilities are classified according to their contractual maturities.
Trading liabilities and derivatives not treated as hedging derivatives are included in the ‘Due not more than 1 month’ time bucket and not
by contractual maturity.

In addition, loans and other credit-related commitments, and financial guarantees are generally not recognised on our balance sheet. The
undiscounted cash flows potentially payable under loan and other credit-related commitments and financial guarantees are classified on
the basis of the earliest date they can be called.

Cash flows payabls under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
Due over 1
month but not
Due not more more than 3 Due b Due t Due after

than 1 month months 3 and 12 months 1 and & years 5 years Total

The group £m Em £m £m £m £m
Deposits by banks 16,178 36 2,479 1,994 256 20,943
Customer accounts ) 197.400 11,821 ~ BAa - 127 285 216,074
Repurchase agreemants - non-trading 30572 1.?93_ 203 427 2 32,995
Trading liabilities . 41,265 = i R T = 41,265
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 9,558 1,950 4,887 7200 6,857 30,452
Denvaives 218,015 88 391 1,382 437 220313
Debt securities in issue a3z 3.047 2352 812 851 7.894
Subordinated liabilities 9 137 a27 3,300 13,713 18,586
Other financial liabilities' 65,305 272 824 180 1,080 87.6_8_1
579,134 19,144 18,004 15,422 24,479 656,183

Loan and other credit-related commitments 127,913 - - ) - - 127,913
Financial guarantees’ 5,327 - - - e - = 5,327
At 31 Dec 2022 712,374 19,144 18,004 15,422 24,479 789,423
Deposits by banks 16,783 1,556 1,106 12,277 401 32,122
Customer accounts 196,609 5,599 2,770 199 101 205,278
Repurchase agreements — non-trading 24,273 1,924 1,061 7 27,265
Trading liabilities 46,433 — — - — 46,433
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 9,358 2,790 4,310 8,269 11,873 36,600
Derivatives _ 139,040 48 104 406 581 140,177
Debt securities in issue 2,755 2,952 2,145 1,328 335 9,515
Subordinated Jiabilities 14 62 123 3,969 10,734 14,902
Other financial liabilities' 40,292 423 442 234 1'11? 42,!10!5
475,667 156,351 12,061 26:639 25,442 555,100

Loan and other credit-related commitments 118,476 - — — — 119,476
Financial guarantees’ 11,064 - — - 11,064
At 31 Dac 2021 606,087 15,351 12,061 26,689 25,442 685,630
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Cash flows payable under financlal inbilities by remaining contractual maturtties (continued)

Due over 1
manth but not

Due not more more than 3 Due between Due between Due after
than 1 month months 3 and 12 months 1 and 5 years 5 years Total
The bank £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deposits by banks 13,327 6 214 53 = 13,600
Customer accounts 129,308 8,578 3,867 3 — 141,756
Repurchase agreements — non-trading 27,436 1,663 203 427 - 29,729
Trading liabilities 25,765 — — - - 25,765
Financial habilities designated at fair value 9,446 646 4,303 3,820 3,967 22,182
Dervatives 192,521 88 365 1,372 434 194,780
Dbt securitios in issue - 2,878 1,525 83 314 4,800
Subordinated labilities 9 137 a17 3,283 14,874 18,720
Other financial liabilities 48,283 180 297 18 18 48,796
- 446,095 14,176 11,191 9,059 19,607 500,128
“Loan and urrE‘._r credit-related cormmitments 36,474 — — - — 36,474
Financial guarantees” 1.363 - — — — 1,363
At 31 Dec 2022 483,932 14,176 11,191 9,059 19,607 537,965
Depusits by hanks 18,063 4,781 1,516 1.453 25,803
Customer accounts 119,749 3,504 1,453 2 124,708
Repurchasa agreements — non-trading 19,707 1,575 1,061 i 22,350
Trading liabilities 31,161 - 31,161
Financial liahilities designated at fair value 9,241 1.597 3.723 2,360 7,085 23,976
Derivatives 127,352 46 104 379 574 128,455
Debt securities in issue 1,480 1.915 845 1,118 a27 5,685
Subordinated liabilities 14 52 1 3,700 11,202 15,089
Other Tinancial liabilities 29,248 320 148 28 22 29,766
356,005 13,800 8,961 9,047 19,180 406,993
Loan and other credit-related commitments 324N 32,41
Financial guarantees’ 1,270 1,270
At 31 Dec 2021 389,746 13,800 8,061 9,047 19,180 440,734

1 Excludes financial abilities of disposal groups.
2 [Ixcludes performance guarantee conlracts to which the impairment requirements in 1FRS & are not appled.

Maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets and liabilities by residual contractual maturity at the balance sheet date. These
balances are included in the maturity analysis as follows:

« Financial assets and liabilities with no contractual maturity (such as equity securities) are included n the "Due after more than 1 year’
time bucket. Undated or perpetual instruments are classified based on the contractual notice period, which the counterparty of the
instrument is entitled 1o give. Where there is no contractual notice period, undated or perpetual contracts are included in the ‘Due
after more than 1 year’ time bucket.

e Financial instruments included within assets and habilities of dispesal groups held for sale are classified on the basis of the contractual
maturity of the underlying instruments and not on the basis of the disposal transaction.

o Liabilities undet investment contracts are classified in accordance with their contractual maturity. Undated investment contracts are
included in the ‘Due after more than 1 year’ ime bucket, however, such contracts are subject to surrender and transfer options by the
policyholders.
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Maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

2022 2021
Due within Due after more Due within Due after more

1 year than 1 year Total 1 year than 1 year Total
The group - £m N fm £m £m £m Em
R . = — — o 2 Lo i
Financial assets designated or otherwise
mandatorily measured at fair value 1.391 14,490 15,881 3,225 15,424 18,649
Loans and advances to banks - 15,867 .1._.2&2 17,109 8,841 1,943 10,784
Loans and advances to customers 38,405 34,209 72,614 40,837 50,340 91,177
Reverse rapurchase agreement - non-trading 52,324 1,625 53,949 53,079 1,369 54,448
Financial investments - 7.201 25403 32,604 6,748 34,552 41,300
Other financial assets 55,369 - 428 55,797 38,851 203 38,064
Assets held for sale u 4174 17,040 21,214 8 9
At 31 Dec 174,731 94,437 269,168 151,690 103,831 255,421
Liabilities . . - B
Deposits by banks 18,674 2,162 20,836 19,439 12,749 32,188
Customer accounts 215,562 386 215,948 204,973 268 205.?4‘[
Repurchase agreements — non-trading 32,486 415 32,901 27,252 7 27,259
Financial habilities designated at fair value 16,281 11,006 27,287 16,329 17.279 33,608
Debt securities in issue 6,149 1119 7,268 7,840 1,588 9,428
Other financial liabilities 65,108 1,248 66,356 41,131 1,754 42,885
Subordinated liabilities B 142 14,386 14,528 8 12,480 12,488
Liabilities of disposal groups held for sale 21,621 3,090 24,711 - — ~
At 31 Dec 376,023 33,812 409,835 316,972 46,125 363,097
The bank B B :
Assets B
Financial assets designated or otherwise
mandatorily measured at fair value 1,287 331 1,618 2,796 419 3.215
Loans and advances 1o banks 13,338 1,148 14,486 5,267 1,511 6,778
Loans and advances to customars 25,814 11,178 36,992 23,609 10,327 33,.935
Reverse repurchase agreement non-trading 41,430 1,625 43,055 38,759 949 39,708
Financial investments 3415 15,224 18,639 4,580 21,962 26,542
Other financial assats 39,605 B 2 39,607 28,812 — 28,812
At 31 Dec 124,889 29,508 154,397 103,823 35,168 138,991
Liabilities - -
Deposits by 13,543 51 13,594 14,685 = 14,656
Customer ac 141,712 2 141,714 124,704 2 124,706
Repurchase agreements - non-trading 29,223 415 29,638 22,337 7 22,344
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 14,290 5,125 19,415 14,425 6,444 20,869
Debt securities in issue 4,341 315 4,656 4,240 1,418 5,668
Other financial liabilities 47,651 32 47,683 29,868 44 20,912
Subordinated liabilities o 133 14,119 14,252 12,218 12,218
At 31 Dec 250,893 20,059 270,952 210,229 20,133 230,362

28 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable

right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise th

simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).

In the following table, the ‘Amounts not set off in the balance sheet’ include transactions where:

e asset and settle the liability

* the counterparty has an offsetting exposure with the group and a master netting or similar arrangement is in place with a right of set
off only in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy, or the offset criteria are not otherwise satisfied; and

* in the case of derivatives and reverse repurchase/repurchase, stock borrowing/lending and similar agreements, cash and non-cash

collateral (debt securities and equities) has been received/pledged to cover net exposure in the event of a default or other

predetermined events.

The effect of over-collateralisation is excluded.
‘Amounts not subject to enforceable master netting agreements’ include contracts executed in jurisdictions where the rights of set off

may not be upheld under the local bankruptey laws, and transactions where a le

may not have been sought, or may have been unable to obtain.
For risk management purposes, the net amounts of loans and advances to customers are subject to limits, which are monitored and the

relevant customer agreements are subject to review and u

appropriate.
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A bject to enfor hie netting L1

Amounts not set off in the

balance sheet

Amounts not
Net Fi ial subject to
in the instruments, enforceable
Gross A it bal including non- Cash Net natting
amounts affset sheet cash collateral® lateral t  arr ts® Total
£m £m fm £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivatives (Nate 14)' 303,911 (79,799) 224,112 {193,720 (29,998 394 1,126 225,238
Reverse repos, stock borrowing and similar
agreaments classified as’
trading assets 14,490 (1986) 14,294 (14,293) - 1 63 14,357
non-trading assets. 103,839  (52,268) 51,571 (51.310) (260) 1 2,378 53,949
Loans and advances to customers’ 17,979 (8,105) 9,874 (8,143} — 1,731 1 9,875
At 31 Dec 2022 440,219 (140,368) 299,851 (267,466)  (30,258) 2,127 3.5&3 303,419
Derwatives (Note 14)° 160,801 [20,689) 140,112 1114,985) (24,27 7) 850 1,_109 141,221
Hevarse repas, stock borrowing and similar
agreements classified as”:
trading ossels 11,960 [15G) 11,804 (11.804) 40 11.844
non-traching assets 125,935 (72,788) 53147 (53,044} 1103} 1,301 54,448
| oans and advances to customers” 14,741 (6,091) B,Bh0 {7.0b3) 1,597 5 8,665
At 31 Dec 2021 313,437 199, 724) 213,713 (186, 886) {24,380) 2,447 2,455 216,168
Financial liabilities )
Derjvatives (Note 1 4) i 297,341 (79,799) 217,542 (197,201)  (19,662) 679 1,325 218,867
Repos, stock lending and similar agreaments
classified as’;
trading liahilities 10,180 (196) 9,984 (9,983) — 1 2 9,986
nan-trading habilities 85,168  (52,268) 32,900 (32.719) (182) n 1 32,901
Customer aceou nts? 24,082 {8,105) 15,977 (8,143) — 7,834 10 1_5;987
At 31 Dec 2022 416,771 (140,368) 276,403 (248,046)  (19,844) 8,513 1,338 277,741
Derivatives (Note 14)' 169,169 (20,6849) 138,480 [124,745) (13,273) 462 488 139,368
Repos, stock lending and similar agreements
classified as™:
trading liabilities 9,444 {156) 9,288 {9,288) 13 9,301
non-trading liabilities 100,031 (72,788) 27,243 {27,000) 1153) 16 27,259
Customer accounts’ 21,846 16,097) 15,765 {7,063) 8,702 1" 15,766
At 37 Dec 2021 290,490 (99,724) 190,766 {168,176) (13,426} 9,164 928 ‘IQ.T 694

1 At 31 Dec 2022, the amount of cash margin received that had heen offset against the gross derivatives assels was £2,375m (2021: £2,590m). The
amount of cash margin paid that had been offset against the gross derivatives habilities was £7,275m (2021; £6, 180m).
2 For the amount of repos, reverse repos, stock lending, stock borrowing and similar agreements recognised on the halance sheet within Trading

assets’ and 'Trading liabilities', see the Funding sources and uses' table on page 83.

3 At 31 Dec 2022, the total amount of 'Loans and advances to customers' recognised on the balance sheet was £72.614m (2021: £91,177m) of

which £9,874m (2021: £8,650m) was subject to offsatting.

4 At 37 Dec 2022 the total amount of 'Customer accounts’ recogised on the balance sheet was £215,948m (2021: £205,241m) of which

£15.977m (2021; £15,755m) was subject to offsetting.

enforceability of the right of offset.

5 These exposures continue to be secured by financial collateral, but we may not have sought or been able ta oblan a legal opiniorn evidencing

6 The disclosure has been enhanced this year 10 support consistency across Group entities. All inancial instruments (whether recogmsed an our
halance sheet or as non-cash collateral received or pledged) are presented within “financial instruments, including non-cash collateral” as balance

sheet classification has no effect on the rights of set-off associated with financial nstruments. Comparative data have been represented

accordingly.

29 Called up share capital and other equity instruments

issued and fully paid

HSBC Bank ple £1.00 ordinary sha

2022 2021
Number £m Number f'm
At 1 Jan 796,969,111 797 796,969,111 797
At 31 Dec 796,969,112 797 796,969,111 797
HSBC Bank ple share premum
2022 2021
; £m £m
At 31 Dec 420
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